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Aneaal Report and Finandal Slatements

Strategic Report - for the 52 waoek periad ended 27 March 2021

The directors, in preparing the strategic report of Yusen Logistics (UK} Limited (“the Company”) have complied with s414C
and 5172 of the Companles Act, 2006.

Falr Review of the Business

The principa! activities of the Company are the design, management and delivery of logistics sotutlons, including the leasing
of warehouse space, for its customers in a wide range of industries. The Company provides logistics services in air, ocean
and road transportation and warehousing, in addition to completing value added activities to enhance the core service

offering.

For information, FY19 in this report refates to the 52-week financial period ended 28 March 2020 and FY20 relates to the 52-
week financial perlod ended 27 March 2021.

The Company has reported an increase in revenue to £227,772,000 (FY19: £219,940,000) and achieved a profit before
taxation of £13,468,000 {FY19: £2,384,000). Whilst improvement in profit was noted across all areas of operation,
£10,899,000 was due to non-recuring items:

+  £8,940,000 relates to the profit generated from the sale and leaseback of one of the Company’s properties.
«  £1,959,000 relates to income received from Government’s Grants which Is split between the Goverament's Coronavirus
Job Retentlon Scheme {£1,844,000) and other grants received {£115,000).

Company revenue increased by £7,832,000 {3.6%) with improvement noted in all areas of operation; the Company 3lso
successfully retained alf business renewals and won several new contracts, An additional 3 leased facilities were also added
to the Company’s portfolio during the year to meet an increase in demand for services. Company profit margins before tax
increased year on year to 5.9% or 1.1% excluding non-recurring items (FY19: 1.1%). Net assets have increased period on
period by £9,732,000 (38.7%) whilst borrowings decreased year on year by £19,770,000 following the repayment of all loans.

The Company operates in an increasingly challenging environment, with continuing cost and exchange rate pressures. It s
committed to continuous Improvement in service quality and cost management, in order to deliver innovative, flexible and
cost-effective solutions for its customers.

KPl's

The financial KPI's monitored during the period are XPI's centred around revenues and operating profits. Revenue increased
by £7,832,000 (3.6%) compared ta the 52-week perlod ended 28 March 2020, with operating profit {excluding non-recurring
itemns totalling £10,899,000} increasing by £59,000 {1.5%) the reasons for which are set out in the Fair Review of the Business

section above,

Individual XPi targets are set for each customer of the Company which monitor operatlonal performance; these include OTIF
{On Time, In Full deliveries), stock discrepancy / tdamage tolerances, failed deliverles and POD [Proof of Delivery) efficiency.
Internally, the Company’s operations track key metrics covering, for example, pick rates and order accuracy,

Absenteelsm s monitored by the Company HR department and has decreased during the period 10 2.38% (FY19: 3,22%); this
is lower than the Industry average of 3.3%. The business will target further reductions of this in FY20 through investment in
training and development of staff {(Source: Xpert HR}.

The Company continues to review policies and procedures to ensure the highest standards of health and safety across the
whole business, Comprehensive key performance indicators, showing trends in the frequency and severity of accidents
across all locations compared with industry benchmarks, are reported monthly to the Board. Periad on period produced a
same rate in the Lost Time Accident Frequency Rate {the cumutative total of lpst time accidents per 100,000 hours worked)
to 0.72 {FY19: 0.72) and Road Vehicle Accidents per Million Kilometres decreased to 8.63 (FY19: 9.58).
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fonnal Heport and Flaancial Statements

strategic Report - for the 52-weok period anded 27 March 2021

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Risk Management Framework

The Company’s directors remain actively committed to the management of financial and non-financial risk, adding value to
stakeholders by applying Enterprise Risk Management methodology to identify risk and mitigate the impact of negative
events on the business. This is achleved through an Enterprise Risk Management Board (ERMB) made up of the Board of
Directors whose role it Is to identify significant risk and Implement measures to control and mitigate those risks to achieve
continugus risk reduction.

During Whe year, significant progress has heen made to strengthen and embed a culture of risk management within the
business, Including;

*  The full redesign of the Enterprise Risk Management framework to provide a more robust and structured mechanism
for risk Identification, categorisation and mitigation;

s The roll-out of a new quarterly Board of Director meeting cycle, incorporating the provision of full ERMB meetings, to
provide a regular, focused platform for risk identification and mitigation;

»  The establishment of quantitative and qualitative metrics to measure risk exposure and report on the positive impact
of measures taken to mitigate risk; and

+  The completion of risk workshops with all key senior stakeholders, to further embed a risk management culture.

As a result of these initiatives, significant risk reduction was achieved during FY20 although further improvements to the
Enterprise Risk Management framework are planned for the forthcoming year, including:

*  The devolution of risk management to functional and operationat business unit tevels, to enhance the breadth of risk
management and to aflow the ERMB to focus on strategic, Company-level risk;

*  The implementation of a new risk management software platform, to provide improved risk visibility and an effective
tool for the devolution of risk management across the business; and

e The deployment of external consultants to embed the new risk management software and enhance the Company’s
overall risk management culture,

In addition to Enterprise Risk Management, further assurance is galned from strong Internal audit activity and a
comprehensive integrated Management System providing the business with a rabust palicy and procedure framework.

Covid-19

Although the Company posted a significant foss in Aprll 2020, due mainly to the temporary closure of automotive
manufacturing facilitles for 2 customers and a reduction in transport activity, it recovered well and reported FY20 profit
before taxation (excluding non-recurring items) of £2,569,000 and revenue of £227,772,000 {an increase on the prior year
of 7.8% and 3.6%, respectively).

The varied portfolio of customers managed by the Company ensured overall performance was not impacted, with volumes
in Asset Light Logistics (predominately assoclated with the movement of pharmaceuticaisj and International Freight
Forwarding unaffected, whereas volumes in consumer electronic and white / brown goods reported significant growth on
the back of increased e-commerce activity.

The Company utilised the Government's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme during the year and received grants totalling
£1,844,000 and deferred VAT liabilities for the first quarter amounting to £3,412,751 (repald over the remaining of the year).
The Company also changed same propecty leases fram quarterly to monthly and was able to secure payment holidays for
leased equipment.
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Annnal Report and Financial Slalements

Strategic Report - for the $2-week period euded 27 March 2021

Following the successful migration of office staff to a remote working arrangement, the Company has confirmed that these
arrangements will remaln in place post-pandemic. As a consequence, all office-based staff have undertaken a Remote
Working Assessment for the role and individual circumstances, and have been issued with a new ramote working contract.
To support remote waorking arrangements, the Company Invested in new IT and office equipment for all staff and
implemented / upgraded IT systems to facilitate improved connectivity and communication links, In-line with Government
issued guldelines, the Company Is reviewing the openlng of offices (under strict Covid secure protocols) to facilitate a gradual
return to office working if required.

Mental health and physical well-being have been key focus points for the Company during the year and following a
partnership with Mind, the mental health charity, have promated mental health awareness and tralning for all staff during
the year. All staff were asked to complete the Mind Workplace Weilness Index survey so that the impact of remote working
on individuals could be assessed and remedial actions implemented as apprapriate, Additionally, line managers were
provided with additional training on how to identify the signs of mental health concerns in individuals.

At the commencement of the pandemic, the Company established a Covid Team to monitor and assess risks, track the
number of reported cases within the business and recommend actions to mitigate threats. A RAG Alert Status document was
created that highlighted requirements to be adopted depending on the severity of the virus and the impact on soclety at the
time. Throughout the year, consultation tock place with customers, suppliers, employees and trade unions at all times.

To allow operations to continue, the Campany implemented appropriate social distancing measures, improved hygiene and
Personal Protective Equipment requirements and reviewed / updated working practices; all work being undertaken in
accordance with Government guldelines.

Brexit

Following the UK decision to leave the European Union, the Company has established a Brexit committee to conslder various
scenarios and identify risk mitigation actions. Communication links have been established with key bodies (Freight Transport
Association, Confederation of British Industry, etc) and regular feedback has been provided to our customers and suppliers.

Internally, the Company established a team of subject matter experts to oversee the transition from the EU and the Impacts
this would have on the organisaticn. A key output has the been the formation of a stand-alone Land Freight Forwarding (LFF)
Customs Team to manage all Brexit related activities and the increase in volume that this has created, as well as developing
new products to support custemers and facilitate growth.

The directors will ensure a flexible and proactive reaction to customer and supplier needs and witl work with them to mitigate
operational cost wherever possible, In addition, the directors are committed to continuous improvement in all areas of the
business environment,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policles

The Company’s financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and other liquid resources and various other items such as
trade receivables and payables that arise directly from its operations, The maln purpose of these financial instruments is to
provide working capital for the Company's operations. The main risks arising from the Company's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk. The directors review and agree policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. Policies are continuously reviewed for Improvement and updated as
required; ERM and credit Policies have been amended during the year,

A key risk of the Company remains the success in retentlon and renewal of customer contracts and a full assessment of this
risk is considered when assessing Going Concern.
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Anstaal Bepoet ancd Finsacial Slatemanats

strategic Report - for the $2 aweek period ended 27 Maich 2021

Price Risk

The Company seeks to enter into formal contracts with its customers and wherever practicable, will aim to include provislons
for annual rate reviews to reflect changes in prices and more frequent reviews for specific costs such as fuel surcharges.
The Company produces quarterly macro-economic reports to highlight known / predicted changes to key financial metrics
to support price review discusslons with customers.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company finances its operations through a mixture of inter-company accounts and, if required, bank borrowings.
Working capital bank borrowings are provided by a cash pooling arrangement supported by the Group headed by Nippon
Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha {the ‘Group’). The Company's exposure to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings is managed on
a group basls by the use of both fixed and floating rate facilitles where appropriate, These borrowings are supported by
guarantees provided by Yusen Logistics Co. Ltd.

tiquidity Risk

‘Fhe Company seeks ta manage liquidity risk by ensurlng sufficient liquidity is available to meet foreseeable needs and to
invest cash assets safely and profitably. The Company generates sufficient cash inflows to support its operations, although
funding is avallable from the Group If required. The latest Going Concern forecast for the Company forecasts a positive cash
position at the end of FY21. Short-term flexibllity is achieved by the Group cash pooling arrangements,

Currency Risk

The Company is exposed to transactional forelga exchange risk. Approximately 27% {FY19: 28%) of the Company's sales and
44% (FY19: 44%) of the Company's purchases are invoiced in currencies other than Pounds Sterling. The Company’s policy Is
to achieve a naturaf hedge on revenues and costs for specific elements of its business; in addition, it attempts to match the
timing of the settlement of these sales and purchase invoices so as to eliminate, as far as possible, currency exposure, The
Company uses Deutsche Bank's Maestro FX system to reduce foreign exchange risk and enhance liguidity management by
integrating balance sheet hedging with cash management.

Credit Risk

The Company's principal financial assets are trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of
allowances for doubtful debtors, which are calculated using the Historical Cost Loss Rate. In order to manage credit risk, the
directors set limits for customers based an third party credit references and other available data. Credit limits are reviewed
by the credit manager and senior management on a regular basis in conjunction with debt ageing and collection history. The
Company has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of customers and sectors.

The Directors’ Statement on 5172 Disclosure

The Board of Directors, in line with their duties under 5172 of the Compantes Act, 2006 act in a way they conslder, in good
faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its stakeholders as a whole and in doing
s0, have regard to a range of matters when making decisions for the long term. Key decisions and matters that are of strategic
Importance to the Company are appropriately Informed by $172 factars as detailed below:

a)  The likely consequences of any decision in the long-term {Sale and Leaseback and Risk Management Framework};

b) The interests of the Company’s employees {Covid-19, Director Roadshows, Disabled Employees and Employee
Consultation);

c} The need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others {Covid-19 and Brexit);

d} The impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environmant {Streamlined Energy and Carbon
Reporting and Sustainability Policy);

e) The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct (Code of Conduct); and

f}  The need to act falrly between members of the Company {Transform 2025 and Sustainability Policy).
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i

strategic Hoporl - for the 52-werk period ended 24 March 2024

Through an open and transparent dialogue with our key stakeholders, we have been able to develop a clear understanding
of their needs, assess their perspectives and monitor their Impact on our strategic ambiticn and culture, As part of the
Board's declsion-making process, the Board considers the potential impact of decisions on relevant stakeholders whilst also
having regard to a number of broader factors, including the impact of the Company’s operaticns on the community and
environment, responsible business practices and the likely consequences of decisions in the long term.

The business strategy continues to consist of four main elements: working smarter, growing faster, being better and
delivering more, all of which combine to target achievement of the goal to be recognised as the most customer centred
logistics company in the UK. This strategy is consistent with the Yusen Logistics global strategy ‘Transform 2025’ and
considers likely consequences of any decision-making in the fong term. The adoption of the global Transform 2025 strategy
by all subsidiaries of Yusen Logistics, supported by standard policies, ensures a level of shared understanding and a
collaboratlve working approach between members of the Company. Additionally, 3 Yusen Logistics (Europe) B.V. directors
have Joined the Company’s Board so that the broader effect of decision making Is understood.

As Transform 2025 places great focus on the effect of our business on the environment, the Board ensures decisions consider
the wider impact on the community. To support this approach, the Company has again engaged the services of a consultancy
firm to assess the Company’s direct and indlrect carbon emissions, caltculated In l[ine with the Greenhouse Gas {GHG) Protocol
Emission Scope (refer to the Streamlined Enargy and Carbon Report on page 10) and has formally adopted a Sustalnability
Policy:

*  Toreduce GHG emissions by 30% by 2030 and by 50% by 2050 {(using 2019 as a baseline).

e Targets to apply to Scope 1 and 2, although the Company is committed to working with cllents, suppliers and industry
with the ambition of meeting the same targets for Scope 3.

. Off-setting will generally not be considered as a means to achlieve targets.

=  Achievement will be based on the basis of a Revenue / Tonne COZ factor.

The targets adopted by the Company correspond to the targets being set by the Group globally,

Our employees are fundamental to the delivery of our plan and we aim to be a responsible employer in our approach to the
pay and benefits our employees receive. Our health, safety and well-being of ocur employees is one of our primary
considerations in the way we do our business; this can be evidenced by the Company's handling of the Covid-19 pandemic.
To ensure high standards of business conduct are maintained, the Company has adopted key policies for employees,
Inciuding a Code of Conduct Policy which requires annual confirmation of agreement by all staff. Additionally, the Board of
Directors undertake regular ‘Roadshows’ whereby they visit sites {currently being performed “virtually’) to directly speak to
all employees and answer and questions of concern, which is supplemented by regular briefings by the Managing Director
to staff.

The Company aims to promote strong working partnerships with our customers, suppliers and others, and seeks to engage
with them on all appropriate matters. in addition to discussions on normal contractual arrangements, which focus on
performance to ensure that required business standards are maintained, the Company has engaged in canstructive dialogue
with all interested stakeholders over key matters such as Covid-19 and Brexit. A Brexit Customer Council has been established
since the decision to leave the EU was made, at which customers are briefed on developments by Senior Company Managers
and external speakers from bodies such as the Freight Transport Association and Confederation of British Industry.

$ale and Leaseback

On 23 October 2020, the Company sold one of its freehold facilities to UK Warehouse Properties Ltd C/O Alter Damus (UK)
Ltd for £27,200,000 and agreed to lease the property back for the next 5 years. The transaction preduced a profit for the
year of £8,940,000 and enabled the Company to repay all loan liabilities of £19,770,000. All contracts operating from the
facllity remain in place and the site Is forecast to remain profitable during the financial year ending March 2022,

The sale has enabled the Company to repay outstanding borrowings and improve the Company’s net working capital position,
facilitating further investment In technological and business advancements for the future.
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Strategic Report - for the 52 week peviod ended 24 March 2021

Apploved by the Board on 30 June 2021 and signed on Its behalf by:

A. Fitt / .
Manpging Director

30 June 2021
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Annual Report and Financial Statoments

Directocs’ Report - for the 52-week pariad ended 27 Maich 2021

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements in accordance with the weekly accounting
period basis for the period from 29 March 2020 to 27 March 2021. The current financial year constitutes a 52-week
accounting period (the ‘period’, the ‘financial year’}. The previous financial period was the 52-week accounting period from
31 Marcih 2019 to 28 March 2020.

The Company has chosen, in accordance with section 414c(11) of the Companies Act, 2006 and as noted n this directors’
report, to include certain additional matters in its strategic report that would otherwise be required to be disclosed in this
Directors’ Report. This includes a review of likely future developments and Information on financial risk management.

Directors

The directors who served throughout the period and to the date of signing this report were as follows:

s Mr. A Fitt

s Mr. L Fern

«  Mr. M, Kobayashi

*»  Mr. T. Kondo (appointed 1 June 2020}

e Mr. ). Osendarp (appointed 1 lune 2020)

*  Mr. E. Verbeek (appointed 1 June 2020}

*  Ms. L. Navid Lane (appointed 22 April 2021)
*  Mr. K. Appleton (resigned on 1 june 2020)

Dividends

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the period (FY19: Enil).

Disabled Employees

The Company recognises its obligations towards disabled people and endeavours to provide employment where possible
having regard to the physica! demands of the Company's operations and the abilities of the disabled persons. In the event of
members of staff becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the Company continues and

that appropriate training is arranged. It is the policy of the Company that the training, career development and promotion
of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be Identical to that of other employees.

Employee Consultation

The Company recognises its responsibilities towards keeping employees informed of the performance of the Company and
of other matters affecting them as employees. This is achleved through formal and informal meetings, the Company
magazine and consultations at appropriate times with employees, employee representatives and trade unions.

The Company does not run any share schemes.

Supplier Payment Policy

It is the Company's policy to settle the terms of payments with suppllers when agreeing the terms of the transactions, to
ensure that suppliers are aware of these terms and to abide by them. Trade payables at the period end amount to 36 days
{FY19: 25 days) of average supplies for the period.

Branches

Yusen Logistics (UK} Limited has one branch located in Finland. No further branches exist outside of the UK,
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Annaal Roport and Finandial Statements

Directors’ Repoi - for the 52-weak period anded 27 March 2021

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting

Yusen Logistics {UK} Limited is committed to minimising the environmental impacts of our business activities by complying
with accepted environmental practices, including the commitment to meet, or where possible, exceed the requirements of
relevant environmental legislation.

During the period, the Company engaged the services of a consultancy firm to complete a comprehensive carbon assessment
as part of the Company’s direct and indirect carbon emissions, calculated in-line with the Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Protocol

Emission Scope.
This carhon gssessment categorises emisslons inta three groups or ‘scopes’;

+  Scope 1: Direct emissions that result from activities within the organlsation’s control, for example, on-site fuel
combustion, process emissions, refrigerant losses and company vehicles,

+  Scope 2: Indirect emissions from any electricity, heat or steam purchased and used by the Company.

»  Scope 3: Any other indirect emissions from sources outside of the Company’s direct control, for example, employee
commuting and business travel, outsourced transportation, waste disposal and water consumption.

The total measured carbon emissions for the Company for FY20 reduced by 10.8% during the period to 17,462,734 kg CO?
(FY19: 19,551,781 kg CO?), The majority of these emissions are attributable to the organisation’s operational activities, most
notably goods vehicle use at 84.6% {FY19: 83.6%) with emissions in this area reducing by 1,594,419 kg CO? (9.8%) despite
the Company repariing a 3.6% increase in revenue during the period. Other key metrics identfled are:

«  Gas, electric, water and other utility consumption, which make up 15% of the total Company emissions, reduced by
103,215 kg CO? (3.8%).

s  Company car usage reduced by 91% to 432,319 kg CO2,

+  The intensity ratio of ‘kg CO? / £million turnover’ reduced to 76.5 (FY19: 88.9),

The Company has formally adopted a Sustainabllity Policy to reduce GHG emissions by 30% by 2030 and by 50% by 2050
{using FY19 as a baseline), Targets will apply to Scope 1 and 2 activities, although the Company Is committed to warking with
clients, suppliers and industry with the ambition of meeting the same targets for Scope 3, and off-setting will generally not
be considered as a means to achieve targets. Achievement will be based on the intensity ratia of kg €02 / £miilion turnover’,

The targets adopted by the Company correspond to the targets being set by the Group globally.

Whilst the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic undaubtedly assisted in reducing carbon emissions for the Company, with
support staff working remotely, the Company did report an Increase in activity and has added 3 new leased facilitles to its
portfolia during the perlod to support an increase In demand for Its services,

To support lenger-term strategic aims, the Company has updated its annual Environmental Policy Statement for FY22 to
include targets and obfectives such as:

¢ Reducing the environmental Impact of our transport fleet through positive fleet management and environmentally
efficient driver traiing;

*  Working with contract hauliers to encourage the use of low carbon vehicles and fuels;

e Introducing a system of re-use rather than disposal and the promoting of recycling and use of recyclable materials;

e Reducing, as far as possible, our use of non-renewable energy resources and developing an energy efficiency
programme;

+  Developing environmental awareness and sound environmental practices amongst all YLUK employees; and

¢ Monltoring progress and publishing an environmental perfermance report on an annual basis.
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Divectors’ Report - for the 82-weel period ended 2F March 521

Research and Development

The Company continues to invest in developing technology to automate and Improve business processes across its service
offerings. Where appropriate, these costs are capitatised as internally generated intangible assets. In the current period, £nil
(FY19: £13,000) costs were capitalised.

During the year, the Company submitted 2 claims under the Government’s Research and Development Expenditure Credit
{RDEC} Scheme, Total R&D expenditure credits of £10,711 and £11,865 for FY13 and FY19 respectively have been accepted
by HMRC, with a further ¢laim for FY20 yet to be finalised.

Future Developments

The directors expect to continue operations in-line with prior year trading {refer to the Strategic Report for details).

Post Balance Sheet Events
The directors consider there to be no adjusting or non-adjusting events required.

Going Concerrt

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, which the Directors believe to be appropriate. The Directors
have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operation far the foreseeable future,
being at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements, inciuding being able to settle liabilities as
they fall due.

The Company reported FY20 profit before taxation {excluding non-recurring items, being the sale and leaseback gain and
government assistance received) of £2,569,000 and revenue of £227,772,000 {an Increase on the prior year of 7.8% and
3.6%, respectively) with improvement noted within all Business Units. Performance was affected in the first perlod by the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, due mainly to the temporary closure of autemctive manutacturing facilities for 2
customers and a reduction in transport activity, but not as significantly as forecast in the prior year sensitivity analysis.
Likewise, the Company successfully retained all business renewals and won several new contracts, although these were
adjustments made to previous performance assessments.

The Company had GBP cash and cash equivalents at the end of FY20 of £118,000 {Including EUR and USD) although an
additional £13,253,000 was also available under the Group’s cash pooling facility {disclosed within trade and other
receivables In the accounts), The Company has forecast to generate sufficient cash inflows to support its operations during
the current trading period and has a net current asset position of £2,436,000 at 27 March 2021 {the net current liability
position was £25,783,000 at 28 March 2020, with the improvement resulting from the sale and leaseback of a freehold
property in the year, which facilitated the repayment of all external borrowings).

The Company produces an annual budget, with rolling forecast adjustments produced each period, and reports actual
performance against hudget / forecast to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis. The Company has produced a base case
cash flow forecast for the going concern period of 12 months from slgning these financial statements, which forecasts the
Company to be profit-making and cash generative throughout. This is reflective of actual performance in the first peried of
FY21 with results head of forecast,

The Company holds 1 freehold property which if required, could be sold to deliver a sfgnificant cash injection.
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Directors’ Report - for the 52-wecek peiiod ended 27 March 2021

The Company also henefits from an intercompany financing facility that provides additional overdraft funds for GBP
£15,000,000 and EUR €500,000; these facilities are currently due to expire an 31 March 2022 but are reviewed annually by
the Group at the commencement of each financlal year and historically, have always been renewed. As these facilities expire
before the end of the 12-month going concern period, the Company’s parent company Yusen Logistics Co. Ltd also agrees to
provide financlal support to settle all financial commitments as they fall due, for a period of at least 12 months from the date

of signing of these financial statements. The directors, having made sufficient enquiries, are satisfied that Yusen Logistics Co.
Ltd s in a position to provide the level of support required.

Taking account of all information set out above, the directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis,

Directors’ Indemnities

The Company has made quaiifying third-party indeminity provisions for the benefit of the directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, which were made during the period and remain in force at the date of this report.

Disclosure of Information to the Statutory Auditor

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of appreval of this report confirms that:

*  sofar as the director is aware, there Is no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

» thedirector has taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to make himself / herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company's auditor Is aware of that information.

This ¢confirmation is given and should be Interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act, 2006,

Reappointment of Statutory Auditor

loitte LLP have Indicated their willingness to be reappointed as auditor for another term and appropriate arrangements
hav&been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditor in the absence of an Annual General Meeting.

Approvid by the Board on 30 june 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

A. Fitt
Managihg Director
30 June 2021
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bireclors’ Responsihititias Staternont

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that taw the directors
have &lected to prepare the financia! statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework. Under
company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they glve a true and falr
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the directors are required to;

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

*  make Judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explzained in the financlal statements; and

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is tnapproprlate to presume that the Company will
continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accountlng records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactlons and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and to enable them to
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act, 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of Yusen Logistics {UK) Limited {the ‘company’):

s give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 27th March 2021 and of its profit for the period then
ended;

+  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including
Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

*  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

¢ theincome statement;

= the statement of comprehensive income;
. the statement of financial position;

¢+ the statement of changes in equity; and
¢ therelated notes 1 to 29.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework” {United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (1SAs {UK}) and applicable law. Our
responsihilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibiiities for the audit of the financial

statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with tha ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s {the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a hasis for our opinion.

Cenclusions Relating to Going Concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern hasis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any materizl uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
period of at least twelve months from when the financial staterments are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other Information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Cur

opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. !f, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and far such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liguidate the company or to ¢cease operations, or have no rezlistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I5As (UK) will aiways
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the Audit was Considered Capable of Detecting Irregularities, including Fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedures in line with
our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent
to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired
of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified the key
taws and regulations that:

. had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These included
UK Companies Act, Reduced disclosure framework FRS 101, pensions legislation, tax legisiation; and

L} do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but comptliance with which may be fundamental to the company’s
ahility to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included The Data Protection Act 2018, The Public Interest
Disclosure Act 1998, The Employment Rights Act 1996, The Climate Change Act 2008 and The UK Bribery Act 2010.
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We discussed among the audit engagerent team including relevant internal specialists such as tax, pensions and IT regarding
the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in

the financial staterments.

As a result of performing the above, we identified a presumed risk of fraud in revenue recognition, being a risk of revenue
not being recognised in the correct financial period. Qur specific procedures performed to address the risk included testing,
on a sampie basis, that revenue has been recognised in the correct accounting period.

[n common with all audits under ISAs (UK}, we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of
management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the
appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are
unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

. reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions
of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

. performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud;

s enquiring of management and external concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and instances of non-
compliance with laws and regulations; and

e reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

Opinions on Other Matters Prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertalken in the course of the audit:

e the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial period for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

»  the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal reguirements.

tn the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are Required to Report by Exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

e« adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

¢ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

o  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for cur audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Use of our Report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

N
I gy N
‘,,(w' ~7

Kevin Thompson {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdam
1 July 2021
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Ieoine Statament - for the S2-week poriod eaded 27 March 2621

Revenue
Cost of Sales
Gross Profit

Administrative Expenses

Other Operating Income

Other Gperating Expenses
Government Assistance Recelved
Galn on Sale and Leaseback

Operating Profit
Finance Income
Finance Expenses

Profit Before Taxation
Taxation on Profit of Ordinary Activities
Profit for the Financial Period Attributahble to Owners of the

Company

Note

11

10
10

12

1

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£'000 £'000

227,772 219,940
{198,545} . (194,821)
29,227 25,119
(24,905) {21,283)

- 252

(447) {272}

1,959 -

8,940 -

14,774 3,816

115 441

{1,421} {1,873)

13,468 2,384

(1,811} {485}

11,657 1,899

The above results were derived from continuing operations. The notes on pages 23 to 51 form part of these financial

statements.
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Statomant ef Comprehensive Iacomne - for the $2.weck poriod eaded 27 tarch 2021

Note

Profit for the Financial Period
Items that will not be Reclassified Subsequently to Profit or
Loss:
Actuarial {Loss) / Gain on Defined Benefit Peaslon Schemes 2
Before Tax
Deferred Tax Relating to Actuarial Gain / {Loss} on Defined

' 22
Benefit Pension Schemes
Other Comprehensive {Expenditure) / Income for the
Financfal Period
Total Comprehensive Income for the Flnanclal Period

The notes on pages 23 to 51 form part of these financial statements.

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

11,657 1,899

(2,627) 1,107

701 (210}

{1,926) 897

9,731 2,796

200y
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Statament of Financial Position

27 March 2021 28 March 2020
Note £'000 £000
Non-Current Assets
Intangible Assets 13 269 314
Property, Plant and Equipment 14 15,621 27,647
Right-of-Use Assets 15 39,779 472,785
Investment in Subsidiary i6 17,731 17,731
Long-Term Receivables 18 25 21
Post-Employment Benefit Obligations 26 2,005 4,130
75,430 92,628
Current Assets
Inventories 17 207 238
Trade and Other Receivables 18 -, . 865294 56,191
Cash and Cash Equivalents o 118 105
’ 65,619 56,534
Total Assets ’ 141,049 149,162
Current Liabilittes - ‘
Trade and Other Payables 19 . {50,087) {46,847)
Lease Liabillities 20 {10,502} (10,215}
Borrowings 19 - {19,310}
Current Tax Liabilities {852) {86}
Provisions 21 (1,762} {5,859)
(63,183} (82,317)
Net Current Assets / (Llabilities) 2,436 {25,783)
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 77,866 66,845
Non-Current Liabilities Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowlngs 19 . {460)
Provisions 21 (6,163} {4,193)
Lease Liabilities 20 {35,721} (35,855)
Deferred Tax Liabilities 22 - {1,080) {1,166)
"{42,964) {41,674)
Total Liabilitles (105,;47) (123,991)
Net Assets ) 34,902 25,171
Equity lf
Share Capital 23 . 44,130 44,130
Retalned Earnings {9,228} (18,959}
Equlity Attributable to the Owner of the Company 34,902 25,171

The Ynancial statements of Yusen Logistics (UK) Limited (registration number: 02548297} were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorlsed for Issue on 30 June 2021. Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors:
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Stateraent of Changes fn Equity - for the 52-werk poriod ended 27 Masch 2021

At 31 March 2019
Profit for the Period
Other Comprehensive Galn / {Loss) for the Period:

Actuarial Gain on Defined Benefit Pension Schemes Before
Tax

Deferred Tax Relating to Actuarial Galn on Defined Benefit
Pension Schemes

Total Comprehensive Income
At 28 March 2020

At 29 March 2020

Profit for the Period

Other Comprehensive Gain / {Loss) for the Perlod:
Actuarial Loss on Defined Benefit Pension Schemes Before
Tax

Deferred Tax Relating to Actuarial Loss on Defined Benefit
Pension Schemes

Total Comprehensive income
At 27 March 2021

Share Retained
Capital Earnings Total
Note £000 £'000 £000
44,130 {21,755) 22,375
- 1,899 1,899
26 - 1,107 1,307
22 - {210 {210)
- 2,796 2,796
44,130 {18,959) 25,171

Share Retained
Capital Earnings Total
Note £'000 £000 £000
44,130 (18,959) 25,171
- 11,657 11,657
26 - (2,627} {2,627)
22 - 701 701
- 9,731 9,731
44,130 {9,228) 54,902

2
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Mates Lo the Financial Statements - for the S2.aveek peiod ended 27 March 2021

1. General Informatton

The Company is a private company limited by share capital Incorporated and registered in England and Wales and domiciled
in the United Kingdom.

The address of its registered office Is: Grange Park 1, Cheaney Drive, Grange Park, Northampton NN4 SFB.

The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (its functional currency).

Adoption of New and Revised Standards
Amendments to IFRSs and the New Interpretation that are Mandatorily Effective for the Current Period

The following amendments / improvements have been noted during the accounting period, although its introduction has
not made an impact on the Financial Statements of the Company:

¢ IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, which the Directors believe to be appropriate. The Directors
have areasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future,
being at least 12 months from the date of signing of these financial statements, including belng able to settle liabilities as

they fall due.

The Company reported FY20 profit before taxation {excluding non-recurring items, being the sale and leaseback gain and
government assistance recelved) of £2,569,000 and revenue of £227,772,000 (an Increase on the prior year of 7.8% and
3.6%, respectively) with improvement noted within all Business Units. Performance was affected in the first period by the
effects of the Covid-19 pandemic, due malnly to the temporaty closure of automotive manufacturing facilitles for 2
customers and a reduction in transport activity, but not as significantly as forecast in the prior year sensitivity analysis,
Likewise, the Company successfully retained all business renewals and won several new contracts, although these were
adjustments made to previous performance assessments.

The Company had GBP cash and cash equivalents at the end of FY20 of £118,000 {including EUR and USD} although an
additional £13,253,000 was also available under the Group’s cash pooling facllity {disclosed within trade and other
recelvables in the accounts), The Company has forecast to generate sufficient cash inflows to support its operations during
the current trading period and has a net current asset position of £2,436,000 at 27 March 2021 [the net current lability
position was £25,783,000 at 28 March 2020, with the improvement resuiting from the sale and leaseback of a freehold
property in the year, which facilitated the repayment of all external borrowings).

The Company produces an annual budget, with rolling forecast adjustments produced each period, and reports actual
performance against budget / forecast to the Board of Directors on a monthly basis, The Company has produced a base case
cash flow forecast for the going concern period of 12 months from signing these financial statements, which forecasts the
Company to be profit-making and cash generatlve throughout. This is reflective of actual performance In the first period of

FY21 with results ahead of forecast.

The Company holds 1 freehold property which If required, could be sold to deliver a significant cash injection.
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Motes to the Fipaneia) Statemenis - for the S2-wesk pedod ended 27 Masch 2021

The Company also benefits from an intercompany financing facility that provides additional overdraft funds for GBP
£15,000,000 and EUR €500,000; these facilities are currently due to expire on 31 March 2022 but are reviewed annually by
the Group at the commencement of each financial year and historically, have always been rerewed. As these facilities expire
before the end of the 12-month going concern period, the Company’s parent company Yusen Logistics Co, Ltd also agrees to
provide financial support ta settle all financial commitments as they fall due, for a period of at least 12 months from the date
of signing of these financial statements. The directors, having made sufficient enguiries, are satisfied that Yusen Logistics Co.
Ltd is in a position to provide the level of support required,

Taking account of alf informatlon set out above, the directors have concluded that It is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going contern hasis.

2. Accounting Policies
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting pollcies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of Accounting

The financlal statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. When derivatives are held, they are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below, Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the goods and services.

Fair Value

Falr value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price Is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technigue. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or llability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Falr value for measurement purposes in these financial statements is determined
an such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of 1AS 17 and measurements that have some similarities to falr value but are not falr value, such as net
realisable vafue in 1AS 2 or value In use in IAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement I its entirety, which are described as follows:

«  Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets of liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

+  Level 2 inputs are Inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or lability,
either directly or Indirectly; and

* level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Company meets the defipition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 {Financial Reporting Standard 100) Issued by the
Financial Reporting Council. Accordingly, in the period ended 27 March 2021 the financlal statements have therefore been
prepared In accordance with FRS 101 as issued by the FRC, incorporating the Amendments to FRS 101 issued by the FRC in
July 2015 and the amendments to Company law made by The Companies, Partnerships and Groups {Financial statements
and Reports) Regulations, 2015.
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As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions avaifabie under that standard in
relation to financial instruments, capital management, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets,
presentation of a cash flow statement, standards Issued not yet effective, impairment of assets and refated party

transactions.

Where relevant, equivalent disclosures have been given in the group financial statements of Nippon Yusen Kabushikl Kalsha.
The group financlal statements of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha are available to the public and can be obtained as set out

in note 27,
The principal accounting policies adopted are set cut below.

Revenue Recognlition and Other Operating Income

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales-related taxes, Revenue
is recognised in line with the principles set out in IFRS 15, which requires a humber of judgements and affects various areas
of the financial statements including revenue, profits, assets {giving rise ta contract fulfitment costs, capitalisation of costs
to obtaln a contract, trade recelvables and accrued income) and liabilities {deferred Income).

The Company derives revenue from a variety of services. The Company’s revenue relates to both short-term and long-term
contracts and services consumed both at a time and over time. Initially, the Company Identifies whether a contract with a
customer exists as defined in IFRS 15 then identifies the performance obligations, the transaction price and allocates the
transaction price to all performance obligations In proportion to the stand-alone selling price of each performance obligation.
The Company determines stand-alone selling prices by reference to elther stated contract prices, the observable stand-alone
prices of services sold to existing clients or using expected cost-plus margins,

Any income derived from the leasing of warehouses 1s accounted for in accordance with the reauirements of IFRS16.
Where the Company acts as a freight forwarding agent, revenue represents the commission element only.

Government grants are recognlsed in other operating income as a part of the income statement on a systematic basis over
the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Forefgn Currencles

The financial statements are presented in Pounds Sterling, which is the cutrency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (its functional currency).

Transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency (fareign currencies} are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and Habilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevaifing at that date,

Current Tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of incame or expense that are taxable or deductible in other periads and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s fiability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
fiabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used In the computation of taxable profit and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method, Deferred tax fiabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it Is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,

Such assets and liabilities are not recognised If the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or
from the initial recognition {other than In a business combination] of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects

neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it Is no
lenger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the ltability Is settled or the asset is
realised based on tax Jaws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred
tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to ltems charged or credited in other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

The measurement of deferred tax ffabilitles and assets reflects the tax consegquences that wouid follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting perlod, to recover or settle the carrylng amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax [fablilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis,

Current and Deferred Tax for the Period

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to itemns that are recegnised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property Plant and Equipment

Ali property, pfant and equipment assets are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. Capital
work in progress represents assets under construction and ls stated at cost, Depreclation commences when an asset is
brought into use.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised so as te write off the cost or valuation of assets {other than assets under construction} less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases.

Asset Class Depreciation Rate
Freehold Property 10 to 50 years

Motor Vehicles 2 to 10 years
Equipment 1to 10 years

Furniture and Fixtures 1to 1Q years
improvement to Leaseho!d Property Expected Term of Lease
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Right-of-use assets are depreclated based an the expected lease term, or if shorter, the usefu! life of the asset as per the
above bases.

Freehold land Is not depreciatad. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes In estimate accounted for on a praspective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economlc benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or scrappage of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.

Internally Generated Intangible Assets - Research and Development Expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is Incurred,

An internally generated intangible asset arising from development {or from the development phase of an internal project} is
recognised if, and only if, all of the feliowing conditions have been demonstrated:

* the technlcal feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

+ theintention to complete the intangible asset and use or selt it;

s the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

*  how the Intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

+  theavailability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or seli the

intangible asset; and
s the ability to measure rellably the expenditure attributable to the Intangible asset during its development.

The ameunt initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets Is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the
date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure Is recognised in the income statement in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible Assets Acquired Separately

Intangible assets with finite usefu! lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful fives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes In estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Amortisation

Amortisation is provided on intangible assets so as to write off the cost, fess any estimated residual value, over their expected
useful econamic life as follows:

Asset Class Amortisation Method and Rate
Software and Licences 1to 5years
Internally Generated Software 1to Syears

Amortisation is recognised within cost of sales and adminlstrative expenses within the income statement,

Derecognition of Intangible Assets

An intangible asset Is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised In profit or 1oss when the asset Is derecognised.
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impairment of Tangible and Intanglible Assets Excluding Goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any Indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If such an Indication exists, the
recoverabie armount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impaicment tass {if any}. Where the asset does
not generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of falr value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash fiows have not been

adjusted.

If the recoverable ameunt of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be [ess than its’ carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset {or cash-generating unlt) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in the income statement, unless the relevant asset is carrled at a revalued amount, In which case the impairment
Ioss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset {or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impaitment loss is recognised immediately in the income statement, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Leases
The Company as a Lessee

for any new contracts the Company entered into, the Company considers whether a contract is or contalns a lease, A lease
is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’, To apply this definition, the Company assesses whether a contract met the 3 following criteria;

+  The contract contains an identified asset, which is identified in the contract or implicitly specified at the time the asset

is made avatlable to the Company;
*  The Company has the right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout

the period of use; and
e  The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the peried of use.

Measurement and Recognition of Leases as a Lessee

The Company ensures that at the lease commence date, the Company recognised a right-of-use asset and lease lability on
the statement of financlal positlon. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement
of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred, an estimate of costs tc restore the asset to its original condition at the
end of the lease, any lease payments made In advance of the lease coammencement date and incentives recelved from the

lessor.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments outstanding, discounted using the
Campany’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments are split into principal and interest repayments, using the effective
Interest rate method. Interest repayments on the lease liabilities are recognised within the income statement.

The right-of-use asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term or if shorter, over the useful life of the lease
asset. The depreciation charge on right-of-use assets is recognised in the income statement. The provisions of [AS 36
concerning determination and recognition of impairments of assets also apply to right-of-use assets,
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When the lease liability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset or income
statement If the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Company applies the definition of a legse and related guidance set out in IFRS 16 to all contracts entered or changed.
Puring each financial year, the Company undergoes a practical expedient over the impairment of right-of-use assets to
approximate the value of asset impairment to be equal to the value of onerous lease provisions,

The Company conducts an exercise 1o ensure that all leased assets with terms that are exceeding 12 months and of leases
of high value {> £4,000) are recognised under IFRS 16 accounting.

For leases with terms not exceeding 12 months and for leases of low-value assets (< £4,000), the Company exerclses the
optional application exemptions and these leases are classified as operating leases. The lease payments under these
contracts are generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term as other operating expenses. Operating lease
incentives granted by lessors to the Company are recognised aver the term of the lease.

Measurement and Recognition of Sale and Leaseback

A sale and leaseback transaction is one where the company sells an asset and immediately reacquires the use of the asset
by entering Into a lease with the buyer. The amount recognised Is calculated by splitting the total gain or loss into:

®  anunrecognised amount relating to the rights retained by the seller-lessee, and
*  arecognised amount relating to the buyer-lessor’ rights In the underlying asset at the end of leaseback

For the sale, generally the assets are sold at fair value, and accordingly the profit or loss from the sale is recognised
immediately In the company's income statement. Once the asset has been sold and leased back, a respective right-of-use
asset and lease lability 1s recognised on the statement of financial position accordingly if the conditions set aut by IFRS 16

are met,

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less, where appropriate, allowances for impairment,

Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for using the acquisition method. The constderation transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary or business comprises the fair vatue of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the eguity interests
Issued by the Company. Acquisition related costs are expensed as incurred.,

When the consideration transferred by the group In a business combination includes contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business comblnation. Changes in fair value of the contingent consfderation that qualify as measurement
period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustmernits against the vafue of Investments.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement
period’ (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subseqguent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent conslderation that do not qualify as measurement
perlod adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Other contingent consideration is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in falr value recognised In profit or loss.

Yusen Loglstics (UK) Limited are exempt from the preparation of consolidated financial statements, in accordance with
section 401 of the Companies Act, 2006. This is on the basis that the Company Is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the uitimate
parent undertaking, Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kalsha, which Is 2 Company established under the law of @ non-EEA state (see
the registered address of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kalsha in note 27). The subsidiaries have been Included in the consolidated
financial statements of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insigaificant risk of changes in value,

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection is
expected in one year or less {or in the normal aperating cycle of the business If longer) they are classified as current assets.
if not, they are presented as non-current assets,

Trade recelvables are recognised Initially at the transaction price, They are subseguently measured at amortised cost using
the effective Interest method, less provision fer impairment. A provision for the Impairment of trade recelvables is made in
line with the requirements of IFRS 9. Impalrment Is based on a lifetime expected credit loss, which s achieved by following
a methodology which uses a provision matrix for measuring the historical foss rate.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise fuel, are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net reallsable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classifled as current liabilities If payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised Initially at the transaction price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective Interest method.

Provisions

Provislons are recognised when the Company has @ present obligation (legal or constructive} as a result of a past event, itis
probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

the obligation,

The amount recognised as a pravision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation, Where a provision Is
measured using the cash fiows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the

receivable can be measured reliably,
Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other resources
recelved or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity Instruments. If payment is deferred and the time value of
money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.
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Defined Contribution Penslon Obligation

The penston costs charged against profits represent the amount of contributions payable to the scheme in respect of the
accounting perlod, Differences between contributions payable in the period and contributions paid are shown as either an
accrual or a prepayment in the balance sheet.

Defined Benefit Pension Obligation

The Company operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK which was closed to future accrual on 30 June 2017 having
previously closed to new entrants. The assets of the scheme are administered by trustees in funds independent of the

Company.

For the defined benefit scheme, the amounts charged to operating profit are the current service costs and gains and losses
on settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs. Past service costs are recognised immediately in
the income statement if the benefits have vested. If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised over
the perlod until vesting occurs. Interest cost and the expected return on assets are shown as a net amount in finance costs
or finance income, which Is recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method. Actuarial gains and

losses are recognised Immediately in other comgrehensive income.

Pension scheme liabllitles are measured on an actuarlal basis using a projected unit method and are discounted to their
present value using a discount rate reflecting market ylelds on AA rated corporate bonds. Pension scheme assets are valued
at market value at the balance sheet date. The pension scheme deficit is recognised in full on the balance sheet,

Termination Benefits

Aliability and expense are recognised for termination benefits at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits or when the Company recognises costs for restructuring for which a provision has been made that
involves the paymeint of termination benefits,

Finandial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company's balance sheet when the Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financla! assets and financial liabitities are Initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or Issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other
than financial assets and financlal liabilities at fair vaiue through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financlal assets or finaacial liabifities at falr value through profit or [oss are recognised immed|ately in profit

or loss.

Financial Assets

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of Financial Assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:
¢ the financial asset is held within a businiess model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect

contractual cash flows; and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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The effectlve interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant perlod.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive
income {FYTOCH:

+ the financial asset is held within 3 business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets; and

¢ thecontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company has no debt instrurnents which meet this definition.

By defauit, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL}. Financlal assets
at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Flnancial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impalrment at each bafance sheet date, Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been affected,

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade recelvables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, ip additian, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Company’s past experlence of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the

porifolio past the average credit period of 60 days, as well as observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

Financial Liab#ities and Equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument s any contract that evidences a resldual Interest In the assets of an entlty after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recognised at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments Is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or lass on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments,

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified ays either financial llabllities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘cther financial Kiabilities’. Financial liabilities are
classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability Is {I} contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business cambination, (if)
held for trading or {1} it is designated as at FVTPL.

Flnancial Nabilitles at FYTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on changes In falr value recognised in
profit or lass.
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Other financial Babilities, including borrowings, are inltially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with Interest expense recognised
on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating Interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate s the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected fife of the financial liability or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrylng amount on initial recagnition.

Derlvative Financial Instruments
The Campany enters Into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage its exposure to forelgn exchange rate risk.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured ta their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediataly.

A derivative with a posltive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value is
recognised as a financlal liability, A derivative is presented as a current asset due after one year or a creditor due after more
than one year if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or
settled within 12 months, Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current fiabilities.

3. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policles, which are described in note 2, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readity apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on histarical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The directors’ have considered critical accounting judgements made In the process of applying the Company’s accounting

policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements. The directors
determined that there are no critical accounting judgements relevant to the financial statements.

Post-Employment Benefit Obligations
The present value of the post-employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an
actuarial basis using 3 number of assumptions. The assumptlons used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions

Include a discount rate and an inflation rate. Any changes In these assumptions will impact the carrylng amount of post-
employment benefit obligations. Key assumptions for post-employment benefit obligations are disclosed in note 26.

4, Revenue and Other Operating Income

Revenue and other operating income are attributable to the contlnuing principal activities of the Company, those of the
deslgn, implementation and management of logistics solutions and refate predominantly to the United Kingdom and Europe.

An analysis of the Company’s revenue by class of business is set out below:

29 March 2020 to 31 ivtarch 2019 te

27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £'000

Transport Revenue 96,249 101,408
Contrgct Lagistics Revenue 67,821 61,554
Ocean Freight Revenue 37,069 32,518
Alr Freight Revenue 26,633 24,460
227,772 219,940
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An analysis of the Company’s revenue by geographical market is set out below:

United Kingdom
Europe

North America

Japan

Other Asfan Countries
Other

An analysis of the Company’s other operating income Is set out below:

Net Forefgn Exchange Galns *
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 1o
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

131,582 125,445

49,861 49,647

5,786 5,200

10,707 10,303

25,379 25,244

4,457 4,101

222,772 219,940

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£'000 £'000

- 251

- 1

- 252

* In the current year, the Company incurred foreign exchange losses of £431,119 disclosed within other operating expenses

{£181,053 realised gain and £612,173 unrealised loss).
5. Icome and Expenses

Profit for the period has been arrived at after {crediting) / charging:

Note
Net Forelgn Exchange Expenses / (Income)
Write-Down of Inventories Recognised as 2n Expense
trapairment Loss on Receivables
bepreciation of Property, Plant and Equipmeat 14
Depreclation of Right-Of-Use Assets 15
Gain on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Gain on Sales and Leaseback 11
Amortisation of Intangible Assets 13
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment 14
Impairment of Right-Of-Use Assets 15

Lease Expense for Leases that Fall Outside of the Scope of
IFRS16 - Property

Lease Expense for Leases that Fall Qutside of the Scope of
IFRS16 - Plant and Machinery

29 March 2020 to
27 March 2021
£'000

431

14

3,257

9,510

8,940
155

1,533

3,880

31 March 2019 to
28 March 2020
£'000

{251)

71

326

3,042

9,025

{1)

222

192
578

4,129

3d{Page

-




Annual Repoi and Financial Statements

Notes to the Financial Statements - For the $2«weeak perdad ended 27 March 2021

6. Government Assistance Recelved

Government grants are not recognised until there is a reasonable assurance that the Company compiies with the conditions
attached to them and that the grants will be received. The followlng government grants were recelved during the period:

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to

27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £000

Job Retention Scheme Grants 1,844 -
Other Government Grants / Reliefs 115 -
1,959 -

Under the Jab Retention 5cheme, HMRC reimburse up to 80% of the wages of certain employees who have been asked to
stop working {"furloughed’} but who are belng kept on the payroll. This scheme is designed to compensate for staff costs, so
amounts received are recognised in the Income Statement over the same perlod as the costs to which they relate,

The Campany is still furloughing a small number of employees In the financial year ending March 2022 and will continue to
utilise the scheme as appropriate until It ends on the anticipated date of 30 September 2021.

Other government grants or reliefs received relate to customs recruitment and training grants and RDEC claim rellef the
Company received during the period. None of these grants were received in the prior year. ’

During the year, the Company took advantage of the VAT payment deferment offered by HMRC for payments amounting to
£3,412,751 which was repaid in fult by 31 March 2021.

7. Auditor's Remuneration

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their assoclates for the audit of the Company’'s annual financial statements were £136,000
{FY19: £110,000) and £22,000 (FY15: £20,000) for other audit-related services.

Fees payable to Deloltte LLP and thelr associates for taxation compliance services were £36,000 {FY19: £36,000) and tax
advisory services were £34,000 (FY19: £57,000}. Fees payable for 1SOX audit services were £35,000 (FY19: £35,000}.

8. Staff Casts

The average monthly number of employees [including executive directors) was;

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to

27 March 2021 28 March 2020

No. No.

Operational 1,083 1,153
Operational Management 79 83
Central Services 135 132
1,297 1,368
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Their aggregate remuneration comprised;

Wages and Salaries
Social Security Costs
Pension Costs - Defined Contribution Scheme

9. Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ remuneration for the period was as follows:

Salaries, Fees, Bonuses and Benefits in Kind
Value of Company Pension Cantributions to Money Purchase
Schemes

Note

26

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£°000 £000

41,225 41,147

4,450 4,279

2,861 3,020

48,536 48,446

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2620
£000 £'000

635 609

11 11

646 620

During the period the number of directors who were receiving benefits and share incentives was as fallows:

Accruing Benefits under Money Purchase Pensfon Scheme

In respect of the highest pald director:

Remuneration
Benefits Receivable under Long-Ferm Incentive Scheme

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2018 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
No. No.

1 1

1 1

29 Miarch 2020 to 31 March 2019 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
E£7000 £'000

286 220

28 28

314 248

At the start of the year, an interest free unsecured loan balance of £11,247 was held by a Director which was part repaid
during the year and the value outstanding as at 27 March 2021 was £6,243. The remainder balance will be paid back to the

Company on a fixed monthly amount of £417 within 2 years,

In addition to the above, Yusen Logistics (UK) Limited receives charges from Yusen Logistics Co Ltd for the services of Mr. M.
Kobayashi as a director. This equates to an equivalent of £96,000 (FY19: £110,000).

The Company was charged a management service fee by Yusen Logistics (Furope) B.V. which Included elements of cost
relating to Company directors employed by Yusen Logistics (Europe) 8.V. It is not possible to identify separately that part of
the charges relating to the directors’ emoluments paid by Yusen Logistics {Europe) BV,
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10, Finance Incame and Costs

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £'000

FInance Income
Interest Income from Group Cash Pooling Facility - 17
Interest Income from Group Loans 12 101
Net Finance Charge in Respect of Defined Benefit Pension Scheme 102 64
Other Finance Income 1 259
Total Finance Income 115 a41

Finance Costs

Interest Payable on Group Cash Pooling Facility - {44}
Interest Payahfe on Group Loans {107} {192}
interest Payable on Bank Loans {29} (147}
Other Finance Costs {66} (207)
Interest Charge on Right-Of-Use Assets (1,219) {1,283)
Total Finance Costs {1,421} {1,873}
MNet Finance Cost {1,306} {1,432)

11. Galn on Sale and Leasehack

In order to repay outstanding borrowings and improve the Company’s net working capltal position, facilitating further
Investment in technological and business advancements for the future, the Company sold one of its freehold facilities to UX
Warehouse Properties Ltd C/O Alter Domus (UK) Ltd and agreed to lease the property back for the next 5 years. The sale was
completed on 23 October at which date the ownership of the facility was transferred to the acquirer, with no repurchase
option available.

The following gain was recognised:

£'000
Proceeds from Sale 27,200
Cost of Sale (1,266}
Derecognlsed Asset Caryying Value {12,511)
Right-Of-Use Asset Retalned 3,817
Lease Liability Recognised (8,300}
Net income 8,940

The leaseback was treated In accordance with IFRS 16 resulting In a right-of-use asset and lease llability being recorded in
the financizl statements with the cost being depreciated over 2 5-year period. As a result, the following transactlons were
made under }FR5 16 to recognise the lease on 23 October:

£000
Right-of-Use Asset Cost 3,817
Lease Liability {8,300)
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12. Tax

Tax charged far the period In the income statement:

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
Note £000 £'000
Current Taxation

UK Carporation Tax 1,399 634
Over Provision in Prior Period (UK Corporation Tax] {215) (4}
Foreign Tax 12 24
Total Current Income Tax 1,196 654

Deferred Taxation 22
Origination and Reversal of Timing Differences (97) (46)
Under / {Over} Provision in Prior Periad 510 {255}
Changes to Deferred Tax Rates 202 132
Total Deferred Tax 615 {169)
Tax Charge to Income Statement 1,813 485
Tax Charge to Other Comprehensive Income (701} 210
Total Tax Charge 1110 695

The tax on profit before tax for the period is [ower (FY19: higher) than the standard rate of corporaticn tax in the UK of 19%

(F¥12: 19%) due to required adjustments.

The charge for the period can be reconciled to the profit In the income statement as follows:

29 March 2020 to 31 March 2019 to

27 March 2021 28 March 2020

E'000 £'000

Profit Before Tax 13,468 2,384
Corporation Tax at Standard Rate 2,559 453
Over Provision in Prior Period {UK Corporation Tax) {215) 4
Capital Loss Relief Utllised on Gain on Sale and Leaseback {1,335} -
Effect of Expenses not Deductible in Determining Taxable Profit 185 159
Income Tax in Higher Rate Jurisdictions 2 1
Rate Changes and Prior Perlod Deferred Tax Movement 615 (124}
Tax Expense for the Perlod 1,811 485

Legislation was introduced to amend the maln rate of corporation tax from 17% to 19% for FY18. There have been no changes
in the rate during FY20. It had been propased thatthe rate of Corporation tax should be increased to 25% from FY23 however,
the rate has not yet been substantively enacted therefore deferred tax continues to be measured at 19%.
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13. Intangible Assets

Cost or Valuation
At 29 March 2020
Additions: External
At 27 March 2021

Amortisation

At 29 March 2020
Amortisation Charge
At 27 March 2021

carrying Amount
At 27 March 2021

At 28 March 2020

Software and
Licences
£'000

5,934
110

6,044

5,620
155

5,775

269

314

At the period end, the following values in relation to assets in construction were included In intangible fixed asset cost:

s E79,000 (FY19: £28,000} included in software and |lcences additions cost.
= E£38,000 {FY19: £52,000) included in brought fonward software and licences cost.
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14. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost or Valuatlon
At 29 March 2020
Additians
Disposals
At 27 March 2021

Depreciation

At 29 March 2020
Charge for the Period
Eliminated on Disposal
At 27 March 2021

Carrylng Amount
At 27 March 2021

At 28 March 2020

Improvements Furnlture

Freehold to Leasehold Motor and
Property Property Vehicles Equipment Fixtures Totat
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
25,067 17,031 4,245 3,413 1,527 57,283
46 2,175 142 250 1,302 3,915
(16,810) - {21) - (304) {17,135)
8,303 19,206 4,366 3,663 8,525 44,063
7,358 10,660 2,879 2,830 5,909 29,636
368 1,673 380 230 646 3,297
{4,323) - (21) - {147) {4,491)
3,403 12,333 3,238 3,080 6,408 28,442
4,900 6,873 1,128 603 2,117 15,621
17,709 6,371 1,366 583 1,618 27,647

At the period end, the foliowing values in relation to assets In construction were included in fixed asset cost:

*  £30,000 (FY19: Enil} included in brought forward furniture and fixtures additlons cost.
s £208,000 (FY19: £102,000) included in furniture and fixtures additions cost.
e £28,000 [FY19: £28,000) included in brought forward Improvements to leasehold property cost.

e £331,000 (FY19: £39,000)} included in improvements to leasehold property additlons cost.

15. Leases: Right-of-Use Assets

The Company has leases for warehouse buitdings and refated facilities, motor vehicles, equipment and fixtures and fittings.
Except for short-term leases and low underlying value assets, each lease is reflected on the statement of financial position
as a right-of-use asset and a lease fiability, The Company classifies Its right-of-use assets in a manner consistent ta property,
plant and equipment {note 14). All leases are integral to supporting the Company’s trading activities.

The Company has entered into some leases with termination or extension options and the possibility of exercising these
options have been carefully considered during the assessment of the lease terms. The Company does not have any leases

with varlable or residual value payments.

The table below illustrates the Company's leasing activities by type of sight-of-use assets recognised In the statement of

financial position:

Right-of-Use Asset

Buildings

Motor Vehicies
Equipment

Furniture and Fixtures

Number of Right-of-Use

Assets Leased

16
149
168

6

Range of Lease Term

3 to 25 years
2to 7 years
3 to 7 years
3to 5 years

Average Term

Remaining

3 years
2 years
4 years
2 years
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Right-of-Use Assets

Cost

At 29 March 2020
Additions
Disposals
Impairment

At 27 March 2021

Accumulated Depreciation

At 29 March 2020

Charge for the Year

Disposals

At 27 March 2021

Carrying Amount
At 27 March 2021

At 28 March 2020

Furniture

Motar Office
Property Vehicles and Fixtures Equipment Total
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
42,855 4,888 4,046 21 51,810
5,455 635 258 177 6,525
- (355} (315) . {670)
48,310 5,168 3,989 198 57,665
6,653 1,617 750 5 9,025
7,077 1,534 855 44 9,510
. (355) (294) . (649)
13,730 2,796 1,311 48 17,886
34,580 2,372 2,678 149 39,779
36,202 3,271 3,296 18 42,785

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities Is presented in note 20.

16. Investment in Subsidiary

Cost

At 29 March 2020
Additions
Disposals

At 27 March 2021

Provisions for Impairment
At 29 March 2020 and 27 March 2021

Carrying Ameount
At 27 March 2021
At 28 March 2020

The hrought forward investment halance represents the acquisition of ILG Holdings Ltd.

£000

17,731

17,731

17,731

17,731

Yusen Logistics (UK) Limited are exempt from the preparation of consolidated financial statements, in accordance with
sectlon 401 of the Companles Act, 2006. This Is on the basis that the Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the ultimate
parent undertaking, Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kalsha, which is a Company established under the law of a non-EEA state (see
the registered address of NIppon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha In note 27). The subsidiaries have been included in the consolidated

financial statements of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha.
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Related Undertakings Disclosure
The parent Company and the Company have investments in the following subsidiary undertakings.

¢ ILG Holdings Limited, princlpal place of business and country of incorporation is the UK, registered address belng
Logistics House, Charles Avenue, Burgess Hill, West Sussex, England RH15 8TQ.

¢ International Logistics Group Limited, principal place of business and country of incorporation is the UK, registered
address being Logistics House, Charles Avenue, Burgess HIll, West Sussex, England RH15 9TQ.

Capital and Profit for
Holding Reserves Period
Holding % £000 £000
Subsidiary Undertakings
1,000,000
ILG Holdings Ltd ord'“a";zg‘ﬁ; 100 2,827 208
Preference Shares
Int tional Logistics Group Ltd 44,502 100 12,466 6,337
nternational Logistics Group Ordinary Shares g 2
¢ Numbers mentioned in the above table are based on unaudited flnancial information.
17. Inventories
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£°000 £'000
Fuel 207 238
18. Trade and Other Receivahles
27 Mareh 2021 28 March 2020
‘ £'000 £'000
Amounts Falling Due Within 1 Year
Trade Receivables 39,566 34,630
Prepayments and Accrued Income 15,509 11,136
Other Receivables 674 190
Amounts Owed by Group Undertakings:
Parent 4,577 3,389
Subsidiary 545 3,688
Other Group Companies 4,423 3,158
65,294 56,191
Amounts Falling Due After 1 Year
Guarantee Deposits 25 21
Total Trade and Other Receivables 65,319 56,212

€3,716,000 (FY19: £2,311,600} within amounts owed by Group undertakings relates ta a EUR cash pooling arrangeiment
supported by the Group. This credit facility was renewed on 31 March 2021 and is guaranteed by Yusen Logistics Co., ttd.
Interest is charged on the use of the credit facility at the EONIA rate + 0.425% per annum (minimum 0,425%). The Company
receives interest on debit balances at the higher of the EONIA rate - 0.325% or 0%.
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£855,000 (FY19: £513,000} within amounts owed by Group undertakings relates to a USD cash pooling arrangement within
the Group. The Company has no credit facility associated with this arrangement. The Company recelves interest on debit
balances at the higher of the effective federal funds rate - 0.05% or 0%.

£nil [FY19: £2,400,000) within amounts owed by Group undertakings relates to a Joan made to ILG Holdings Limited as part
of the acquisition deal, to settle third party financing, The Company received interest on this loan at a rate of 2.03% per
annum, and the loan was fully repaid in July 2020.

The rernaining amounts due from parent, subsidiary and other group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and have no
fixed date of repayment.

19. Trade and Qther Payables

27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £/000
Amounts Falling Due Within 1 Year
Overdrafts 912 4,253
Trade Payables 16,295 10,816
Other Taxation and Social Security 5,329 6,570
Accruals and Deferred Income 24,5035 16,310
Other Payables 2,074 1,716
Amounts Owed to Group Undertakings:
Parent Company 951 1,030
Subsidiary 1 5
Other Group Companies - 6,147
50,067 46,847
Current Portion of Borrowings
From Subsidiary - -
From Other Group Companies - 17,500
Bank Borrowings - 1,810
- 19,310
Total Trade and Other Payables 50,067 66,157

£912,000 (FY19: £4,253,000) overdraft and Enil (FY19: £1,588,000) within amounts owed to other group undertakings relate
to a cash pocling arrangement supported by the group. This credit facility was renewed on 31 March 2021 and is guaranteed
by Yusen Logistics Co., Ltd. Interest is chargad on the use of the credit facility at the Bank of England base rate + 0.3% per

annum.

Borrowings from another group company represented an unsecured intra-group company loan. The loan including interest
was fully repaid in October 2020. Bank loans were also fully repatd including interest during the financial year.

27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£000 £000

Amounts Falling Due After 1 Year

Bank Borrowings - 460
- 460
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20. Lease liabilities

Lease liabllities are presented in the balance shest as follows;

Motor Fusniture Office
Property Vehicles and Fixtures Equipment Total
Liabiiities £'000 £000 £000 £°060 £'000
At 28 March 2020 39,578 3,423 3,052 17 46,070
Additions 9,932 552 280 166 10,930
Interest Expense 1,065 71 81 3 1,220
Lease Payments {9,578) {1,542) {560) {44) {11,724)
Disposals - {151) {122) - {273)
At 27 March 2021 40,997 2,353 2,731 142 46,223
27 March 2021
Analysed as: £7000
Non-current 35,721
Current 10,502
46,223
27 March 2021
Maturlty Analysis: £°000
Year 1 10,503
Year2 10,206
Year 3 8,232
Year 4 7,740
Year 5 4,239
Onwards 5,303
46,223

During the year, capital repayments of £11,724,000 were made towards right-of-use assets lease lisbilities.

At the year end, the Company did not have any committed leases that were yet to commence.

The weighted average intcremental borrowing rate for lease liabilities initialty recognised as of 29 March 2020 was 2.63% p.a.
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21, Provisions

27 March 2021 : 28 March 2020
£'000 £000
Asset Retirement Obligation 7,615 5,758
Contingent Consideration - 4,035
Other Provisions 310 259
7,925 10,052
Current 1,762 5,859
Non-Current - 6,1_!?3 4,193
1es a0
Asset

Retirement Contingent Other
Obligatlans consideration Provisions Total
£000 E'000 £000 £7000
At 28 March 2020 5,758 4,035 259 10,052
Additional Provistons 1,857 - 190 2,047
Provisions Used - {4,035} {26} (4,061)
Unused Provision Reversed - - {113) {113)
At 27 March 2021 7,615 - 310 7,925

Asset retirement obligations relate to property ditapidation provision. The remaining dilapldation provisions mainly relate to
vehicles, trailers and manual handling equipment.

During the year, £4,035,000 earnhout was paid cut under the terms of the acquisition of IL.G Holdings 1td.

The remaining relate to onerous operations and customer redress and is all capabte of crystalllsing within one year.

The estimates and assoclated assumptions used when calculating these provisions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are consldered to be relevant as at the balance sheet date. Actual results may differ from these estimates
as a result of changing timescales, commercial agreements and market conditions.

No relmbursement is expected in relation to these provisions.

22, Deferred Tax

The following are the major deferred tax Habilities and assets recognised by the Company and movements thereon during
the current and prior reporting period:

27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £:000

Provisions 108 88
Retirement Benefit Obligation {381) [784)
Accelerated Tax Depreciation {807} (470)
Net Deferred Tax Liabllitles (1,080) {(1,166)
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Charge to Other

Charge to Income Comprehensive
28 mMarch 2020 Statement Income 27 March 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Provisions 88 20 - 108
Retirement Benefit Obligation {784) {298) 701 (381)
Accelerated Tax Depreclation {470) {337} - {807
Net Deferred Tax Liabilities {1,166) (615} 701 (1,080}

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do s0. The following is the
analysls of the deferred tax balances (after offset} for financial reporting purposes:

Deferrad Tax Liabilities
Deferred Tax Assets

27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£°000 £000

(1,188} {1,254)

108 88

{1,080} {1,166)

The deferred tax assets have been recognised and are expected to he recoverable as future taxable profits are expected to
be earned by the Company in excess of the deferred taxation asset. There is no expiry pericd applicable to the deferred tax

assets,

At the balance sheet date, the group has unused capital tax losses of £nil (FY19: £6,607,000} which do not expire, available
for offset against future capital profits. During the year, tax losses amounting to £6,607,000 were fully utilised against current

year capital profits.

23. Called-Up Share Capital

27 March 2021 28 March 202G
No. £'000 Na, £'000
Authorised:
Ordinary Shares of £1 each 24,330,000 24,330 24,330,000 24,330
Redeemable Shares of £1 each 20,000,000 20,000 20,000,000 20,000
44,330,000 44,330 44,330,000 44,330
issued and Fafly Paid:
Qrdinary Shares of £1 pach 24,330,000 24,330 24,330,000 24,330
Redeemable Shares of £1 each 19,800,000 19,800 19,800,000 15,800
44,130,000 44,130 44,130,000 44,130

The redeemable shares are redeamable at par under the requirements of the Companies Act, 2006 and by agreement
between the Company and its shareholder and are therefore, regarded as equity.

There are two classes of shares held by the business, belng ordinary shares and redeemable shares, However, as 100% of
the share capital is owned by the immediate parent company, Yusen Logistics Furope BV, the rights, preferences and
restrictions attached to these shares do not have an impact on the business.
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24. Reserves
Retained earnings represent cumulative profits or losses net of dividends pald and other adjustments,
25. Commiltments

Capital Cammitments

At 27 March 2021, the total amount contracted for but not provided in the financial statements was £15,000 {FY19: £nil) for
the purchase of tangible assets and £54,000 (FY19: £nil} for tha purchase of intangible assets,

26, Retirement Benefit Schemes
Defined Contribution Pansion Schemes

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit schemes for ali qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Company in funds under the control of trustees, The total cost of £2,862,000
(FY19: £3,020,000) reprasents contributions payable to these schemes by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the
plans. As at 27 March 2021, contributions of £241,000 (FY19: £254,000) due In respect of the current reporting period had

not been paid over to the scheme.
Defined Benefit Pension Schemes

The Company operates a UK registered trust-based pension scheme that provides defined benefits, which was closed to
future accrual on 30 June 2017 having previously closed to new entrants. Pension benefits are linked to the members’ final
pensionable salaries and service at their retirement {or date of leaving if earlier). The Trustees are responsible for rupning
the Scheme in accordance with the Scheme's Trust Deed and Rules, which sets out their powers. The Trustees of the Scheme
are required to act in the best interest of the beneficiaries of the Scheme. There is a requirement that at least one-third of
the Trustees are nominated by members of the Scheme, There are no minimum funding requirements ar asset ceilings for

the plan.
The assets of the scheme are administered by trustees in funds Independent of the Company.

The most recent formal actuarial vatuation as at 5 Aprit 2020 has been updated to 27 March 2021 by a qualified independent
actuary.

The liabilities of the defined henefits scheme are valued by projecting the best estimate of future benefit outflow (allowing
far revaluation to retirement for deferred members and annual pension increases for all members) and then discounting to

the balance sheet date.

The scheme assets are invested with Legal & General Investment Management, Allianz Global Investors and Pictet Asset
Management.

Through the scheme, the Company Is exposed to a number of risks: asset volatility, changes in bond yields, Inflation risk and
life expectancy, The Company and Trusteas of the scheme manage these risks through ensuring that investments are well
diversified, reviewing the investment strategy on a regular basls and investing in fiability driven investment assets whose
long-term investment returns are expected to hedge interest rate and inflation rate movements.
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‘The major assumptions used by the actuary are;

27 March 2021 28 March 2020
% %
Rate of In¢rease in Pensions Payment:
»  Pre 1997 3.30 2.50
& Post 1997 3.30 2.50
Discount Rate 1.80 2.35
Inflation Assumption 3.40 2.60
Mortality Assumptlons
The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:
: 27 March 2021 28 March 2020
Years Years
Retiring Today:
Males 86.9 857
Females 893 878
Retiring in 20 Years:
Males 8.2 87.7
Females 90.7 50.0

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptioh used to measure the scheme fiabilities are set out below:

Assumption Change in Impact on s:her_ne

Assumption Liabilities
Discount Rate Increase by 156 Dacrease by 13%
RPI Rate Increase by 1% Increase by 5%
Age Rating Add One Year Increase by 5%

The calculations are an approximation and are provided by the scheme actuary, Each assumption change is considered in
isolation, which in practice is unlikely to occur as some of the assumptions are correlated.

Amounts recognised in the income statement In respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows:

27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£'000 £'000

Interest Cost 808 947
Expected Return on Scheme Assets (1,010) {1,011)
Total Operating Income {102) {64)

Of the net charge for the period, a cost of £nil (FY19: £nil} was recognised within staff costs (within administrative costs) and
net interest income of £102,000 (FY19: £64,000) was recognised within finance income. The remeasurement of the net
defined benefit obligation is Included in the statement of comprehensive income,

The actual return on scheme assets was a gain of £4,642,000 (FY19: £518,000 gain).
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Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income In respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows:

Experlence Adjustments Gain

Changes in Damographic Assumptions
Changes in Financial Assumptions
Actuaria) Loss / (Galn) on Scheme Assets
Total Actuarial Loss

27 March 2021

28 March 2020

£000 £/000
(969} (108)
2,036 108
5,192 {1,600)
(3,632) 493
2,627 (1,107)

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company’s obligations in respect of its defined benefit retirement

benefit scheme is as follows:

Present Value of Funded Ohiligation
Fair Value of Scheme Assets
Surplus In Scheme Recognised in the Balance Sheet

27 March 2021

28 March 2020

Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows:

At Beginning of the Period

Past Service Cost

Interest Cost

Beneflts Paid

Actuarial Loss / {Gain} on Scheme Liabilities:
*+  Experience Adjustments

»  Changes in Demographic Assumptions
s  Changes in Flnancial Assumptions

At the £nd of the Period

Movements In the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

At Beginning of the Perlod

Expected Return on Scheme Assets
Actuarial Gain / {Loss) on Scheme Assets
Contributions by the Company

Benefits Paid

At the End of the Period

£/600 £'000
44,823 39,622
{46,828) (63,752)
{2,005) {4,130)
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£'000 £'000
39,622 42,087
908 947
{1,966} {1,812}
{969) {108}
2,036 108
5,192 {1,600)
44,823 39,622
27 March 2021 28 March 2020
£'000 £'000
43,752 44,646
1,010 1,011
3,632 (493)
400 400
(1,966) (1,812)
46,828 43,752
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The analysis of the scheme assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date were as follows:

27 March 2021 28 March 2020

£000 £'000

Diversified Growth Funds 17,545 24,273
Liability Driven investment Holdings 10,245 11,682
Diversified Credit Funds 9,217 7,463
Cash 9,121 334
46,828 43,752

Following an investment review during 2019 it was agreed that the Scheme assets would be invested in managed funds with
Legal & General Investment Management, Pictet Asset Management and Allianz Global Investors. Approximately 60% of the
Legal & General Investment Management assets are investad In Llability Driven Investments, with the remainder invested in
a Global Equity Fund or a Diversified Growth Fund. The assets held with Pictet Asset Management ate held in an actively
managed Diversified Growth Fund. The assets held with Allianz Globa! Investors are held in an actively managed Diversified
Credit Fund.

The five-year histary of experience adjustments is as follows:

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations
{£7000] (44,823) (39,622) (42,087) {41,735) {42,655)
Fair Valuve of Scheme Assets (£°000) 46,828 43,752 44,646 43,511 43,109
Surplus In the Scheme {£'000) 2,005 4,130 2,559 1,776 454
Experience Adjustments on Scheme Liabilities
{£°000) {969) {108} 72 746 (137}
Present Value of the Scheme Liabilities (%) 2 - - {2) -
Experience Adjustments on Schame Assets (£'000) 3,632 {493} 1,210 (418] 4,192
Present Value of the Scheme Assets (%) 8 {1) 3 (1) 10

The employer's best estimate of contributions to be paid to the scheme by the Company In the next financial period is
£400,000,

The most recently completed triennial actuarial valuation as at 5 April 2020 was completed by the scheme actuary for the
trustees of the scheme. This valuatlon revealed a funding shortfall of £0.1 million. The Company has agreed to continue
paying contributions of £400,000 each year untif 31 March 2024.

The Company estimates that the overall duration of the scheme liabilities as at 27 March 2021 was around 12 years.

27. Controlling Party

The Company's immediate parent company is Yusen Logistics {Europe) B.Y, Taurusavenue 27 t/m 27 A, 2132LS Hoofddorp,
the Netherlands. Yusen Logistics (Europe) B.V. are incorporated in the Netherlands,

The smallest and largest group of undertakings for which consolidated financial statements are prepared, in which these
financial statements are consolidated, are those of the ultimate parent company, Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha,
incorporated In lapan. The Company's ultlimate controlling party is the same as the ultimate parent company. The
consolidated financial statements of thls group are available to the public and may be obtalned from the registered head
office, 3-2, Marunouchi 2-chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo, 100-0005 Japan,
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The ultimate parent company Is listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

28. Related Party Transaction

As a qualifying entity, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption given by Financial Reporting Standard 101 not to
disclose transactions between entities where 100% of the voting rights are controlied within the Nippon Yusen Kabushiki

Kaisha group.
29. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated the subsequent events oceurring after the year end date of 27 March 2021 and determined that
Lthere have been no such events that have occurred which would require additional adjustments to our disclosures reported

in the financiaf statements.
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N Consolidated Balance Sheet

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consohdated Supsidiares
{March 31,2021)

Millicns of yen

Thousands ot
U.S dollars (Note 2)

2021 2020 2021
ASSETS T
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and deposits (Notes 4 and 13, 14) 107,369 ¥ 81861 $ 969,824
Notes and operating accounts recevable—trade (Notes 4 and 13} 234,909 181,813 2,121,845
Short-term investment securities (Notes 4 and 5) 144 134 1,309
Inventories (Notes 7 and 13) 37,619 32,532 339,799
Deferred and prepaid expenses 56,438 61,162 509,785
Other 104,108 77,091 940,374
Allowance for doubtful accounts (Note 4) (2,101) (2173) {18,985)
Total crLrJrrrent assets 538,488 442,421 4,863,953
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
VESSELS, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, NET OF
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (Notes 8,10, 17, and 13):
Vessels 534,378 603317 4,826,829
Buildings and structures 109,198 107,643 986,350
Alrcraft 35,838 38,023 323,712
Machinery, equipment, and vehicles 26,040 28,856 235,209
Furniture and fixtures 5,303 5145 47,300
Land 86,912 83,504 785,050
Construction in progress 44,704 44903 403,797
Othey 5314 4935 47,999
T :I'otz_a| vessels, property, plant and equipment 847,689 916,329 7,656,850
INTANGIBLE ASSETS: ’ o
Leasehold right 4912 4,926 44,371
Scftware (Note 13) 5768 5915 52,103
Goodwil 10,190 11,055 92,049
Other 3,408 3670 30,783
Total intangible assets 24,279 25,568 219,308
INVESTMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS:
Investment securities {Notes 4, 5,9, and 13) 578,892 449,267 5,228,904
Long-term loans receivable (Note 4} 21,393 11,876 193,235
Net defined benefit asset {Note 27) 60,339 41,430 545,020
Deferred tax assets (Note 15} 6,110 4910 55,197
Other (Note 13) 53,393 46,694 482,286
Allowance for doubtfut accounts {(Note 4} (5,350) {5.567) {48,326}
m__TotaI investrnents and other assets 714,779 548,611 6,456,318
Total non-current assets 1,586,748 1,490,509 14,332,477
DEFERRED ASSETS 243 333 2,200
TOTAL ASSETS o 2,125,480 1033264 19,198,631

See noles o consolidated financal statements
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Milkons of yen

Thausands of
U S dollars (Note 2)

2021 2020 2011
UIABILITIES T
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Notes and operating accounts payable—trade (Note 4) ¥ 168,690 ¥ 137911 $ 1,523,711
Current portion of bonds payable (Notes 4 and 12) 25,000 20,000 225,815
Short-term loans payable (Notes 4, 12, and 13) 161,045 162,675 1,454,661
Commercial papers - 19,000 -
Leases liabilities (Notes 4 and 12) 19,477 18,740 175,931
Income taxes payable 14,390 5,340 129,980
Acvances recelved 36,405 39,349 328,837
Provision for bonuses 14,063 5,360 127,033 |
Provision for directors’ bonuses 366 310 3,306 !
Provision for stock payment 170 - 1,535 !
Provigion for logses related to contracts 14,364 - 129,744 !
Provisicn for related to business restructuring 3 20 34 '
Cther 88,286 60,906 797,455
Total current liahilities 542,262 473615 4,898,048
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Bonds payable {Notes 4 and 12} 107,000 132,000 966,489
Long-term loans payable {Notes 4, 12, and 13} 560,913 616,234 5,066,509
Leases liabilities (Notes 4 and 12) 77,707 81,203 701,897
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 15) 64,718 44,632 584,576
Net defined benefit liability (Note 27) 16,697 15,920 150,818
Provision for directors’ retirernent benefits 979 1,067 8,843
Prowision for stock payment 551 285 4,982
Erovision for periodic dry docking of vessels 14,595 18,536 131,831
Provision for losses related to contracts 52,071 23078 470,341 |
Provision for related to business restructuring 927 1,001 8,379 |
Provision for loss on guarantees - 224 - }
Other 19,645 26.624 177,446 |
Total non-current liabilities 915,805 960,803 8,272,115 ‘
Total lizbilues 1,458,068 1,434,424 13,170,164
EQUITY (Notes 16 and 31)
SHAREHOLDERS' CAPITAL:
Comrnon stock ’ 144,319 144379 1,303,584
Capital surplus 44,214 45737 399,373
Retained earnings 444,801 311,892 4,017,713 .
Treasury stock {3.381) (3.429) (30,539) :
Total shareholders’ capital 629,954 498520 5,690,131 |
ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS): |
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 22,604 9,474 198,758
Deferred gain (loss) on hedges (29,187) (27,752) (263,641) ;
Foreign currency translation adjustments (11,365) (18,966) (102,659) :
Remeasurernents of defined benefit plans 13,927 1,388 125,798
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (4,621) (35,856) (41,744)
A“Non-comrolling interests i 42,078 36175 380,079
Total equity | 667,411 498,839 6,028,467
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2,125,480 1,933,264 19,198,631
Yen 1.8 dollars {Note 2)
2021 2020 2021
Equity per share ¥3,703.27 ¥2740.41 $33.45

See notes 10 censolidated financial statements.
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HE» Consolidated Statement of Income and

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

N:ppen Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(Year ended March 3, 2021}

(Consolidated Statement of Income}

Millions of yen

Thousands of
LL3. dollars (Note 2;

2021 2020 2021
REVENUES T T ¥1,608.414 Y6683 §14,528175
COSTS AND EXPENSES {Notes 19 and 22) 1,375,232 1,461434 12,421,935
Gross profit 233,181 206921 2,106,239
SELLING, GENERAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (Notes 18 and 22) 161,644 168,225 1,460,071
Operating profit o o 71,537 . 3BsY%% 646,167
NON-OPERATING INCOME: ) ST
Interest income 2,385 3,976 21,544
Dividend income 5,552 7826 50,151
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates 155,928 22517 1,408,437
Foreign exchange gains 719 - 6,499
Other 5,530 3,387 49,954
Total non-operating income 170,115 37.306 1,536,586
NON-OPERATING EXPENSES:
Interest expenses 15,978 25,958 144,330
Foreign exchange losses - 1,399 -
Derivative losses 8,363 2,739 75,539
Other e 1,974 1,419 17,837
Total non-operating expenses 26,316 31,516 237,707
Recurring profit 215,336 44,486 1,945,046
QTHER GAINS:
Gain on sales of non-current assets (Note 20) 42,009 29,245 379,451
Other 5,609 8203 50,669
Total other gains 47,618 T 37448 430,121
OTHER LOSSES:
Less on sales of non-current assets (Note 21) 671 530 6,069
impairment loss (Note 17) 24,385 20,655 220,267
Provision for losses related to contracts (Note 23) 54,955 - 496,393
Other 12,523 18,224 113,118
Total other losses 92,536 39,410 835,848
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAXES 170,418 N 42,525 1,539,319
Income taxes - Current 15,000 1,359 135,489
__Income taxes - Deferred 9,102 5466 82,220
"~ Total income taxes (Note 15) 24,102 6,825 217,709
PROFIT 146,315 35,699 1,321,609
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 7,086 4,569 64,012
EF_!Q_E!'_I"“ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF PARENT 139,228 31,129 1,257,596
Per share of common stock Note 3 M) Yen U.S. dollars {MNote 2)
Basic profit ¥824.55 ¥184.39 $7.45
Cash dividends applicable to the year 200.00 40.00 1.81
(Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income) Milons ofyer usﬂéﬁﬁ;‘i’s”fﬁéil 2
2021 2020 2021
Profit ¥146,315 ¥ 35699 $1,321,609
Other comprehensive income (Note 24)
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale securities 12,339 (13.577) 111,455
Deferred gain {loss) on hedges 1,992 (5,745) 17,993
Foreign currency translation adjustments 9,285 (6,335) 83,882
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 12,678 (11,319) 114,516
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted
for using equity method (4,398) (9,939) (39,731)
Total other comprehensive income 31,897 (469186) 288,116
Comprehensive income 178,212 (11,216) 1,609,725
Comprehensive income attributable to owners of parent 170,463 (14,940) 1,539,726
Comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 7,749 3723 69,999

See notes 1o consoidated financial statements
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B Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidianies
(Year ended March 31, 7021)

Milions of yen

Total
Unrealzed gan Foreign accumulated
Total {loss) on Deferred currency  Remeasucements other Nan-
Common Capital Retamed Treasuiy snateholders”  avalanle-for gan loss) transkation of def ned camprehensive  contrallng Total
stock surplus earnings sinck capral sale securies  on hedges adjustments benefit plans. MNEOME mteests equily
Balance, Ap;l' 1,2019 ¥144319 ¥42894 ¥293719 ¥3IN5 w718 ¥23156 ¥{15,685) ¥ (9988)7 ¥1273 ¥10214 ¥34,293 ¥521725
Cumulative effects of changes i -
accounting policies - - (8,509) - (8,505) - - - - - {355) {B.360)
Restated balance, April 1, 2019 144219 428594 285214 315 468713 23156 (15,685 19,988) 12731 10214 33537 512,865
Draidends from surplus - - (5.087) - [5,087) - - - - - - {5,087)
Profit attributable to awners of
the parent company - - 31,129 - 1,129 - - - - - - 31149
Purchase of troasury stock - - - 1482) {482) - - - - - - (482
Disposal of treasury stock - o - 768 768 - - - - - - 76
Change n equity of parent radated to
transactions with non-controlling
shareholders - 2844 - - 2844 - - - - - - 2844
Adjustments due 1o change in the
fiscal periog of consolidated subsidiaries - - 22 - 2 - - - - - - 22
Change In scope of consolidation - - &5 - a5 - - - - - 63
Change In seope of equity method - - 177 - (177 - - - - - (177
Decrease by merger - - - - - - B - - - - -
Other - {0 77 - 722 - - - - - 721
Net change of tems other than
shareholders’ capital - - - - - (13682 {12.067) (8.078) (11,382) 146,070) 2,237 (43,233
Total changes of ems during the pensd - 2543 26677 286 29807 {13,682) {12067 {8.978) 11,342) (46,070 2137 (4005
8alance, March 31, 2020 144,319 45737 nism (3,429} 498,520 9474 {27752) 118,966) 1388 {35,856) 36,179 498,839
Dividends from surplus - - (8,782} - (6,782) - - - - - - (6,782}
Profit attributable to owners of
the parent company - - 139,228 - 139,228 - - - - - - 139,228
Purchase of treasury stock - - - s 15 - - - - - - {15}
Disposal of treasury stork - 3 - &2 b6 - - - - - - 56
{hange 11 equity of parent related to
trangacticns with non-controlkng
sharefialders - (297} - - (297) - - - - - - (297}
Change in scope of consolidation - {1,229) 453 - (776) - - - - - - (776}
Other - - k] 0 1w - - - - - - 10
Net change of iterus other than
shareholders capital - - - - - 12,530 (1.435) 7,60 12,538 31,234 5903 37,138
Total changes of iterns during the pertod - {1,523) 132,908 48 131433 12,530 (1.435) 7.6 12,538 31,234 5903 168,571
Balance, March 31, 2023 144319 44,214 444,801 {3381) 629954 22,004 {29187} {11,365) 13,927 {4,621) 42,078 E67411
e Thausands of UG dalfars (Note 2) e
Total
Unrealized gain Foreign accumuiated
Total {loss} on Deferied cumency  Remeasuremenls  ather Nor-
Common Cagital Retaned Treasury shareholders’  avalabie-for- gain (losst transhatior af definea comprebensive  controfling Teal
stock surplus Edrmings stock capital sale securies  on hedges adjusiments benefit plans ncome Imerasis equity
Balance, March 31, 2020 51303584 $413132 2817198 S(30574) 54502941 485576 SI280677) SN 12543 ${323874) 5326736  §4,505823
Dradends from surplus - - (61.263) - (61.263) - - - - - - {61,263)
Profit attributable to owners of
the parent company - - 125759 - 125159 - - - - - - 1251596
Purchase of treasury stock - - - (135} (35) - - - - - - (135)
Disposal of reasury stock - N - 567 599 - - - - - - 599
Change in equity of parent related to
transactions with non-contiolling
shareholders - {2689} - - {2,689) - - - - - - (2,689)
Change In seope of consolidation - {11,102} 4,002 - {7,009} - - - - - - (7,009}
Other - - 86 92 - - - - - - 92
Net change of 1tems ather *nan
shareholders capital - - - - - 113,182 (12,964} 68,657 113,254 282,130 53,323 335453
Total changes of nems during the period - {13,759) 1,200,514 435 1187189 113,182 (12,964} 58,657 113,254 282,130 53423 1522643
Balance, March 31, 2021 1,303,584 399373 4073 (30,539) 5690131 198,758 (263641} (102,659) 125798 {41,744) 380,079 6028467

See nates to consclidated firancial statements.
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EE» Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consclidated Subsidiaries
{Y¥ear ended March 31,2021}

Millions of yen

Theusands of
U S dollars (Note 2)

2021 2020 2021
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prefit before income taxes ¥170.418 ¥ 42,525 $1,539,319
Adjustments for,
Depreciation and amortization 98,803 104,057 892,457
Impairment loss 24,385 20,655 220,267
Loss {gam) on sales and retirement of vessels, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (41,063) (28,384) (370.912)
Loss (gain} on sales of short-term and long-term investment securities (963) {7,179) (8,699)
Loss (gain} on valuation of short-term and long-term investment secunties 4358 10,938 39,369
Equity in {earnings) Josses uf ununschdated subsdiarics and affiliates {155,928) (22517) (1,408,437)
Interest and dividend income (7.937) {11,402) {71.695)
Interest expenses 15978 25,958 - 144,330
Foreign exchange losses (gans) {3.285) 401 {29,676)
Decrease (iIncrease) in notes and accounts recewvable-trade (35,150) 20,599 (317.499)
Decrease (Increase) in inventories (4,789) 7.041 {43,257)
Increase (decrease} in notes and accounts payable-trade 25534 (7.712) 230,639
increase (decrease} in provision for losses related 1o contracts 43,357 {12,386) 391,628
Other, net 11,342 (3.614) 102,449
Subtotal 145,061 129,380 1,310,282
Interest and dividend income received 42,000 21,85 379,371
Interest expenses paid (16,864) {25,856) (152,326)
Paid expenses related 1o antitrust law (958) - {8.654)
Income taxes paid (9.902) {8434} {89.447)
Net cash provided by operating activities e R 159,336 116931 1.439.225
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of vessels, property, plant, and equipment and intangible assets (102,087) {138,766} (922,115)
Proceeds from sales of vessels, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 76,026 70,837 686719
Purchase of investment securities (14,121) {13,728} (127,552)
Praceeds from sales and redemption of investment securihes 12916 20,729 116,670
Purchase of shares of subsidianes resulting In change in scope of consolidation (579) - (5238)
Proceeds from purchase of shares of subsidianes resulting in change in scope of consclidation 1,762 - 15923
Payments for sales of shares of subsidianes resulting in change in scope of consolidation (Note 14) ()] (424} {0)
Proceeds from sales of shares of subsidianes resulting in change in scope of consalidation (Note 14) B83 378 7,984
Payments of loans receivable (19,221) {11,803) (173.619)
Collections of loans recevable 22,415 15,767 202,469
Other, net 5132 2141 46,360
__ Net cash used in investing activities (16,871) (54,867) (152,396)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase (decrease) in short-term loans payable {64,207) (37.136) (579,964}
Net increase {decrease) in commercial papers {19,000} 8,000 (171,619)
Proceeds from long-term loans payable 125,187 85,939 1,130,773
Repayments of long-term loans payable {115,651} (30,950} {1,044,632}
Proceeds from issuance of bonds - 26,856 -
Redernption of bonds (20,000) (30,000} (180,652)
Repayments of leases liabilities {19,903} (19,275} (179,780)
Proceeds from share 1ssuance to non-controlling shareholders 1,221 3,271 11,034
Purchase of treasury stock (158) {482) (135)
Proceeds from sales of treasury stock 33 334 303
Cash dividends paid to sharehclders {6,782) (5,087) (61,263)
Cash dimidends paid to non-controlling interests {3.359) (4,436) {30,340)
Payments from changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in change
in scope of consohdation {925) - {8,260)
Proceeds from changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in change
in scope of consolidation - 3,058 -
Other, net (2,081) {1.827) (18,805)
Net cash used in financing activities - {125.483) {61,733} (1,133,443)
Effect of exchange rate change on cash and cash equivalents ) 8,688 {1,550} 78,475
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . 25,669 (1.219) 231,860
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 77,092 78280 696,341
Increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents resulting from change in scope of censolidation 709 26 6,408
Increase in cash and cash equivalents resulting fram merger with unconsolidated subsidiaries 122 30 1,107
increase {decrease} in beginning balance of cash and cash equivalents resulting from change
in fiscal period of consolidated subsidiaries . e - 126) -
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at end of period (Note 14) 103,593 77,092 935.718

See notes to consclidated financial statements
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I Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha and Consolidated Subsidiaries
(Year ended March 31, 2021)

1. Basis of Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese
Financial instruments and Exchange Act and its related accounting
regulations, and in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in Japan, which are different in certain respects as to the
application and disclosure requirements from Internatienal Financial
Reporting Standards.

In preparing these congolidated financial statements, additional
information is provided in order tc present the consclidated financial

statements in a format familiar to international readers. The result of
this does not affect the financial position, results of operations, and
cash flows of the consciidated companies as reported in the original
consglidated financial statements.

Yen figures less than a million yen are rounded down to the
nearest million yen, except for per share data. U.S. dellar figures less
than a thousand dollars are rounded down to the nearest thousand
dollars, except for per share data.

2. U.S. Dollar Amounts

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are stated in
yen, and the U S. dollar amounts represent the arithmetical results of
translating yen to U.S dollars using the exchange rate prevailing at
March 31, 2021, which was ¥110.71 to $1.00. The statements in
such dollar amounts are solely for the convenience of readers

outside Japan and are not intended to imply that the yen amounts
have been, or could be, readily converted, realized, or settled in
dollars at that rate, or any other rates, of exchange.

3. Ssummary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Consolidation Policies

{1) The consoclidated financial statements include the accounts of
Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha (the “Company”) and its 502
consolidated subsidiaries (the "NYK Group”) at March 31, 2021.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, the Company
newly established five companies that were included within the
scope of consolidation as they were newly established.

A total of 24 companies were included in the scope of con-
solidation as their total assets, revenues, profit, and retained
earnings, etc., increased to material amounts.

One company was included in the scope of consclidation
due to the acquisition of its shares.

Four companies were changed from unconsolidated sub-
sidiaries accounted for by the equity methed to consolidated
subsidiaries cue to additional acquisitions of their shares.

Four companies were changed from affiliates accounted for
by the eguity method to consclidated subsidiaries due to addi-
tional acquisitions of their shares.

One company was changed from a consolidated subsidiary
to an affiliate accounted for by the equity method due to a partial
disposal of shares.

A total of 29 companies were excluded from the scope of
consolidation as they were liquidated.

Four companies were excluded from the scope of consolida-
tion due to mergers.

Three companies were excluded from the scope of consolida-
tion due to the disposal of their shares.

There are no significant unconsolidated subsidiaries that
require particular mention.

The total amounts of total assets, net sales, equity innet
profits, and equity in retained earnings of unconsolidated subsid-
iaries are all insignificant compared with the total amounts of
total assets, net sales, equity in net profits, and retained earnings
of the Company's consolidated subsidiaries, and since they do
not exert a material impact on the consolidated financial state-
ments as a whole, they have been excluded.

(2) Investrments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates are
accounted for either using the cost methed or using the
equity method, depending on the extent of influence or fiscal sig-
nificance each carries The Company accounted for 3 unconsoli-
dated subsidiaries and 203 affiliates using the equity method
at March 31, 2021.

In the consolidated fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, 11 com-
panies were included in the scope of companies accounted for
using the equity method as their total assets, revenues, profit,
and retained earnings, etc, increased to material amounts.

One company was changed from a consolidated subsidiary
to an affihate accounted for by the equity method due to a partial
disposal of shares.

Four companies were changed from affiliates accounted for
by the equity method to consolidated subsidiaries due to addi-
tional acquisitions of their shares.

Four companies were changed from unconsolidated subsid-
iaries accounted for by the equity method to consolidated subsid-
iaries due to additional acquisitions of their shares

Two companies were excluded from the scope of application
of the equity method as they were liquidated.

Two companies were excluded from the scope of consolida-
tion due to mergers.

NIFPON YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA NYK REFORT 2021 7




There are no unconsolidated subsidiaries or affiliated compa-
nies not accounted for by the equity method that require particu-
lar mention.

The total amaunts of eguity in net profits and retained
earnings of unconsolidated subsidiaries or affiliated companies
not accounted for by the equity method are insignificant
compared with the total amounts of eguity in net profits of the
Company's consolidated subsidianies and affiliated companies
accounted for by the equity methed, and their impact on retained
edinings is thus negligible. Since they do not exert a material
impact on the consclidated financial staterents as a whole, they
have been excluded.

For one of the companies accounted for by the equity method
whose closing date for their financial statements is December 31,
the Company has used financial statements based on a provi-
sional closing conducted as of the closing date for the consoli-
dated financial statements. For the other companies with closing
dates that differ from the consolidated clesing date, the
Company has used the financial statements for each company’s
financial year.

(3) Any material difference between the cost of an investment in 2
subsidiary and the amount of underlying eguity in net assets of
the subsidiary upon inclusicn in the consolidation, unless specifi-
cally identified and reclassified to the applicable accounts from
which the value originates, is treated as goodwill or negative
goodwill, as the case may be, and amortized over a period of 5
to 20 years on a straight-line basis.

{4) All sigrificant intercempany balances, transactions, and material
unrealized profit within the consolidated group have been elimi-
nated in consoelidation.

B. Accounting Period
The Company's accounting period begins each year on April 1 and
ends the following year on March 31.

During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, December 31 was
used by 40 consolidated subsidiaries as the closing date for their
financial statements. Necessary adjustments have been made to
address transactions that occurred between closing dates different
to that of the Company.

Eight companies with a fiscal year end of December 31 provide
financial statements based on provisional settlernent of accounts
as of March 31 to facilitate preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.

C. Foreign Currency Financial Statements

The balance sheet accounts of consolidated foreign subsidiaries are

translated into yen at the current exchange rate as of the balance

sheet date, except for equity, which is transiated at the historical rate.
Differences arising from such translaticn are shown as “Foreign

currency translation adjustments” in a separate component of equity

and "Non-controlling interests.”
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Revenue and expense accounts of consclidated foreign subsid-
jaries are translated into yen at the average exchange rate.

D. Valuation of Assets
(1) Short-term and long-term investment securities are classified
and accountad for, depending on management’s intent,
as follows:
i} Held-to-maturity debt securities to maturity are reported at
amortized cost.
i) (&) Available-for-sale securities with fair value, which are not
classified as the aforementioned securities, are reported
at farr values, with unrealized gains and losses, net of applica-
ble taxes, reported in a separate component of equity and
{b) available-for-sale securities whose fair values are not
readily determinable are reported at cost using the moving
average method.

(2) Derivatives are valued at market.

(3) Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, determined by the
first-in, first-out method, or net selling value, which is defined as
the selling price, less additional estimated manufacturing costs
and estimated direct selling expenses.

E. Depreciation and Amortization
(1) Vessels, property, plant and eguipment, except for lease assets,
are depreciated as follows:

Vessels, property, plant and equipment are depreciated
generally by the straight-line method.

(2) Intangible assets, except for lease assets, are amortized
as follows:

Computer software is amortized by the straight-line method
based principally on the length of period it can be used internally
(five years). Other intangible assets are amortized by the straight-
line method.

{3) Leased assets are depreciated as follows:
Leased assets related to financial leases that transfer ownership
rights are depreciated by the same depreciation method that is
applied to fixed assets owned by the Cormpany Leased assets
related to financial leases that do not transfer ownership rights
are depreciated under the straight-line method based on the
lease termn as the useful life and assuming no residual value.

Some overseas consolidated subsidiaries applied IFRS 16
Leases. Consequently, as a general rule, each of the lessees’
leases is recorded as either an asset or a liability on the consoli-
dated balance sheet, and recognized right-of-use assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method.

F. Capitalization of Interest Expenses

Interest expenses are generally charged to income as incurred.
However, interest expenses incurred in the construction of certain
assets, particularly projects for vessels, are capitalized and included
inthe costs of assets when a construction period is substantially



long and the amount of interest incurred during such a peried is
significantly material.

G. Accounting for Consumption Taxes
Consumption taxes are accounted for by the tax exclusicn method

H. Provisions

(1) Allowance for doubtful actounts:
The allowance for doubtful accounts is provided to prepare for
ciedil lusses on sales recelvables, loans, and so forth, It1s stated
as the projected unrecoverahle amount, calculated based on the
historical default rate for general receivables and on individual
collectability for specific receivables such as doubtful accounts.

{2) Provision for bonuses:
To provide for bonuses paid to employees, provision for bonuses
is recorded as the amount of projected future payments that is
attributable to the fiscal vear under review.

{3} Pravisian for directors’ bonuses:
To provide for bonuses paid to Directors and Audit and
Supervisory Board Members, provision for bonuses is recorded
as the amount of projected future payments that 1s attributable
to the fiscal year under review

{4) Provision for directors’ retirement benefits:
To provide for the payment of retirement benefits to Directors
and Audit and Supervisory Board Members in accordance with
internal policies, certain consolidated subsidiaries record such
provisions caiculated as the estimated amount that would be
payable if all Directors and Audit and Supervisory Board members
were to retire at the balance sheet date.

(5) Prowision for stock payment:
Provision for stock payment is calculated based on the estimated
amount of shares of the Company cerrespending to the points
granted to eligible Directors and Executive Officers at the end of
the fiscal year under review, to prepare for the payment of the
Company stocks to Directors and Executive Officers based on
the Share Delivery Rules.

{6} Provision for pericdic dry docking of vessels:
Provisicn for pericdic dry docking of vessels is provided based
on the estimated amount of expenditures for periodic dry docking
in the future.

{7) Provision for losses related to contracts:
Provision for possible losses associated with the fulfillment of
fixed-term vessel charter contracts, perfermance of tease con-
tracts, or early redelivery of vessels, and purchase of non-current
assets are based on estimated amounts of future losses.

(8) Provision related to business restructuring:
Provision for losses resulting from business restructuring is
provided in preparation for estimated future losses.

{9 Provision for loss on guarantees:
Provision for possible losses on guarantees, etc, to subsidiaries
or affiliates, is recorded based on the estimated amount of

losses, individually taking into account the financial condition
etc., of the guaranteed.

I. Accounting Method for Retirement Benefits

(1) Method of attributing estimated amaounts of retirement benefits
to periods:
In calculating defined benefit obligations, the estimated amount
of retirement benefits attributed to a pericd up to the fiscal year
under review is primarily determined based on a benefit formula
basis.

{2} Amortization of unrecognized actuarial gain {loss) and prior
service cost.
Unrecognized actuarial gain (loss) is amertized in the year
following the year in which the gain or loss is recognized by the
straight-line method over a certain period (primarily eight years),
which is not more than the average remaining service period
of employees.
Prior service cost is amartized by the straight-ine methad over
a certain period (primarily eight years), which is not more than
the average remaining service periad of empleyees

J. Inceme Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries recognize future tax conse-
quences of temporary differences between assets and liabilities in
accounting and tax treatments. Deferred taxes are computed based
on the pretax income or loss included in the consclidated statement
of incorne and measured by applying currently enacted laws to the
temporary differences. The asset and liability approach 1s used to
recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future
tax conseqguences of the temporary differences between the carrying
amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.

Adoption of consolidated taxation system

The Company and some of its consclidated subsidiaries adopted
the consolidated taxation system from the consolidated fiscal
year under review, with the Cormpany as the consclidated parent
company for tax payment purposes.

Adoption of tax effect accounting for the transition frorm the
consolidated taxation system to the group tax relief system
With regard to items that were shifted to the Japanese group
tax relief systern, which was established by the "Act for Partial
Amendment of the Incorme Tax Act, etc.” (Act No. 8 of 2020}, and
those for which the consolidated taxation system was reviewed
in line with the shift to the Japanese group tax relief system, the
Company and some of its consoclidated subsidianes do not apply
the provisions of ltem 44 of “Implementation Guidance on Tax
Effect Accounting” (ASBJ Guidance No. 28, issued on February
16, 2018) in accordance with the treatrment provided for under
Item 3 of the "Practical Solution ¢n the Treatment of Tax Effect
Accounting for the Transition from the Consolidated Taxation
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System t¢ the Group Tax Sharing System” (ASBJ PITF No. 39,
issued on March 31, 2020). The amourits of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilties are instead acceunted for by following
the provisions of the tax law before the amendment.

K. Freight Revenue and Expense Recognition
Freight revenues and expenses are recognized by two different
methods depending on types of cargo transportation.
{1} Transportation by containerships:
Reverues and expenses ansimy lom ocean transportation of
containers are recognized proportionately to shipments move.
(2) Transportation by vessels other than containerships:
Revenues and expenses from transportation Dy vessels other
than containerships are principally recognized upon the voyage
completion method.

L. Method of Accounting for Material Hedge Transactions

For assets, liabilities, and planned transactions, the Company and
its consolidated subsidiaries apply hedge accounting to derivative
transactions in order to offset risks posed by fluctuations in interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates, and cash flows. In addition,
hedge accounting is also applied to derivative transactions used

to mitigate the risks of price fluctuations in fuel procurement and
others. For hedge accounting, the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries adopt a deferred hedge method that requires the
Company to mark the derivative transactions effective as hedges

to market and to defer the valuation loss/gain. For ferward foreign
exchange contracts, etc, that meet the required cenditions under the
accounting standard, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries
translate hedged foreign currency assets and liabilities at the rates
of these contracts. In addition, for interest rate swap contracts, etc.,
that meet specified conditions under the accounting standard, the
related interest differentials paid or received under the contracts

are included in the interest income/expense of the hedged financial
assets and liabilities. In addition, the following hedging methods

for various risks are utilized: interest rate swaps to hedge the rigk of
interest rate fluctuations related to borrowings, bonds, and others;
currency swap contracts, forward foreign currency exchange con-
tracts, debts, and credits in foreign currency to hedge the foreign
exchange risk associated with monetary assets and liabilities,
expected transactions, and others; and fuel swap contracts to hedge
the risk of price fluctuations in fuel oil and others. The Company and
its consolidated subsidiaries evaluate the effectiveness of hedging
methods at the end of each financial quarter, except for interest rate
swaps and interest rate caps that meet specified conditions under
the accounting standard by analyzing the ratics of the cumulative
amount of market fluctuaticn or cash flow ameng the hedging
financial instruments and the hedged items.

For foreign currency transactions, both short-term and long-term
receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into yen at exchange rates in effect at the balance
sheet date.
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However, short-term and long-term receivables and payables
covered by forward exchange contracts are translated at the
contract rates.

Any differences between the foreign exchange contract rates
and histarical rates resulting from the translation of receivables
and payables are recognized as income or expense over the lives
of the related contracts.

However, interest rate swaps, etc,, that are subject to special
accounting treatment are excluded from the abovementicned
evaluation.

Of the above hedges, all of those falling under the scope of appli-
cation of “Practical Solution on the Treatment of Hedge Accounting
for Financial instruments that Reference LIBOR" (the Accounting
Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) Practical Issues Task Force (PITF)
No. 40, issued on September 29, 2020) were subjected to special
treatment stipulated in the ahove solution. Details of hedges sub-
jected to said special treatment are as follows.

Method for hedge accounting: Deferred hedge method, special
accounting treatment

Hedging instruments: Interest rate swap, currency swap

Hedged items: Accounts payable, loans payable

Types of hedge transactions: To cancel out exchange fluciua-
tions; to secure stable cash flows

M. Per Share Information

Basic profit per share is computed by dwviding profit available to
common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding for the period, retroactively adjusted for stock or
reverse stock splits

Cash dividends per share consist of interim dividends paid during
the year and dividends to be paid after the end of the year.

When caiculating equity per sharg, the shares held by the
performance-based stock remuneration Board Incentive Plan (BIP}
trust are included in the treasury shares deducted from the total
nurmber of issued shares at the fiscal year-end. Also, when calculat-
ing profit per share, the shares held by the BIP trust are included in
the treasury shares deducted when calculating the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding for the period.

The number of treasury shares deducted when calculating equity
per share was 730 thousand shares in the previous consolidated
fiscal year and 696 thousand shares in the consolidated fiscal year
under review. Also, the average number of treasury shares for the
pericd deducted when calculating profit per share was 732 thousand
shares in the previcus consolidated fiscal year and 705 thousand
shares in the consolidated fiscal year under review.

N. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are composed of cash on hand, bank
deposits that are able to be withdrawn on demand, and short-term
investments with onginal maturities of three months or less that are
exposed to mingr value fluctuation risk.



0. Significant Accounting Estimates
(1) tmpairment losses of non-current assets
+ The amount recorded for the consolidated fiscal year under
review mainly includes ¥534,378 million ($4,826,829 thousand)
for vessels and ¥35,838 million ($323,712 thousand) for aircraft.
* Information on the significant accounting estimate

If any indicators of impairment exists for assets or asset
groups (hereinafter the "asset group™, such asset group is subject
to measurement of impairment loss 1in which the recoverable
amount is calculated based on value in use or the net selling price
at dispositicn for the asset group.

Value in use is calculated as the discounted present value for
future cash flows.

Significant assumgtions in business plans that form the basis
of future cash flows are mainly composed of market conditions
for freight and charter rates and future prospects of carge demand.

in forecasting the conditions of the shipping and air cargo
markets, the assurnptions concemning the impact of the
COVID-192 pandernic, the timng of its subsidence, and the
market trends thereafter are as foliows.

Although the timing of the subsidence of COVID-19 remains
uncertain, the Company assumes that disruptions to the logistics
network as a whole are decreasing as workers are returning to
work due to vaccinations, and that demand and supply will
gradually reach an appropriate balance.

The period to estimate the future cash flows is based on the
average remaining useful lives of vessels and aircraft within the
asset group concerned.

The Company uses discount rates derived primarily based on
capital cost.

The net selfing price at disposition is primarily estimated
hased on the valuation results made by management's experts.

In the event future prospects worsen for market conditions for
freight and charter rates and future prospects of cargo demand
or devaluation of vessels and aircraft, new or additional impair-
ment losses may be recognized.

(2) Provision for losses related to contracts associated with dry
bulk restructuring
» The provision for losses related to contracts reccrded for the
consolidated fiscal year under review was ¥42,617 million
{($384,942 thousand).
- Information on the significant accounting estmate

As part of dry bulk restructuring, which is one of the measures
in the current medium-term management plan, the Company has
made the decision to cancel time charter contracts in the future.

In order to provide for the losses arising from such redeliver-
ies, including cancellation penalties for time charter contracts, an
estimated amount of future losses is recognized as provision for
losses related to contracts.

Cancellation penalties are incurred based on the agreement
with the owners of the vessels that the Company has decided to
end its contracts.

As final agreements have not yet been reached between the
Cornpany and the owners of the vessels for some contracts as of
the end of the consolidated fiscal year under review, uncertainty
remains in the evaluation of the likelihood of the cancellation of
the contracts.

The Company evaluates such likellhood comprehensively in
view of the progress of negotiations at each company i

Furthermore, since there is no provision for cancellation '
penalties in time charter contracts, in light of the levet of cancel-
lation penalties in past cancellations, the Company estimated
contract cancellation fees based on the terms and conditions of
tirme charter contracts, current and future shipping market rates,
and vessel prices in the secend hand vessel sales market,
among others.

In forecasting the conditicns of the shipping, the assumptions
concerning the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the timing of
its subsidence, and the market trends thereafter are as follows.

Although the timing of the subsidence of CCVID-19 remains
uncertain, the Company assumes that disruptions to the logistics
network as a whole are decreasing as workers are returning to
work due to vaccinations, and that demand and supply will
gradually reach an appropriate balance.

In the event of significant deviations arising between the
actual and estimated canceliation penalties, the Company
may recognize further provisions or reverse provisions.

P. Yet to Be Adopted Accounting Standards

in the fiscal year under review, the Company had not yet adopted
the following standards
"Accounting Standard for Revenue Recognition” {Statement ;
No. 23), issued by the ASBJ on March 31, 2020, the |
“Implementation Guidance on Accounting Standard for Revenue :
Recognition” (Guidance No. 30), issued by the ASBJ on March 26,
2021, and the “Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about
Fair Value of Financial Instruments” (Guidance No. 19), issued by
the ASBJ on March 31, 2020
i} Background
The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and
the U.S -based Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
frave been jointly developing a comprehensive accounting
standard related to revenue recognition and announced a
new guidance, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
{issued as IFRS 15 by the IASB and Topic 606 by the FASB),
in May 2014. Given that JFRS 15 could be adopted effective
from fiscal years starting from January 1, 2018, or later,
and Topic 606 could be adopted effective from fiscat years
starting from Cecember 15, 2017, or later, the ASBJ also
established a cornprehensive accounting standard related
to revenue recegnition and announced it together with the
implementation guidance.
As its basic policy when developing its standard, the ASBJ
reflected the fundamental principles of IFRS 15 in order to
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ensure that financial statements disclosed in Japan would
be comparable, recognizing that as one ¢f the benefits of
maintaining censistency with this particular internationat
financial reporting standard. Furthermore, to deal with cases
of accounting entries that coulid arise in consideration of
business procedures that have been carried out in Japan in
the past, the ASBJ included alternative treatments within a
scope that would not compromise the comparability of
financial statements.
Scheduled date ot adoption
The Company plans t¢ adopt the standards, above, from April
1,2021.
i) Impact of adopting the accounting standards
At the time of preparing this report, the Company was in
the process of assessing the monetary impact of adopting
the "Accounting Standard for Revenue Recegnition” and
other related matters on its statements of consolidated
financial results.

It

Rl

"Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement”
{Staternent No. 30), "Accounting Standard for Measurernent
of Inventories” (Staterment No. 8), "Accounting Standard for
Financial Instruments” {(Statement No. 10), and "Implementaticn
Guidance on Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement”
{Guidance No. 31}, all issued by the ASBJ on July 4, 2018, and the
"Implementation Guidance on Disclosures about Fair Value of
Financial Instruments” (Guidance No. 19), issued by the ASB.J on
March 31, 2020
i) Background
The ASBJ announced the "Accounting Standard for Far Value
Measurement” and so forth having conducted initiatives to
achieve compatibility with Japanese and international account-
ing standards regarding guidance and disclosure related mainly
10 the fair values of financial instruments. The ASBJ's action
takes intc consideration the status of IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurerment under the International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and Accounting Standards Codification
Topic 820 Fair Value Measurement, in which the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the U.S -based
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASEB) offer substan-
tially the sarme guidance on measurement of fair values.
As its basic policy for developing its standard, the ASBJ
has generally incorporated all of the provisions of IFRS 13
with a view tc improving the comparability of financial state-
ments between Japanese and overseas corporations by using
a unified method for measurement. Furthermore, in consider-
ation of business proceduras that have been carried out in
Japan in the past, the ASBJ has prescribed other treatments
for indimdual items within a scope that does not substantially
compromise the comparability of financial statements.
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ii) Scheduled date of adoption
The Company will adopt the standard, above, from
April 71,2021,

i) Impact of adopting the accounting standards
At the time of preparing this report, the Company was in the
process of assessing the monetary impact of adopting the
"Accounting Standard for Fair Value Measurement” and
other refated matters on its statements of consolidated
financial results.

Q. Changes in Presentation
(1) Consolidated Statement of Income

"Derivative losses,” which was included in "Other” under "Non-
operating expenses” in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020,
has been presented as a separate item in the consolidated fiscal
year under review because the amount exceeded 10% of total
non-operating expenses. The consolidated financial statements
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 were restated in order
ta reflect this change in the presentation method.

Consequently, the previously stated amount of ¥4,158 million
for “Other” under “Non-operating expenses” in the consclidated
staternent of income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020
has been reclassified as "Derivative losses” totaling ¥2,739 mitlion
and "Other” amounting to ¥1,4719 million.

“Gain on sales of investment securities;” which was presented
as a separate item under “Other gains” in the consolidated state-
ment of income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, has
been included in "Other” in the consolidated fiscal year under
review because the amount was less than 10% of the total of
other gains. The consclidated financial statements for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2020 were restated in order to reflect this
change in the presentation method.

Consequently, the previously stated armount of ¥6,373 milfion
for “Gain on sales of investment securities” under "Other gains” in
the consclidated statement of income for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2020 has been reclassified as “Other”

“Loss on valuation of investment securities,” which was pre-
sented as a separate item under "Other losses” in the consoli-
dated statement of income for the fiscal year ended March 31,
2020, has been included in "Other” in the consclidated fiscal year
under review because the amount was less than 10% of the total
of other losses. The consclidated financial statements for the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 were restated in order to reflect
this change in the presentation method.

Consequently, the previously stated amount of ¥10,886 million
for “Loss on valuation of investment securities” under "Other
tosses” in the consolidated statement of income for the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2020 has been reclassified as "Other”




{2) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
"Increase (decrease) in provision for losses related to contracts,”
which was included in "Other” under "Operating activities” in the
fiscal year ended March 31, 2020, has been presented as a separate
itern in the consolidated fiscal year under review because the
armount became material. The consolidated financial staternent
for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2020 was restated in order
to reflect this change in the presentation method.

Consequently, the previcusly stated amount of ¥(16,001)
million for "Other, net” under "Cperating activities” in the consoli-
dated statement of cash flows for the fiscal year ended March
31, 2020, has been reclassified as "Increase {decrease} in provi-
sion for losses related to contracts,” totaling ¥{12,386) million
and “Other, net” amounting to ¥(3,614) million.

{3) Application of the "Accounting Standard for Disclosure of
Accounting Estimates”
The Company has adopted the "Accounting Standard for
Disclosure of Accounting Estimates” {ASBJ Statement No. 31,
1ssued on March 37, 2020) from the consolidated financial state-
ments for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, whereby notes
on significant accounting estimates are presented in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

However, pursuant to the transitional provisions set out In

Paragraph 11 of the Accounting Standard, these notes do not
include notes pertaining to the previous consolidated fiscat year

R. Additional infoermation

(1) Transactions Related to the Board incentive Plan Trust
Based on the resolution at the General Meeting of Shareholders
hetd on June 20, 2016, the Company introduced the "Board

Incentive Plan Trust” {the "Plan’) as a performance-based stock
remuneration plan, and the Plan was extended at the Board of
Directors meeting held in March 2019, Accounting treatments
related to the trust are in accordance with ‘Practical Solution
on Transactions of Delivering the Company's Own Stock to
Employees, etc through Trusts” {(PITF No. 30, March 26, 2015}

The Plan is a stock remuneration plan for Directors and
Executive Officers of the Company (excluding Cutside Directors,
Directors and Executive Officers who are non-residents of Japan,
fareign nationals, and/or directors of listed subsidiaries; hereinaf-
ter collectively referred to as "Director(s), etc.”), wherein a trust
established by the Company {Board Incentive Plan Trust)
acquires the Company's shares using the cash contributed by the
Company. Through this trust, the Company's shares and money
equivalent 1o the amount obtained by converting the Company’s
shares into cash corresponding to the poinis granted based on
the degree of achievement of business performance of each
fiscal year and according to individual pasition of the recipient
are delivered and paid to Directors, ete.

The Company's shares remaining in the Trust are recorded
under equity as treasury stock, calculated based on the total
book value {excluding incidental expenses) of the shareg in the
Trust. As of March 31, 2027, the Company's treasury stock con-
sisted of 696 thousand shares with a total book value of ¥1,220
million, ($11,019 thousand), ecmpared writh 730 thousand shares
and a total book value of ¥1,280 million as of March 31, 2020.

In addition, the estimated amount of the above Directors’
remuneration allotted at the end of the consolidated fiscal year
under review was recorded as provision for stock payment.

4, Financial Instruments

{1} Disclosure on Financial Instruments

a. Policy on financial instruments
Internal funding provides the Company and its consolidated sub-
sidiaries with some of the funds they require for capital expendi-
tures for vessels, aircraft, and transport equipment, as well as
working capital. Other funds are grocured from outside sources.
Methods of raising funds include leans from banks and other
financial institutions, as well as issuing corporate bonds. Funds
are invested mainly in short-term deposits. The Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries utilize derivatives to hedge nsks men-
tioned below and do not engage in speculative financial
transactions.

b. Contents and risks of financial instruments
Notes and operating accounts recevable—trade are subject
to client credit risk. In addition, foreign currency-dencminated
transactions are subject to foreign exchange rate risk

Investment securties include held-to-maturity debt securities
and corporate shares. The Company and its consclidated subsid-
iaries mainly used the current value method to evaluate invest-
ment securities that have explicit fair values, taking as the fair
value the average market price during the one-month period
preceding the end of the fiscal year. Consequently, shifts in stock
market conditions could affect the operating performance and
financial condition of the Company and its consclidated
subsidiaries.

Notes and operating accounts payable—trade are settled in
the short term. Of these, transactions denominated in foreign
currencies are subject to foreign exchange rate risk.

Loans payable are subject to interest rate risk, and the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries utilize derivative
financial instruments to hedge against these risks.

As for derivative financial instruments, to avert interest rate
risks associated with loans payable, the Company and its
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consolidated subsidiaries utilize interest rate swap contracts.
To avert foreign exchange risk associated with foreign currency
assets and liabilities, the Company and its consalidated subsid-
raries utilize forward foreign exchange contracts and currency
swap contracts. Similarly, to deal with the risk of price fluctua-
tions in fuel and chartered freight, the Company and its consoli-
dated subsidiaries utilize fuel swap contracts, freight
(chartered-freight) forward transactions, and other methods.

The details of hedge accounting for derivative financial instru-
ments are described below. Methods for evaluating effectiveness
of hedging are described above in “3. Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, L. Method of Accounting for Material Hedge
Transactions.”

{1} Hedge accounting method
The Cempany and its consolidated subsidiaries primarily
adopt deferral hedge accounting that requires marking the
dervative financial instruments effective as hedges to market,
and deferring the valuation loss/gan. Faor forward foreign
exchange contracts, etc., that meet the required conditions for
designation accounting under the accounting standard, the
Company and its consolidated subsidiaries translate hedged
foreign currency assets and liabilities at the rates of these
contracts. In addition, for interest rate swap contracts that
meet specified conditions for exceptional accounting under
the accounting standard, the related interest differentials paid
or received under the contracts are included in the interest
income/expense of the hedged financial assets and liabilities.

(2) Principal hedging methods and items hedged

Principal hedging methods Principal items hedged

Currency swap contacts Loans payable and receivable

Interest rate swap contracts Loans payable and receivable

Fuel swap contracts Purchase price of fuel

Forward foreign exchange Forecasted foreign currency

contracts transactions, investment in
overseas subsidianes

(3) Risks inherent in derivative transactions
Derivative transactions are subject to inherent market risk,
which is derived from future changes in market prices
{currency rates, interest rates, commodity prices and share
prices), and credit risk, which arises from the counterparties
becoming unable to perform their contractual chligations.
The derivative financial instruments utilized by the Company
and its consolidated subsidianes are anly those that offset the
fluctuation in fair value of the underlying financial assets and
liablities, thereby, the Company and its consolidated subsid-
iaries are not exposed to material market risk. The counterpar-
ties in the derivative transactions are financial institutions with
high credit ratings, implying that credit risk is immaterial.
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¢. Risk management for financial instruments

(3) Credit risk management
The Cormpany utilizes credit managerment regulations to
minimize its risk on notes and operating accounts receivable-
trade and long-term loans receivable. In terms of held-to-
rmaturity debt securities, in line with asset management
regulations, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries
held only highly rated debt securities, so credit risk is
negligible.

{2) Market risk management
To hedge exchange rate fluctuation risk associated with
foreign currency assets and liabilities, the Company and its
consolidated subsidiaries make use of forward foreign
exchange contracts, currency swap contracts, and other
methods.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries utilize
interest rate swaps and other methods te avert the fluctuaticn
risks of interest paid on loans payable.

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries periodi-
cally ascertain the price of short-term and long-term invest-
ment securities and the financial conditions of their issuers
{corporate business partners).

The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries review
the status of their holdings in instruments cther than held-to-
maturity debt securities on an ongoing bass, taking into con-
sideration their relationships with their corporate business
partners.

The derivative transactions of the Company and its consol-
idated subsidiaries follow the internal approval process speci-
fied in the Company’s Rules for Risk Management Employing
Financial Instruments and other rules and regulations, and
are subject to internal controls operated principally by the divi-
sions in charge of accounting. In addition, to prevent improper
transactions, the back-office function for these transactions is
performed by personnel of the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries who are not directly involved in the transactions.
Information regarding the amounts, etc., of derivative transac-
tion contracts is reported reqularly to the Board of Directors.

(@ Managernent of liquidity risk associated with capital raising
activities
Cash planning is made and updated by the financial division
of the Company on a timely basis based on reports from
business divisions of the Company, and the Company also
enters into commitment-line contracts with a number of finan-
cial institutions in order to meet unexpected cash demand.




d. Supplementary explanation of fair value of financial instru-
ments and others
The fair value of financial instruments includes, in addition to the
value determined based on market prices, valuations calculated
on areasonable basis if no market price is available. However, as

(2) Disclosure of the Fair Value of Financial Instruments and Others

certain variables are used for these calculations, the result of

such calculations may vary if different assumptions are used.
The contract amounts of interest rate swap transactions

and currency swap transactions do not represent the amounts

exchanged by the parties and do not measure the Company’s and

its consolidated subsidiaries’ exposure to credit or market risk.

The table below shows the book value of financial instruments as indicated in the consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020,
as well as their fair values and unrealized gains or losses. Note that financial instruments for which fair value cannot be reliably determined are
not included in this table {refer to Note b).

Millens of yen Thousands of U S dolfars {Note 2)
2021 2020 2021
Book value Fair vaiue Difference Book value Fa value Difference Bock value Fair value Difference
" Cash and deposits ¥ 107369 ¥ 107,369 ¥ - ¥ B1861 ¥ 81861 ¥ - § 969824 § 969824 § -
Z Notes and operating accounts
receivable-trade 234,909 - - 791,813 - - 2,121,845 - -
Allowance for doubtful
accounts ¥ {1,074) - - (8086) - - {9,708} - -
Balance 233,834 233,834 - 190,506 150,906 - 2,112,136 2,112,136 -
(3 Short-term and long-term
investment securities (Note §)
Awvailable-for-sale securities 83,890 83,890 - 73298 73,298 - 757,749 757,749 -
Investments in affiliates 17,697 10,624 (7.072) 16809 8220 {8,588) 159,853 95,970 {63,883)
@ Long-term loans receivable 21,393 - - 11,876 - - 193,235 - -
Allowance for doubtful
accounts *' {751) - - (553) - - (6,784} - -
Balance 20,641 22,403 1,761 11322 13,147 1.825 186,451 202,366 15915
Total 463,433 458,123 (5,310} 374,198 367,434 (6.763) 4,186,015 4,138,047 (47,968)
@ Notes and operating accounts
payable-trade 168,690 168,690 - 137,911 137811 - 1,523,711 1,523,711 -
& Current portion of
bonds payable 25,000 25,000 - 20,000 20,000 - 225815 225,815 -
3 Short-term [oans payable 161,045 161,045 - 162,575 162,675 - 1,454,661 1,454,661 -
@ Commercial papers - - - 19,000 19,000 - - - -
% Leases liabilities (current) 19,477 19,477 - 18,740 18,740 - 175,931 175,931 -
® Bonds payable 107,000 108,275 1,275 132,000 133180 1180 966,489 978,007 11,518
(i Long-term loans payable 560,913 568,452 7.539 616,234 626,263 10028 5,066,509 5,134,609 68,100
(& Leases liabilities (non-current) 77,707 84,149 6,442 81,203 86,775 5571 701,897 760,088 58,190
Total 1,119,833 1,135090 15,256 1187764 1204545 16780 10,115,016 10,252,825 137,809
Derivative financial instruments *2 {11,064) (11,064) - {5,199} (5,199} - {99,944) {99,944} -

+1 Anindwidual listing of alowance for doubtful accounts on notes and operating accounts recewvable—trade and long-term loans receivable has been omitied.

2 Amourt of dervative financial instrurnents 1s net of related assets and habilities

a. Calculation method for the fair value of financial instruments
and matters concerning marketable securities and derivative

transactions

Assets
(1) Cash and deposits

These assets are stated at bock value as they are settled in
the short term and their farr values approximate book values.
(@) Notes and operating accounts receivable-trade
These assets are stated at book value as they are settled in
the short term and their fair values approxirmate book values.

Claims with default possibility are stated at adjusted bock value.

The expected amount of doubtful acceunts on these assets is

calculated based on either the present value of expected future

cash flows or expected recoverable amount of their collateral
or guarantees; hence, their fair values approximate their book
values at the closing date, less the current expected amount of
doubtful accounts.
(@ Short-term and leng-term investment securities
Shares are stated at the stock exchange quoted price and bonds
are stated at either the stock exchange quoted price or the price
presented by transacting financial institutions.
(@) Long-term loans receivaple
Long-term loans receivable with variable interest rates are stated
at book value. The interest rate on these assets reflects the
rnarket rate in the short term; therefore, their fair values approx-
rmate book values. Those with fixed-interest rates are stated at
fair value, which is calculated by discounting the principal and
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interest using the assumed rate applied to a similar type of new (7) Long-term Yoans payable

lnan. Meanwhile, loans with default possibility are stated at Lang-term loans payable with variable interest rates are stated at
adjusted book value. The expected amount of doubtful accounts book value as the interest rate on these loans reflects the market
on these assets is calculated based on either the present value of rate in the short term and their fair values approximate book
expected future cash flows or expected recoverable amount of values. Long-term loans payable with fixed interest rates are
their collateral or guarantees; hence, their fair values approximate stated at present value. The present value is calculated by
their book values at the closing date, less the current expected discounting a periodically divided portion of the principal and
amount of doubtful accounts. interest of these loans *, using the assumed rate applied to a
similar loan.
Liabilities * As to the fong-term |oans payable involved in the interest rate swap agreermnent that meets

the reguirements for exceptional accounting (refer to "6 Derwatives"), the total ameunt of

@ Notes and operating accounts payable-trade, @ Current portion prncipal and interest income at the post-swap rate 15 applied

of bonds payable, 3} Short-term loans payable, &) Commercial
papers and (&) Leases liabilities {current)
These assets are stated at book value as they are settled inthe
short term and therr fair values approximate book values.
(&) Bonds payable
The fair value of the corporate bonds issued by the Company is
calculated based on the market price.

Leases liabilities {non-current)
The fair value of each lease liabilities is stated at its present
value, which is calculated by discounting the total amount of
principal and interest, using the assumed rate applied to a
similar type of new lease transaction.

Derivative financial instruments
Refer to “6. Derivatives”

b. Financial instruments for which fair value cannot be reliably determined

Thousands of

Milhons of yen .S, dollars (Mote 2}
2021 2020
Book value Book value
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries and affiliates ¥467,034 ¥348992 —
Shares in unlisted companies 7808 7814
Others 2,607 2,486 9K
Total - 477,449 355293 AREASTOGIHIGR

As these instruments do not have readily available fair values, and their fair values cannot be refiably determined, the'y are not included in
“(3) Short-term and long-term investment securities.”

¢, Maturity analysis for financial assets and securities with contractual maturities

Millions of yen

2021 ’ 2020
More than More than h Mare than More than
One year, five years, one year, five years.
Within within within More than Withir within within More than
one year five years ten years ten years one year five years ien years tenyears
Cash and deposits ¥107,369 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ 81861 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Notes and operating accounts receivable-trade 234,679 230 - - 190,853 949 - -
Short-term and long-term investment securities:
Held-te-maturity debt securities
{government bonds) - - - - - - - -
Held-te-maiturity debt securities
{carporate bonds) - - - - - - - -
Held-to-maturity debt securities (others} - - - - - - - -
Avallable-for-sale securities with maturity
dates {governrment bonds) - - - - - - - -
Available-for-sale securities with maturity
dates (others} - - - _ _ _ B _
Long-term loans receivable B - 8,083 11,899 1,410 - 5,5_553“_ 1779 4512
Total 342,048 8313 11,899 1,410 272725 6,532 1,779 4512
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Thousands of U.S dallars {Note 2)

2021
More than More than
ohe year, five years,
Within withim within More than
o e one year five years ten years ten years
Cash and deposits 4 969,824 & - 8 - $ -
Notes and operating accounts receivable-trade 2,119,766 2,079 - -
Short-term and long-term investment securities:
Held-to-maturity debt securities
(grvernment bonds) - - - -
Held-to-maturity debt securities
(corporate bonds) - - - -
Held-to-maturity debt secunities {others) - - - -
Available-for-sale securities with maturity
dates {government bonds) - - - -
Available-for-sale securities with maturity
dates [others) - - - -
Long-term loans receivable - 73,016 107,482 12,736
3,089,590 75,096 107,482 12,736

Iqtal

d. Maturity analysis for corporate bonds and long-term Joans after the balance sheet date

Milions of yen

2021

Within ore year

More than one year,
within two years

More than two years,
within three years

More than three years,
within four years

More than four years,
within five years

More than five years

Current portion of bonds payable ¥ 25,000 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Short-term loans payabie 161,045 - - - - -
Commercial papers - - - - - -
Leases liabilities {current) 19477 - - - - -
Bonds payable - 30,000 10,000 33,000 - 34,000
Long-term leans payabie - 119,495 70,460 51,737 37,490 281,728
Leases liabilites {nen-current} - 15,026 15,074 11,993 7,557 28,054
Total . 205,523 164,522 95,535 96,731 45,048 343,782
Thousands of U5 dollars (Note 2)
2021
More than one year, More than two years,  More than three years, More than four years,
Within one year within two years within three years within four years within five years More than five years
Current portion of bonds payable $ 225815 $ - $ - $ - - $ -
Short-term lcans payable 1,454,661 - - - - -
Commercial papers - - - - - -
Leases liabiliies (current) 175,931 - - - - -
Bonds payahle - 270,978 90,326 298,076 - 307,198
Long-term doans payable - 1,079,389 636,445 467,326 338,638 2,544,739
Leases labilities (non-current) - 135,732 136,163 108,334 68,262 253,404
Total 1,856,408 1,486,069 862,935 873,736 406,901 3,105,252
Millions of yen
2020
More than ong year, hore than two years,  More than three_);;ar;-, More thar four years,
Within one year withm two years wilhin three years within tour years withir five years More than five years
Current portion of bondsBE;éE\e ¥ 20,000 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Short-term loans payable 162,675 - - - - -
Comnercial papers 19,000 - - - - -
Leases labilities (current) 18,740 - - - - -
Bonds payable - 25,000 30,000 10,000 33000 34,000
Long-term loans payable - 159,981 122,361 67,323 41229 225338
Leases liabilities {non-current) - 15088 14129 14,587 8126 29,291
Total 220415 ) 200,049 166,491 §1,910 82355 288,629
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5. Securities

(1) Short-term and long-term investrnent securities held-to-maturity with fair value as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, are nct applicable

(2) Short-term and longterm investment securities classified as available-for-sale securities with fair value as of March 31, 2021 and 2020,
are summarized as follows:

Millions of yen Thousands of US dollars {Note 2}
2021 2020 ) 2021
Acquisition . Acquistion Acquisition )
Book value amsts Difference Book value costs Dn'ferenc? Bonk value conts Ditference

Securities for which book value
exceeds acquisition costs:

Corporate shares ¥64,095 ¥30,288 ¥33,807 ¥47973 ¥26 496 ¥21,476 §578,952 5273532 3305370
Government bonds and others - - - - - - - _ -
Corporate bonds - - - - — - - _ -

Others 173 147 25 157 138 19 1,565 1,330 234

Subtotal 64,269 30,435 33,833 48,131 26,634 21496 580,517 274,912 305,605

Securities for which book value iz
equal to or less than acquisition
costs:
Corporate shares 19,615 26,074 {6.458) 25160 30,937 (5777 177,181 235,519 (58,337)
Government bonds and others - - - — _ _ - _ -
Carporate bonds - - - - - - - -

Others 5 7 @ 6 8 2 49 68 (18)
Subtotal 19,621 76,081 (6.460) 25,67 30946 (5779) 177231 235587  (58,355)
Total 83,890 56,517 27373 73298 57,581 15,717 757,749 510,500 247,249

(3) Proceeds, gains, and losses an sales of available-for-sale securities in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, are summarized
as follows:

Thousahds of

Millions of yen U.S dollars {Note 2}
2021 2020 2021
Proceeds from sales - ¥2,529 ¥15224 $22,849
Gross realized gains 131 6,373 1,637
Gross reahzed losses {0) (1)44 N

(4) Impairment losses were recognized in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, and were recorded as a loss on valuation of investment
securities in the amount of ¥4,282 million ($38,683 thousand).
When processing impairment, as a general rule, if the fair value at the end of the period has fallen by 50% or more compared with the acqui-
sition price, the asset is impaired by the amount deemed necessary considering its recoverability and so forth.
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6. Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments with fair value as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, are summarized &s follows:

{1} Derivative transactions not qualifying for hedge accounting

Millions of yen

Thousands of US dellars {Note 2)

2021 ’ 2020

2021

Contracts Conlracts
outstanding Valuation outstanding
Contracts {mare than gains Contracts  {more than
outslanding  cne year) Farr valug (losses} outstanding  one year) Far value

Valuation
gains
{losses)

Contracts

outstanding Valuation

Contracts  {move than

gains

outstanding  one year) Fair value {losses)

a. Currency-refated
forward foreign currency
exchange contracts:
Buy U.S dollar,
sell Japanese yen ¥ - - ¥ - ¥ - ¥34632 ¥ - ¥ 79
Sell U.S. dollar,
buy Japanese yen 13,165 - (94) {94} 9549 - (113
Sell Japanese yen, buy Euro 4,662 - 8 8 2179 - 16
Sell Thai baht,
buy Japanese yen 8,049 - 72 72 2173 - ki
Others 7.949 - (94) (94) 7,530 - 47
Currency swaps:
Recelve Japanese yen,
pay U S dollar - - - - - - -
Recewe U 5. dollar,
pay Japanese yen - - - - _ _ _
Receive New Taiwan dollar,
pay Japanese yen 1,552 - 12 12 - - -
Recewve Thai baht,
pay Japanese yen 1,990 - 38 38 2388 - {117
Recewve Thai baht.
pay Euro - - - - 488 - 17
Interest rate currency swaps:
Receive U'S dollar floating,
pay Mexican Peso fixed 248 - 29 29 219 210 £6

113)
16

an
47

66

118,516 - (853)
42,116 - 73

72712 - 653
71,807 - (852}

14018 - 114

17,988 - 348

2,244 = 2665

(853)
73

653
(852)

114

348

266

37,619 - @n @) s 20 7

21

339,803 - {245)

{249)

b. Interest rate-related
Interest rate Swaps:
Receive fixed, pay floating - - - - - - -
Receive floating, pay fixed - - - - - _ -

¢. Commodity-related
Market transactions

Freight (chartered—freight}
forward transactions

Forward chartered—freight
agresments on buyer’s side 738 - (75} (75) 30 - {5
Forward chartered-freight
agreements on sefler's sige 33N - (3054)  {3,054) 247 - 61
Off~market transactions

Freight {chartered-freight)
forward transactions'

Forward chartered-freight
agreements on buyer's side 1,062 - 303 303 215 - {67

Forward chartered—-freight
agreements on selier's side 11,912 - (2,482} (2,482) 1,579 - 418

Fuel swaps
Recewe floating, pay fixed 681 - (21) (21) 1522 18 1647)

{5

61

(67)

418

(647)

6,666 - (680)

{680}

30454 - (27585) (27.585)

9.598 - 2743

2743

107,597 - (22424) (22424)

6,159 - (196)

(196)

17,766 - (5330) (5330) 3505 18 247

(240)

160475 - (48143) (48,143)

*Method for calculating denvative amnunts as of the balance sheet dates: The amounts of market transactions were calculated according to the closing prices of relevant stock exchanges as
of the final day of the Campany's fiscal year, while amounts of off-market transactions were caloulated based on the values and discounted present values reported by the financial nstitutes

hanrdling the transactions.
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{2) Derivative transactions qualifying for hedge accounting

Millons of yen

Thousands of U 5 dollars {Note 2)

2021 2020 2021
Contracts Contrasts Contracts
outstanding autstanding outstanding
Contracts  (more than Contracts  {mnre than Contracts  {more than
outstanding oneyear] Farvalue outstandng oneyear) Farvalue  outsianding  oneyear)  Fairvalue
a. Currency-related
Derivative transactions qualifying for general accounting policies,
deferral hedge accounting
Farward foraign currency
exchange contracts: Principal iterns hedged:
investment for equity of
3ell 1.8, dollar, buy Japanese yen overseas subsidiary ¥104517 ¥ 675 ¥(5970) ¥ 80590 ¥ 1308 ¥ 56 § 044067 $ 6101 $(53,926)
Sell Euro, buy Japanese yen 5103 - (220) 5,566 - {78) 46,098 - {1,994)
Others 167 - 8 a1 0 0 1513 - 75
Currency swaps: Principal items hedged:
Recewe U S. dollar,
pay Japanese yen Charterage/ 12267 12267 (144) - - - 10809 110809 (1,308
Loans recevables
Receive Singapore dollar, Loans payanle
payU s dollar 159 85 {12) 206 147 (29) 1436 862 (117}
Others B 14 3 14 - - - 131 32 13
Foreign exchange contracts and other derivative transactions
qualifying for designation accounting
Forward foreign currency
exchange contracts: Principal items hedged'
Buy US dollar, selt Japanese yen Forecasted capital expenditures 28,864 15,566 2,465 42364 29407 2,244 260,723 140,604 22269
Sell U S. dodlar, buy Japanese yen 1,204 - (2 1384 - 2} 10,875 - (23)
Integration treatment of interest rate and currency swaps B
(qualitying for designation accounting and exceptional accounting)
Interest rate and currency swaps: Poncipal items hedged:
Recewve fixed U.3. dollar.
____ pay floating Japanese yen Accounts payable 680 - 83 2,041 680 209 6,147 - 751
152979 28,608 (3779) 132044 31544 2400 1,381,803 258410 (34134)
b. Interest rate-related '
Derivative transactions gualifying for general accounting policies,
deferral hedge accounting
Interest rate swaps’ Principal items hedged
Receive fixad, pay floating 10,000 10,000 T4 10,000 10,000 951 90,326 90,326 6,999
Recewve floating, pay fired Long-term loans payahle 96,878 75918 {4,260) 111,231 95647 16.595) 875066 685739 (38483)
Interest rate swap derivative transactions qualifying
for exceptional accounting
Interest rate swaps Principal items hedged.
Receive fixed, pay floating Long-term loans payable 25000 25000 . 25000 25000 " 225815 225815 "
Recewe floating, pay fixed 29828 25114 34341 29,828 269428 226,853
) 161,706 136,033 (3,485) 180572 161.476 (5.644) 1460635 1228734 {31,483)
c. Commodity-related
Derivative transactions qualifying for general accounting policies,
deferral hedge accounting
Freight (chartered-freight)
forward transactions: Principal items hedged,
Ferward chartered-freight
agreements on seller's side Charterage 6,064 - {543} - - - 54,782 - {4910)
Forward chartered-freight
agresments on buyer's side Charterage 109 - 29 - - - 987 - 265
Fuel swaps Principal tems hedged:
Receve floating, pay fixed Fuel 1,280 13 108 72 - {6} 11,570 117 979
Fuef ol collar transactions ™ Principal items hedged:
Buy call option, selt put option Fuel 4,076 - 92 9,990 - {1,810} 36,822 - 837
Freight (chartered-freight) collar transactions.*
Buy put option, sell call option Charterage 4,764 3,405 (76) 6,020 4683 288 43,038 30,756 {692)
16,296 3418 {389) 16,083 4683 (1.528) 147,201 30,873 (3520)

*1 Farr values as of the date of the financial statement were calculated based on the values reported by the financial institutes handling the transactions and the discounted present values

2 As exceplional accounting for Interest rate swaps 5 handled tagether with the Jong-term loans payable hadged, thewr fair value 1s included i that of the long-term loans payable

3 Fuel ol collar ransactions and freight (chartered-freight) cellar transactions are zero-cost option transactions, and call options and put eptions are shown as a lumnp sum because they are

inciuded in integrated contracts
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7. Inventories

Inventories as of March 31,2027 and 2020, consisted of the following-

Thousands of

Millions of yen U5, dollars {Note 2)
2021 2020 2021
Products and goods ¥ 1818 ¥ 1778 $ 16427
Work in progress 676 583 6,114
Rjn“vl_materiars, fuel, and supplies 35,123 30,170 317,257

8. Accumulated Depreciation

As of March 31, 2021 and 2020, accumulated depreciation of vessels, property, plant, and equipment is as follows:

Thousands of

Milkons of yen U5 dellars (Note 2}
2021 2020 2021
Accumulated depreciation B ¥1,059,036  ¥1042003 $9,565,860

9. Investment in Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Amounts corresponding to unconsolidated subsidiaries and affilistes as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, are as follows:

Thousands of

Mithans of yen 115 dollars (Note 23
2021 2020 2021
Investment secunties {stocks} ¥484,731 ¥365801 $4,378,388
Other investments and other assets {(investment in capital) 10,467 10,301 94,547
(Of which, amount invested in companies under_@nt contrel) 165,478 170211 1,494,698

10. Investment and Rental Property

The Company and some of its consolidated subsidianes own offices and other buildings (including fand) for earning rent, and other purposes
in Tokyo and other regions Profit from rental of these properties (with main rental income recorded as revenues and main rental expense
recorded as costs and expenses) 1n the censolidated fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, totaled ¥3,484 million {($31,472 thousand), and profit
from sales totaled ¥25,682 million {$231,981 thousand) {with gain on sales as other gains and loss an sales as other losses).

The amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets, the increase (decrease} during the fiscal years ended March 31, 2027 and 2020, and
the fair values of the relevant investment and rental property as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, are as follows

Thousands of

Milhons of yen U 5. dollars {Note 2}
2021 2020 2021
Amount recorded i consolidated balance sheet T
Balance at beginning of year ¥ 45949 ¥ 46306 $ 415,040
Increase (decrease) during the fiscal year {737) (357} (6,661)
Balance at end of year 45211 45,249 408,379
Er_yalue as of current fiscal year end - 123,866 133,601 1,118,834

*1 The amount recorded in the consolidated balance sheet 1s the acquisition cost, net of accurnulated depreciation and impairment losses
2. Of the increase {decrease) during the fiscal vear ended March 31, 2021, the decrease of ¥=1,274 million ($-11,511 thousand) was primarily due to depreciation
3 The fair value as of the fiscal year end is the ameunt calculated pnimaridy based on the Real Estate Appraisal Standard (including agjustrnents made using mdexes)
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11. Deferred Capital Gains

Under certain conditions, such as exchanges of fixed assets of similar kinds, gains frem insurance claims, and sales and purchases resulting
frorn expropriation, Japanese tax laws permit companies to defer gains arising from such transactions by reducing the cost of the assets
acquired. As such, deferred capital gains from insurance claims were deducted from the cost of properties acquired in replacement, which

amounted to ¥5,730 mullion ($51,758 thousand) and ¥5,839 million as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

12. Short-Term and Long-Term Debt

{1) Bonds as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, consisted of the fallowing:

Millions of ven

Thousands of
U S. dollars {Note 2)

2021 2026 2021
Interest rate Matunty date

Unsecured Straight Bonds No 23 236% June 7,2024 ¥ 10,000 ¥ 10,000 $ 90,326
Unsecured Straight Bonds No 25 2.65% June 22, 2026 10,000 10,000 90,326
Unsecured Straight Bonds No 31+ 1218% September 9, 2021 25,000 25,000 225815
Unsecured Straight Bonds No 32 213% September 9, 2031 10,000 10,000 90,326
Unsecured Straight Bonds No 35 1.177% June 17,2022 10,000 10,000 90,326
Unsecured Straight Bonds No 37% 0.939% September 11, 2020 - 20,000 -
Unsecured Straight Bonds Ne. 38 0.39% May 31, 2022 20,000 20,000 180,652
Unsecured Straight Bonds No 39 0.53% May 31, 2024 10,000 10,000 90,326
Unsecured Straight Bonds No 40 0.29% May 24, 2023 10,000 10,000 50,326
Unsecured Straight Bonds No 41 G 29% August 29, 2024 13,000 13,000 117423
Unsecured Straight Bonds No. 42 0.65% August 29,2029 14,000 14,000 126,456
Total - 132,000

152,000 1,192,304

* The Company plans to redeern Unsecured Straight Bonds No 31 and No 37 within one year

The aggregate annual maturities of convertible bonds and bonds as of March 31, 2021, were as follows:

Millions of yen

More than one year,
Within one year within iwo years

More than two years,
within three years

Maore than three years,
within four years

More than four years,
within five years

¥25,000 ¥30,000

¥10,000

¥33,000

¥_

Thausands of U.S. dollars (Note 2)

More than one year,

Within one year within twa years

Meore than two years,
within three years

More than three years, "

within four years

More than four years,
withrt flve years

$225,815 $270,978

$90,326

$298,076

s_
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{2) Loans payable, leases liabilities (current / non-current), and other interest-bearing liabilities as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows.

tillons of yen

Thousands of
J & dollars (Nate 2}

2021 2020 2021

Classification Average interest rate Repayment deadline o
Shost-term loans payable{including overdraft) 1.55% - ¥ 6,536 ¥ 67,661 $ 59,040
Current portion of long-term loans payable 073% - 154,509 95013 1,395,621
Leases liabilities {current) 278% - 19,477 18,740 175,931
Long-term leans payable 0.97% 2022-2036 560,913 616,234 5,066,509
Leases liabilities (nen-current) 288% 2022-2061 77,707 81,203 701,897
Othor interest bearing liabilities

Commercial papers - - - 19,000 -

Current portion of long-term accounts payable 204% - 3,732 1,361 33,709

Leng-term accounts payable - - - 3,680 -
Total 822875 502,894 7.432,710

Average interest rale s the weighted average interest rate for amounts outstanding as of the fiscal year end

Long-term loans payable, Leases liabilities (non-current), and long-term accounts payable {excluding current portion) scheduled for repayment

within five years from March 31, 2021, are as follows:

Millons of yen

Mere than one year,
within two years

Mcore than two years,
within three years

“More than three years,
within four years

More than four years
within five years

Long—téfm loans payable
Leases hablities (non-current)

¥119,495
15026

¥70,450
15,074

¥51,737
11,993

¥37,490

7,557

Thousands of U8 dollars (Note 2)

More than one year,
within two years

More than two years,
within three years

More than tnree years,
within four years

More than four yeais,
within five years

Long-termn loans payable
Leases liabilities (non-current)

$1,079,359
135,732

$636,445
136,163

$467,326
108,334

$338,638

68,262

13. Pledged Assets and Secured Liabilities

As of March 31, 2021, the following assets were pledged as collateral for short-term loans payable, long-term loans payable, and others:

Fledged assets

het book vafue

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U8 dollars {Note 2)

Cash and deposits ¥ 3768 $ 34,039
Notes and operating accounts receivabie-trade 5,366 48,477
Inventories 199 1,804
Deferred and prepaid expenses 182 1,652
Vessels* 88,204 796,720
Buildings and structures 1,908 i7.210
Machinery, eguipment and vehicles 7197 65,016
Furniture and fixtures 10 98
Land 648 5,856
Construction in progress 237 2,149
“Other” of vessels, property, plant and equipment 108 980
Software 161 1.463
Investment securities* 97,631 881,871
"Other” of investments and cther assets 367 3,315
Total B 205,993 1,860,657
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Thousands of

Secured lhabilities Millions of yen U.S. dollars (Note 2)
Notes and operating accounts payable - trade ' ¥ 19 $ 176
Short-term loans payable 13,481 121,776
Lease habthties of current labilibes 189 1715
Long-term loans payable 83,514 754,354
Lease liahilities of non-current izhilities o 2,319 20,950
Total ’ ) 99,525 898,972

* Vessels include ¥118 million ($1,067 thousand) and investment securities include ¥83,313 mullion {$752,629 thousand) pledged as collateral for the debt of affilates, etc

14. Supplementary Information on Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(1) Cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying consolidated statement of cash flows for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, are
reconciled to cash and deposits reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, as follows:

Thousands of

Milhons of yen U S dollars {Nale 2)
2021 " 2020 2021
Cash and deposits ¥107.369 ¥81.861 $969,824
Time deposits with a matunty of more than three months {3.775) {4,763} {34,108)
Cash and cash equivalents i 103,593 77092 935,718

{2) Important non-financial transactions
The amounts of assets and liabilities related to lease transactions are as follows:

Thousands of

Millons of yen LIS, dollars (Note 2)
] 2021 2020 2021
Amount of assets related to lease transactions ¥- ¥ 93,679 -
Amount of habilities related to lease transactions - 102,329 -

*1 the amounts of assets and liabilines related 1o lease transactions in the fiscal year under review are not presented as they are not important
2 From the previous fiscal year, NYK Group companies that prepare financial reports in accordance with International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRS) applied IFRS 16 Leases
Corsequently, for lease transactions executed by consolidated subsidiares that have adopted IFRS, the above amounts of assets and habilties related to lease transactions include
the balance at the beginning of the year added upon imitial adoption.
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15. Income Taxes

(1) Significant components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen 1.5 dallars (Note 2)
2021 2020 2021
Deferred tax assets: T .
Prowvision for bonuses ¥ 3,083 ¥ 1876 $ 27853
Net defined benefit Labilities 4,056 3,630 36,639
Impairment loss on vessels, property, plant and equipment 37,239 42,620 336,367
Losses on revaluanen of securlies 0,271 8,707 74,715
Tax loss carryforwards* 96,470 99,627 871,383
Unrealized gains on sale of vessels, property, plant and equipment 1,359 1,424 12,283
Provision for periodic dry docking of vessels 3,979 5174 35,945
Accrued expenses 493 453 4,455
Deferred loss on derivatives under hedge accounting 11,708 11,164 105,759
Allowance for doubtful accounts 2,538 1,968 22,932
Provision for losses related to Gontracts 18,862 6,594 170,381
Others 12,364 7797 111,684
Subtotal of deferred tax assets h 200,429 191,440 1,810,400
Less valuation alfowances for tax loss carryforwards* (83,938} (93,110} (758,180)
Less vatuation allowances for temporary differances (95,678} {85,864} (864,229)
Valuation allowances (179,617} (178,875} (1,622,410)
Total deferred 1ax assets - ’ 20,812 12,464 187,989
Deferred tax liabilities: -
Met defined benefit assets (14,783) (9,3586) (133,530}
Gain on securities contribution 1o employee retrement benefit trust (2,885) (2,882) {26,062}
Depreciation {1,728) (1,596) (15,612)
Reserve for reduction entry (3,731) (3771) {33,708}
valuation difference on available-for-safe securities (8.895) {5.062) (80,349)
Deferred gain on derivatives under hedge accounting {8,359) (7,006} {75.510)
Undistributed retained earnings of consolidated subsidiaries {10,330) {4,658) {93,314)
Others (28,705) (17.851) (259,281)
Total deferred tax Habilities (79.419) {52,186) (717,369)
Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets ‘ i (58607) (38721) (529,379)

*The expiration of tax loss carryforwards, the relatec valuation allowances and the resulting net deferred 1ax assets as of March 31,2027 and 2020, were as follows:

Milliorrs of yen

: After ane year After two years ’ 'Aller three years
March 31, 2020 One year ar less through two years through three years through feur years

After four years
through five years After five years Total

Deferred tax assets relating to

tax loss carryforwards* ¥ 12,265 ¥ 4078 ¥ 3,809 ¥1813 ¥ 10616 ¥ 67,044 ¥ 99,627
Less valuation allowances for

tax loss carryforwards (12,224} {4.010) {3,744) (1616} (10,610} (60,204} {93110}
Net deferred tax assets ralating 1o

tax loss carryforwards 40 57 65 197 5 5,139 6516

*The amount of deferred tax assets refating to tax loss carryforwards was calculated using statutory tax rates.

Millions of yen
&fter ane year After tao years After three years After four years

March 31,2021 One year o less thraugh twe years through thres years thraugh fauf years through five years After five years Total
Deferred tax assets relating to

tax loss carryforwards* ¥ 5,069 ¥3,823 ¥723 ¥ 10,661 ¥ 19,536 ¥ 56,655 ¥ 96,470
Less valuation allowances for

tax loss carryforwards (4,869) (3,760) (664) (10,543) (19,385) (44,714) (83,938)
Net deferred tax assets relating to

tax loss carryforwards 1899 62 59 118 151 11,941 12,532

* The amount of deferred tax assets relating to tax loss carryforwards was caleulated using statutory tax rates
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Thousands of U S dollars (Note 2}

After one year ARer two years After three years After four years

M ?[Ch 31,2021 One year or less hrough two years through three years “hraugh four years through fre years After five years Total
Deferred tax assets relating to

tax loss carryforwards* $ 45790 $ 34,533 56,534 $ 96,305 $ 176,469 $511,749 $ 871,383
Less valuation allowances for

tax loss carryforwards (43,988) (33,968) (5,998) (95,237) {175,102} (403,885) (758,180)
Met deferred tax assets relating to
tax Iress carryforwards 1,802 565 536 1,067 1,366 107,863 113,202

= The amount of deferred 1ax assets relaning to tax loss carryforwards was calculated using statutory tax rates.

{2) Reconcilialion of the slalulury inuw e Lax rate to the effective incomne tax rate for the yoars ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, wag ac follows:

2021 2020
Normal statutory income tax rate 28.8% 28 8%
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from:
Amortization of goodwill 0.4 29
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated subsidianes and affihates (26.8) 139
Permanently nan-deductible expenses for tax purposes, such as entertainment expenses 0.3 12
Changes in valuation allowance 0.5 67
Tax exemption of shipping business 0.4 3.2
Effects of foreign tax included in deductible expenses 0.3 1.5
Amount of tax effect reversal due to ehmination of loss carryforwards 57 0.8
Effect of U S tax reform {0.1) (7.5
Other 4.5 (e
Actual effective income tax rate 14.1% 60%

16. Equity

The consclidated financial statements have been reported in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Japanese Companies Act

(the “Companies Act”).

(1) Dividends

Under the Companies Act, companies can pay dividends at any time
during the fiscat year in addition to the year-end dividend upon reso-
lution at the shareholders’ meeting. For companies that meet certain
criteria, such as (a) having a Board of Directors, {b) having indepen-
dent auditors, {c) having an Audit & Supervisory Board, and (d) the
term of service of the directors being prescribed as one year rather
than the normal two-year term by articles of incorporation, the Board
of Directors may declare dividends {except for dividends in kind) at

{2) Increases/decreases and transfer of common stock,

reserve, and surplus
The Companies Act requires that an armaount equal to 10% of
dividends must be appropriated as legal retained earnings (a com-
nonent of retained earnings) or as legal capital surplus {a compo-
nent of capital surplus), depending on the equity account charged
upon the payment of such dividends, until the aggregate amount
of legal retained earnings and legal capital surplus equals 25% of
the amount of common stock. Under the Companies Act, the total
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any time during the fiscal year if the company has prescribed so In
its articles of incarporation Semiannual interim dividends may also
be paid once a year upon resolution of the company as stipulated.
The Companies Act provides certain imitations on the amounts
available for dividends or the purchase of treasury stock. The limita-
tion 1s defined as the amount available for distribution to the share-
holders, but the amount of net assets after dividends must be
maintained at no less than ¥3 million

amount of legal retained earmings and legal capital surplus may be
reversed without limitation. The Companies Act also provides that
common stock, fegal retained earnings and legal capitat surplus,
other capital surplus, and retained earnings can be transferred
among the accounts under certain conditions upen resolution of
the shareholders.




(3) Treasury stock and treasury stock acquisition rights

The Companies Act also provides for companies to purchase
treasury stock and dispose of such treasury stock by resolution of the
Board of Directors. The amaount of treasury stock purchased cannot
exceed the amount available for distribution to the shareholders,
which is determined by a specific formula. Under the Companies

{A) Matters concerning outstanding shares

Act, stock acquisition rights are presented as a component of equity.
The Companies Act alsc provides that companies can purchase both
treasury stock purchase rights and treasury stock. Such treasury
stock acquisition rights are presented as a separate compenent of
equity or deducted directly from stock acquisition rights

Changes in the number of outstanding shares in the consolidated fiscal year ended March 31,2021, were as follows:

Shares of common stock  Shares of treasury stock

{Thousands) (Thousands)
AtMarch 31, 2020 - 170,055 1,224
increase in number of shares - 6
Decrease in number of shares - 35
At March 31, 2021 170,055 1,195

(B) Matters concerning dividends

(1) Total dividend payments to be paid for the consolidated fiscal year ended March 31, 2021, are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen US dollars {Note 2}

Approved at the ordinary general meeting of shareholders on June 29, 2020 ¥3,391 $30,632
Approved by the Board of Birectors on Novemnber 5, 2020 3,391 30,631
Total 6,782 61,263

{2) The effective date for dividends, including retained earnings, as of March 31, 2021, shall be determined in the subsequent

consolidated fiscal year as follows

Thousands of

Millions of yen 'S dollars fNote 2)

At the ordinary general meeting of shareholders on June 18, 2027

$275,679

¥30,520

17. Impairment Losses

In principle, the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries catego-
rize operating assets under each business for which investmeant
decisions concerning the assets are made, while leased properties,
properties held for sale, idle properties, and cther types of properties
are categorized separately as individual properties.

The breakdown 1s as follows:

During the fiscal year under review, the expected sale price of
properties held for sale was below their total book value, and the
book values of certain categories of operating assets, which had
become less profitable due to sluggish performance and other
factors, were reduced to their recoverable amounts. The combined
amount of these reductions was recorded as an "impairment loss”
of ¥24,385 million (5220,267 thousand) under “other losses.”

Thousands of

Location appheation Millions of yen U S, dollars [Note 2)
E&Wa'"y Business assets Vessels {Dry bulk carriers}) ¥ 9,346 $ 84419
Japan Business assets Vessels {Dry bulk carriers) 4,843 43,751
Japan Assets held for sale Vessels {Tankers) 1,750 15,807
Japan Assets held for sale vessels (Dry bulk carners}) 1,698 15,346
Japan Business assets wessels (Tankers) 1,674 15,124
Qthers Assets held for sale, etc Vassels, ete 5,072 45,817
Total ’ 24,385 220,267

The recoverable amount for these asset groups will be the higher of the net selling price of the asset or its value in use.
The net selling price is based on an appraisal value reasonably calculated by a third party, etc., and the value in use is calculated from the

projected future cash flows discounted manly at 8.01%.
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18. Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The main compenents of selling, general and administrative expenses are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.3 dollars (Note 2)
2021 2020 2021
Employee salaries - ¥72,313 ¥72,533 $653,178
Provision for bonuses 16,327 6,792 93,284
Retrement benefit costs 3,764 1,971 34,004

19. Retirement Benefit Costs and Provision Included in Costs and Expenses

The components of retirement benefit costs and provision included in costs and expenses are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen U 'S dollars {Note 2}
2021 2020 2021
Provision for periodic dry docking of vessels ' ¥10,331 ¥11,97% $93,322
Provision for bonuses 3,628 2,782 32,777
Retirement benefit expenses 717 1,304 6,484

20. Gain on Sales of Non-Current Assets

The main components of gain on sales of non-current assets are as follows:

Thousands of

Millions of yen US dollars (Note 2}
2021 2020 2021
Land ¥25,684 ¥16,340 $231,996
Vessels ) ) 13,942 11,328 125,939
21. Loss on Sales of Non-Current Assets
The main components of loss on sales of non-current assets are as follows:
Thousands »f
Millions of yen U S dollars (Note 2)
) 2021 2020 2021
Vessels ¥410 ¥114 $3,707

22. Research and Development Expenses Included in Costs and Expenses and Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

The components of research and developrnent expenses included in costs and expenses and selling, general and administrative expenses are
as follows:

Thousands of

Millior:s of yen U S dollars (Nole 2)
2021 2020 2021
¥1,41 ¥1,207__ $13.290
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23. Amount Transferred to Provision for Losses Related to Contracts

In the consolidated fiscal year under review, the amount of expected future fosses was recorded to provide for losses arising in association with
the redelivery of time-chartered vessels. These mainly consist of expenses expected tc arise in the future in conjunction with the redelivery of
vessels carried out as part of structural reforms in the dry bulk division.

24, Other Comprehensive Income

The components of other comprehensive income for the years ended March 37, 2021 and 2020, were as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S dollars {Note 2}

201 2020 201
Unrealized gain {loss} on available-for-sale securities: o
Gains (losses) ansing during the year ¥15,922 ¥(20,102) $143,822
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss for the year {65) 1.229 (592}
Amount befare income tax effect 15,857 (18,873} 143,230
Income tax effect {3.517) 5,296 {31,774}
Total 12339 (13577) 111,455
Deferred gain {loss) on hedges: -
Gains (losses) ansing dunng the year 4,417 {5,343) 39,200
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss for the year {1,312) 1,089 {11,858)
Adjustrnent for the acgquisition cost of assets (304) (82) {2,751}
Amount before Incorme tax effect 2,799 (4,336)_ 25,29
Income tax effect {807) {1.408) {7,297}
Total T T 1,992 (5,745) 17.993
Foreign currency translation adjustméﬁ& T
Gains {losses) arising during the year 12,101 {6,046} 109,306
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss for the year (2,814) {288} {25,424}
Amount before income tax effect 9,286 (6.335) 83,882
Income tax effect - - -
Total 9,286 (6.335) 83,882
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans: T
Gains {losses} arising during the year 18,643 {13,438) 168,396
Reciassification adjustments to profit or loss for the year (1,499) (2,500) (13,546)
Amount befere iIncome tax effect 17,143 - '(75,939) 154,850
Income tax effect ] {4,465) 4619 {40,334)
Total o 12,678 (11219) 114516
Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for using the equity method:
Gains (losses) arising during the year (5,895} (12,940) (53,254)
Reclassification adjustments to profit or loss for the year 1,497 3.007 13,522
Total (4,398) (9,939) (39,731)
Total cther comprehensive income (loss) 31,897 ____(46515) 288,116
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25. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

(1) Commitments made by the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2021, totaled ¥164,554 million ($1,486,356
thousand} for the construction of vessels.
Contingent liabilities for notes receivable discounted and endorsed, guarantees of loans as of March 31, 2021, were as follows:

Thousands of

Mifiions of yen U.S. dollars {Note 2}

Guarantees of loans

¥114,176 $1,031,310

{2) Certain operating lease agreements that the NYK Group concluded

3

on its respective vessels incorporate a residual value guarantee
clause. The maximurm arnount of potential future payment under
the guarantee obligation is ¥4,007 million {836,202 thousand).
The guarantee may be paid If the companies choose to returmn
the leased property rather than exercise the option to purchase.
The operating lease agreements will expire by January 2022,

Some aperating lease agreements that the NYK Group concluded
on its aircraft incorporate a residual value guarantee clause. The
maximum amount of potential future payment under the guaran-
tee abligation is ¥42,110 million {$380,371 thousand). The com-
panies may pay the guarantee if they choose to return the leased
properties at the end of the lease term. The operating lease
agreements will expire by December 2026,

{4) The Company has been under investigation by some authorities

overseas, an account of suspected viclations of the antitrust
laws concerning the shipping of cargo including automobiles
handled in or after September 2012 Also, the Company has been
party to class civil lawsuits in several regions for damages and
suspension of shipments, etc., without a specific amount of
damage, for its conspiracy to fix prices of shipping with major
automobile shipping companies concerning marine transporta-
tion of assembled automobiles, etc. With the excepticn of the
recorded provision for losses related 1o antitrust law, it is difficult
to reasonably predict the results of the investigations by overseas
authornties and cvil lawsuits at present.

26. Accounting for Leases

Operating leases

As

lessees

The fiscal year-end balance of unearned lease payments related to non-canceilable transactions as of March 31, 2021 is as follows

Thousands of
Millians of yen U &. dollars (Note 2)
Within one year ¥21,280 $192,214
More than one year 51,804 467,926
Total ) 73,084 660,141
As lessors

The fiscal year-end balance of unearned lease paymenits related to non-cancellable transactions as of March 31, 2021 is as follows'

Thousands of

Millons of yen U S dollars {Note 2)
Within one year ¥ 7,059 $ 63,761
More than one year 11,604 104,815
Total 18,663 168,576
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27. Accounting for Employees’ Retirement Benefits

1. Outline of employees’ retirement benefit plans

The Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries maintain the foliowing defined benefit plans: the national government's Employees’

Pension Fund and a retirement lump-sum allowance system.

Some overseas consolidated subsidiaries also maintain defined contribution plans or defined benefit plans.

2. Defined benefit plans
(1) Changes in defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Millions ot yen

Thousands &f
U's dollars {Note 2]

2021 2020 2021
Balance at beginning of year o ¥87.,788 ¥86,226 §792,956
Service costs 3,296 3356 28,773
interest costs 1,067 1,059 9,640
Actuanal {gans} losses 1,902 456 17,186
Benefits paid (3,934) (3212} (35,535)
Priar service cost (89) 170 (812)
Cthers 1,493 (308) 13,486
Balance at end of year T 91,523 87,788 826,694

(2) Changes in plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Millions of yen

Thousands ot
US dollars (Nete 2)

2021 2029 2021
Balance at beginning of year ¥118,453 ¥131302 $1,069,948
Expected return on plan assets 1,556 1621 14,055
Actuanal gains {losses) 21,367 {13,259} 193,006
Contributions frorm the employer 620 1,096 5603
Benefits paid (2,556) {2282} (23,091)
Others 1,023 {23 9,247
Balance at end of year 140,465 118,453 1,268,769

(3) Reconciliation between the balance at beginning of year and the balance at end of year in relation to net defined benefit liability for
which the shorteut methad was applied for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Millions of yen

Thousands of
11.5. dollars (Note 2)

2021 2020 2021
Balance at beginning of year ¥5,155 ¥5915 §46,570
Net periodic benefii costs 1,007 1,082 9,104
Bengfits paid {440} (448) (3,976)
Contributions from the employer (364) (346) {3,293)
Other {59 (1.047) (532)
Balance at end of year 5,300 5155 47,872

{4) Reconciliation between the [iability recorded in the consolidated balance sheets and the balances of defined benefit obllgatlon and plan

assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020

M\Illons of yen

Funded defined henefit abligation
Plan assets

"7 86453
{(124133)

Unfunded defined benefit obligation

(37.680)
12170

Net liability (asset) arising from defined benefit obligation

(25.509)

Net defined benefit liability
Net defined benefit asset

Net lizbility (asset) arising from d‘e'f_ined benefit obhgation

15020
(41,430)
(25509)

-.(WH
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U S dollars USdollars (Note 2}

R
D DEEe ]
(1332 27%73)

(5081870)
41668
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(5) Components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Thousands of

Milkions of yen U S dollars (Note 2}
2021 2020 2021
Service costs ¥ 3,296 ¥ 3,356 $29,773
Interest costs 1,067 1.059 9,640
Expected return on plan assets (1,556) {1621) {14,055)
Recognized actuarnal {gains) losses (1,284) {2.546) {11,605)
Arnortization of pnor service cost (90} 171 (818)
Net periodic benefit costs calculated using the shortout method 1,007 1,082 2,104
Other (166) 69 {1,500)
Net periodic benefit costs o ) 2,273 1,570 B 20,539

{6) Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income (before income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit plans for the
years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020

Thousands of

Mithons of yen U 5. dollars {Note 2)
2021 2020 2021
Prior service cost ¥ H ¥ 2 ] 49
Actuarial gains {losses) 12,137 {15,942} 154,800
Total T 17,143 {15939) 154,850

(7) Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income {before income tax effect) in respect of defined retirement benefit
plans as of March 31, 2021 and 2020

Thousands of

Millions of yen 115 dollars (Note 2)

2021 2020 2021
Unrecognized prior service cost ¥ & ¥ 0 $ 56
Unrecognized actuanal gains (losses) 18,184 2,079 164,252
Total - 18190 3080 164,308
(8) Components of plan assets
(1) Plan assets consisted of the following as of March 31, 2027 and 2020

2021 2020

Debt investments o 32% ags
Equity investments 53% 47%
Cash and cash equivalents 2% 1%
Others 13% 4%
Total ‘ 100% 100%

Aretirernent benefit trust established for a corporate pension plan accounts for 35% and 31% of plan assets as of March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

(2) Method of determining the expected rate of return on plan assets

The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering the long-term rates of return which are expected currently and in the
future from the various components of the plan assets.
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(9) Assumptions in calculation of the above information

2021 2020
Discount rate ) - Mainly 1.1% Manly 1 1%
Expected rate of return on plan assets Mainly 1.8% Mainly 1 8%
Expected rate of salary increase Mainly 1.2%-7.0% Mainly 1.2%-7 1%

A point systern has been adopted for certain employees, and the expected rate of salary increase includes the expected rate of point increase

3. Defined contribution plan

Ce lain vonsolidaled subsidiaries had ¥ 1,899 million and ¥2,326 million {$21,015 thousand} for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2020 and
March 37, 20271, in defined contribution retirement benefit costs. Besides the retirement benefit costs shown above, certain consolidated
subsidiaries treated the amount of defined contributions paid to the multi-employer plan as retirement benefit costs.

28. Segment Information

1. Outline of reportable segments
The Company’s reportable segments are constituent units of the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries for which separate financial
information is ebtainable. The segments are periadically reviewed by the Company's management to evaluate the allocation of management
resources and business performance.

The NYK Group operates comprehensive fogistics businesses covering maritime, land, and air transportation on a global scale. These ope-
rations are categorized under six reportable segments: Liner Trade, Air Cargo Transportation, Logistics, Bulk Shipping, Real Estate, and Other.
The main operations and services of each reportable segment are listed as follows

Reportable segment Major operation and services in each segment

Ocean cargo shipping, ship owning and chartering, shipping agency, container terminals business, harbor transport services,

Liner Trade tugboat operation

Air Cargo Transportation Air cargo transport _

Logistics warehouse operation, cargo transport/handling business, coastal cargo shipping -

Bulk Shipping Ocean cargo shipping, ship owning and chartering, shipping agency -

Real Estate Rental, management and sale of real estate properties '_- -
Other Qwnership and operation of passenger ships, wholesaling of S_hlp machinery and furniture, other services related to transport,

information—processing business, wholesaling of oil products, others

2. Method for calculating revenues, profits and losses, assets, and other financial items of reportable segments

The accounting methads for the reportable segments are the same as those described in “3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
The profits and losses recorded under reportable segmenits are based on recurring profits or losses. Intra-segment revenues and transfers
are primarily based on third-party transaction prices.
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3. Information on revenues, profit (loss), assets, and other items by reportable segments
The table below presents certain segment information for the years ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.

Year ended March 31, 2021;

Millions of yen

Global Logistics ’ Others
Alr Carge Consolidated
Liner Trage  Transportation Logistics Bulk Shipping Real Estate Others Total Adjustments* Total
| Revenues:
{1) Revenues from customers ¥166,181 ¥115,069 ¥559,749 ¥ 681,313 ¥ 5963 ¥ 80,136 ¥1,608414 ¥ -  ¥1,608,414
{2} Intersegment revenues 4355 7,389 1,485 251 920 49,652 64,055 (64,055) -
Taotal 170.537 122,459 561,234 631,564 6,884 129789 1,672,459 {64,055) 1,608,414
Segment profit {loss} 140,821 33,281 27,049 18,605 2,584 (2,251) 220,090 (4,754) 215,336
Segment assets ; 428,685 65,535 348,707 1,271,637 52,400 173614 2,340,579 {215,099) 2,125,480
! 11 Other items:
I Depreciation and amortization 9,891 3,232 19,913 63,293 1,366 1,159 98,857 (53) 98,803
i Amortization of goodwill
and regative goodwill 42 - 814 924 - - 1,782 - 1,782
| Interest income 187 203 267 1,694 1 703 3,058 (673) 2,385
' Interest expenses 3347 337 1,811 9,614 48 1,079 16,237 (259) 15,978
Equity in earnings flosses) of
uncensohdated subsidiaries
and affiliates 141,565 - (163) 17,504 - (2977) 155929 (0) 155928
Investments in equity methad
affifiates 249,459 - 1,918 223,884 - 218 475,680 {313} 475,367

Increase in vessels, property,
plant, and equipment and
intangible assets 6,782 1,569 6,946 85,745 384 753 102,181 (402) 101,778

11l Information about impairment
loss by reportable segments:

Impairment loss 194 - 1,126 22,399 536 129 24,385 - 24,385

IV information about balance
of goodwill by reportable
segments:
Balance of goodwill
(negative goodwill) at
the end of current penod 89 - 4,284 5816 - - 10,190 - 10,190
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Thousands of U S dollars (Note 2}

Global Logistics Others
Air Cargo Consolidated
Liner Trade  Transportation Logistics Bulk Shipping Real Estate Others Total Adjustments® Total
| Revenues:
{1) Revenues from customers  $1,501,052  $1,039,375 $5055,995 $ 6,154,039 $ 53,869 § 723843 $14,528,175 - $14,528,175
{2) Intersegment revenues 39,345 66,750 13,413 2,269 8,313 448,495 578,587 (578,587) -
Total 1,540,397 1,106,126  5069,408 6,156,309 62,182 1,172,339 15,106,763 (578,587) 14,528,175
Segment (loss) profit 1,271,985 300,622 244,329 168,055 23341 {20,341) 1,987,992 (42,945) 1,945,046
Segment assets 3,872,144 591,952 3,149,736 11,486,201 473,314 1,568,188 21,141,538  (1,942,907) 19,198,631
Il Other items:
Depreciation angd amortization 89,343 29,199 179,870 51,09 12,339 10,476 892,939 {482) 892,457
Amortization of goodwill
and negative goodwill 386 - 7,357 8,354 - - 16,098 - 16,098
Interest income 1,690 1,842 2413 15,309 13 6,358 27,627 {6,083} 21.544
Interest expenses 30,233 3,047 16,363 86,840 439 9,746 146,670 (2,340} 144,330
Equity in earnings {losses) of
unconsohdated subsidiaries
and affilates 1,278,704 - (1,473} 158,111 - (26,895) 1.408,446 {9} 1,408,437
Investments in equity method
affiliates 2,253,270 - 17,329 2,022,262 - 3778 4,296,639 {2,828) 4,293.81
Increase in vessels, property,
plant, and equipment and
intangible assets 61,267 14,173 62,741 774,508 3473 6,805 922,969 (3,639) 919,329
Il Information about impairment
loss by reportable segments:
Impairment loss 1,754 - 10,176 202,323 4841 1.1N 220,267 - 220,267
IV Information about balance
of goodwill by reportable
segments;
Balance of goodwall
{negative goodwilf) at
the end of current period BOS - 38,699 52,541 - - 92,049 - 92,049

* Adjustments of segment profit or loss are ¥66 million {5596 theusand} of iInternal exchanges of transfers among seaments and ¥—4,820 millon {§—43,542 thousand) of corporate expenses

The Company accounts general and admnistralive expenses and non—operating expenses that do not belong to any single segment as corporate expenses

Adjustrments cf segment assets are ¥-237.649 millien ($-2,146,598 thousand) of receivables or assets relating to intermnal exchanges amang segments and ¥22,550 million {$203,691 thou-

sand} of corporale asse's

Major corporate assels are the excess of operating funds {cash and deposits).
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Year ended March 31, 2020;

Millions of yen ]
o Glabal Logistics ~ Others
Aur Cargo Consohdater!
B Liner Trade I[ausportamn Lagistics Bulk Shipping  Real Estate Others ) Total Adjustrments* Total
[ Revenues:
{13 Revenues from customers ¥196,530 ¥ 70,237 ¥474352 ¥ 819776 ¥ 6,344 ¥101.114  ¥1.668355 ¥ - ¥1,668355
(2) Intersegment revenues 5717 4920 1973 3 1,002 64,575 78,220 (78,220) -
Total 202,248 75157 476,326 819,807 7,346 165,690 1,746,576 (78,220} 1,668,355
Segment profit {loss) 13,442 (15583} 4721 44,187 2,564 1773 51,106 {6.619) 44,486
Segment assets ) 296,981 63,205 281608 1269819 54,948 159032 2,125,554 f192,330) 1933264
11 Other items:
Depreciation and amortization 11,668 4,006 19,881 65,982 1,355 1,216 104110 (53) 104,057
Amortization of goodwill
and negative goodwil 44 - 680 3,605 - - 4329 - 4,329
Interest income 454 283 577 2,834 2 1595 5747 (2170} 3576
Interest expenses 5633 276 2192 14,488 58 3,595 26,245 1286) 25,958
Equity in earnings {losses) of
unconsolidated subsidiaries
and affilates 5742 - pal 17427 - (660} 22,531 (14 22,517
Investments in eguity method
affiliates 121936 - 2,059 227,135 - 1360 352,492 {118) 352,373
Increase in vessels, property,
plant, and equipment and
intangble assets 5659 16,989 7797 106,482 1,205 8071 138,935 296 139,232
1l nformation about impairment
loss by reportable segments:
Impairment loss - 1 16,151 2,507 1,989 - 5 20,655 - 20655
IV Information about balance
of goodwill by reportable
segments:
Balance of goodwill
{negauve goodwill} at
the end of current period 131 - 4259 V6,664 - - 11,055 - 11,065

* Adjustments of segment profit or loss are ¥50 mullion cf internal exchanges or transfers among segments and ¥—6.663 million of corporate expenses

The Company accounts general and administrative expenses and non-operating expenses that do not belong to any single segment as corporate expenses.

Adjustments of segrment assets are ¥=—207,063 million of recervables or assets relatng 10 internat exchanges among segments and ¥14,732 rmullon of corporate assets
Mayor corporate assets are the excess of operating funds (cash and deposing)
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29. Related Information

Information by geographical segment is as follows. As there were no customers that accounted for mere than 10% of consotidated revenues,
information about revenues from major customers is omitted

Year ended March 31, 2021;
Millions of yen

Japan North America E::;pe Asia Qthers Total
| Revenues ¥1,053,797 ¥101,882 ¥164,118 ¥273,583 ¥15,032 ¥1,608,414
1 Tangible fixed assets 547,666 31,346 180,874 BS§,854 1,948 847,689

Thousands of U.S dollars (Note 2)

Japan North America Europe Asla - Others ’ Total
I Revenues $9,518,538 $920,266 $1,482,416 $2.471172 $135,781 $14,528,175
Il Tangible fixed assets 4,946,854 283,141 1,633,768 775,488 17,597 7,656,850
Year ended March 31, 2020:

Millons of yen
':Jépan North Armerica Europe Asla Dthers Total }

[Revenues ) ¥1,173036 ¥01 839 ¥165294 ¥218986 ¥19,109 ¥1 468,355 ;
Il Tangible fixed assets 599,989 33771 198,502 81,286 2,778 916,329 1

30. Related Party Disclosures

(1) Related-party transactions
Previous fiscal year (Apnl 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020)
No matters of importance to report.

Fiscal year under review {April 1, 2020 tc March 31, 2021)
No matters of importance to report.

{2) Summarized financial information as of and for the years ended March 31, 20271 and 2020, for OCEAN NETWORK EXPRESS PTE. LTD,,
which was classified as a significant affiliated company, is as follows:

Thousands of

Milliens of yen \.S. dollars {Note 2) ;

2021 2020 2021

Total current assets ¥ 820,309 ¥ 3B5805 § 7,409,531 I

Total nen-current assets 617,754 611,750 5,579,932 |

1

I

Total current liabilities 357,286 249219 3,227,228 '
Total non-current lizbilities 505,863 508,869 4,569,268
Total eguity 574,913 239,566 5,192,956
Revenues 1,597,798 1,378435 14,432,286
Profit before income taxes 373,176 14,217 3,370,757
Profit attributable to owners of parent 367,247 8141 3,317,201
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31. Subsequent Events

Appropriation of Retained Earnings
The following appropriation of retained earnings at March 31, 2021, was approved at the Company's shareholders’ meeting held on June
18, 2021.

Thousands of
Millions of yen U3 dollars (Note 2}

Year-end cash dnadends, ¥180 00 ($1 63) per share ¥30,520 $275,679

Partial Transfer of Subsidiary Stock
On May 27, 2021, the Company reached an agreement with Japan Post Real Estate Co., Ltd. to transfer 51% of the issued shares of
the Company’s consclidated subsidiary Yusen Real Estate Corporation. Accordingly, Yusen Real Estate Corporation will become an
equity-method affiliate.
1. Name of the assignee
Japan Post Real £state Co., Ltd.
7. Name of the target company
Yusen Real Estate Corporation
3. Name of the reporting segment of the target company
Real Estate
4. Business operations of the target company
Ownership, rental, reai estate master lease, and contracted management, etc., of buildings, condominiums, and stores
5. Main reason for the transfer
The Company has presented effective use of real estate holdings as a measure under its current medium-term managemernit plan
and has positioned the early realization of further business growth of Yusen Real Estate Corporation as its most important pricrity.
The Company judges that forming & partnership with Japan Post Real Estate Co., Ltd. to develop business is the best strategy for
further growth and increase the corporate value of Yusen Real Estate Corporation.
6. Timing of the transfer
Scheduled in the second quarter of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022

* The timing of the transfer has not been fixed as It 1s necessary te obtan the approval of the relevant government authorities in each country in refation to the Competition L aw, etc
7. Transfer ratio

5%
8. Transfer price

The transfer price shall not be disclosad due to the obligation of confidentiality with the assignee.
9 Impact of the transaction

As a result of this transaction, the Company expects to record a gain on the transfer of shares of approximately ¥23.0 billion

{§207,749 thousand) under other gains for the second quarter of the fiscal year ending March 31, 2022,
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M COther Information

() Quarterly information, etc., in the consolidated fiscal year under review

(Curnulative periad) First quarter Second quarter Third quarter Total
Revenues Millions of yen ¥361,170 ¥722,031 ¥1,145943 ¥1,608,414
Amount of profit (loss) before incorne taxes Millions of yen 15,749 29,976 " eas22 170418
Amount of profit (loss) attributable to owners of parent Millions of yen 11,684 22,780 52367 139,228
Profit (Joss) per share Yen 69.21 13137 a0 824.55
(Fiscal penod) First quarter Second quarler Third quarter Fourth quarter
Profit (loss) per share Ven ¥60.21 V6216 ¥17873 ¥514.43
{Cumulative penod) First quarter Second guarter Third quarter Total
Reverues Thousands of $3,262,309 56,521,829 $10,350.854 514,528,175
U5 dollars (Note 2)
Amount of profit {loss) before income taxes Thousands of 142,256 270219 585,417 1,539,319
U 3. dollars (Note 2}
Amount of prafit (loss) attnbutable to owners of parent Thousands of 105,541 200,350 472966 1,257,596
U5 dollars (Note 2)
Profit (loss) per share .5, dollars (Note 2} 062 119 28 7.45
{Fiscal period) First quarter Second guarter Third quartes Fourth quarter
profit (loss) per share LS. dollars (Note 2) 50.63 50.56 $1.61 3455 -

(@ Lawsuits

In addition to the iterns detailed in 25. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities, in connection with the collision of ACX Crystal, a containership
chartered by the Company, with U.S. Navy Destroyer Fitzgerald on June 17, 2017 {Japan time) off the coast of Shimoda, Shizuoka Prefecture,
tawsuits for damages totaling $308 million have been filed against the Company in the United States by bereaved family members of the crew
members of Fitzgerald who died in the collision and by crew members who claim to have been injured. To date, the court of first instance and

the court of second instance in the U.S. have ruled to reject the plaintiff's lawsuit.

NIPPON YUSEN KABUSHIKI KAISHA NYK REPORT 2021

3%



BN Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

1. Matters relating to the basic framework of internal contrel over financial reporting
Hitoshi Nagasawa, President, Representative Director, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Hiroshi Kubota, Director, Managing Executive
Officer, are responsible for designing and operating effective internal control over financial reporting of the Company and have designed and
cperated internal control over financial reporting of the consclidated financial statements in accordance with the basic frarmework for internal
contred set forth in “On the Setting of the Standards and Practice Standards for Management Assessment and Audit concerning internal Control
Over Financial Reporting (Council Opinions)” published by the Business Accounting Council.

The internal control is designed to achieve its objectives 1o the extent reasonable through the effective function and combination of its basic
elements. Therefore, there is a pessibility that material misstaternents may not be completely prevented or detected by internal control over
financial reporting.

2. Matters relating to the scope of assessment, the basis date of assessment, and the assessment procedures

The assessment of internal control over financial reporting was performed as of March 31, 2021, which is the end of this fiscal year.

The assessment was performed in accordance with assessment standards for internat control over financial reporting generally accepted
in Japan,

In conducting this assessment, we evaluated internal controls which may have a material effect on our entire financizal reporting on a
consolidated basis {"company-level controls™), and based on the results of this assessment, we selected business processes to be tested.

We analyzed these selected business processes, identified key controls that may have a material impact on the reliability of the Compeany's
financial reporting, and assessed the design and operation of these key controls. These procedures have allowed us to evaluate the effective-
ness of the internal controls of the Company.

We determined the required scope of assessment of internal contral aver financial reporting for the Company, as well as its consolidated
subsidiaries and equity-method affiliated companies, from the perspective of the materiality that may affect the reliability of their financial
reporting. The materiality that may affect the reliability of the financial reporting is determined taking into account the materiality of quantitative
and gualitative impacts an financial reporting. in light of the results of assessment of company-level controls conducted for the Company and
consclidaied subsidiaries, we reasonably determined the scope of assessment of process-level controls. Regarding the consolidated subsidiar-
ies and the equity-method affiliated companies that do not have a material effect on financial reporting, we did not include them in the scope
of assessment of company-level controls.

Regarding the scope of assessment of process-level controls, we selected locations and business units to be tested in descending order
of revenues, and the companies whose combined revenues reach two thirds of revenues on a consolidated basis, in additicn, because of the
monetary and gualitative significance of the impact on the reliability of the consolidated financial statements, Ocean Network Express Pte. Ltd.
an equity-method affiliate, were selected as “significant locations and/cr business units” We included in the scope of assessment, at the
selected significant locations and/cr business units, business processes leading to revenues, costs and expenses, and accounts receivable—
trade as significant accounts that may have a material impact on the business objectives of the Company. Further, in addition to selected
significant locations and/or business units, we also selected for testing the business processes having greater materiality, taking intc account
their impact on the financial reporting.

3. Matters relating to the results of the assessment
As a result of the assessment described above, as of the end of this fiscal year, we concluded that the Company's internal control over financial
reporting of the consolidated financial staternents was effectively maintained.

Hitoshi Nagasawa Hiroshi Kubota

President, Representative Director, Directer, Managing Executive Officer
President and Chief Executive Officer

June 18, 2021
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Impairment losses of non-current assets

Key Audit Matter Description

How the Key Audit Matter Was
Addressed in the Audit

As presented in the consolidated balance sheet, the
Group recorded ¥534,378 million {$4,826,829
thousand) for vessels and ¥35,838 million ($323,712
thousand) for aircrafl as of March 31, 2021, and these
amounts represented 25.1% and 1.7% of total assets,
respectively. In addition, as presented in the
consolidated statement of income, the Group recorded
impairment losses of ¥24,385 million ($220,297
thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2021.

As stated in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements 3. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies O. Signiftcant Accounting Estimates (1)
Impairment losses of non-current assets, if any
impairment indicators exist for assets or group of
assets, the Group measures impainnent losses for the
assets or group of assets to determine whether
impairment losses should be recognized. In
determining whether an impairment loss is needed,
the Group calculates the recoverable amounts based
on the value in use or the net selling price at
disposition for the asset or group of assets.

Value in use is calculated as the discounted present
value of the future cash flows. Significant
assumptions used in business plans that form the basis
of future cash flows are mainly composed of market
conditions for freight and charter mtes and future
prospects of cargo demand. Since the shipping and air
cargo markets are highly volatile, including the
impact of COVID-19 to the business, forecasting
them requires a high degree of judgment.
Furthermore, the period to estimate the future cash
flows is based on the average remaining useful lives
of the vessels and aircraft belonging to each asset or
group of assets and is, therefore, relatively long term.
Due to this uncertainty, there is a high degree of
subjectivity and dependence on management’s
judgment regarding market conditions in estimating
the future cash flows. Additionally, complex
calculation is required in deriving the discount rate
used to determine the discounted present value, and
this is dependent on management’s judgment.

The net selling price at disposition is primarily
estimated based on the valuation resolts made by
management’s experts. For some assets or groups of
assets, for which there may be no observable markets,
the valuation methods and resulis may be highly
dependent on the judgment of the experts and
management.

Based on the above, we determined that the
estimation of the recoverable amounts used in the
impairment tests of non-current assets is particularly
important in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company as of March 31, 2021 as it
involves sigrificant judgements made by management
and idenfified it as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures related to the estimation of the
recoverable amounts for the impairment test of non-
current assets included the following, among others:

(Value in use)

s We tested the design, implementation, and
operating effectiveness of the Group's internal
controls relevant to developing future cash
flows, including assumptions made by
management regarding market conditions for
freight and charter rates and future prospects of
cargo demand.

s We evaluated the accuracy of management's
historical estimates for future plans by
comparing the budgets and business plans for
past fiscal years with actual results.

s We evaluated the reasonableness of key
assumptions, such as future projections for
freight and charter rates and fiiture prospects
cenceming factors such as cargo demand, by
comparing them with available external data,
such as market research reports, and analyzing
trends using past results.

*  We held discussions with management to
evaluate management's assumptions concerning
market trends during and after the period of
recovery from the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic.

»  For the discount rate, we evaluated the
appropriateness of the caloulation method
adapted by management with the assistance of
our valuation specialists, who used available
external data. We also checked the consistency
of the variables used against available external
data.

(Net selling price at disposition)

»  With the assistance of our asset valuation
specialists, we evaluated the reliability of
management’s experts and the appropriateness
of valuation methodologies.

*  [n cases where there werc comparable
transactions, we tested the appropriateness of
valuation results by comparing the valuation
amounts with those fransactions.
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Provision for losses related to contracts associated with dry bulk restructuring

Key Audit Matter Description

How the Key Audit Matter Was
Addressed in the Audit

As stated in the notcs to the consolidated financial
statements 3. Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies O. Significant Accounting Estimates (2)
Provision for losses refated to contracts associated
with dry hulk restraciuring, as part of its dry bnlk
restructuring, which is one of the measures in the
current medium-term management plan, Nippon
Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha (the “Company™) has made
the decision to cancel time charter contracts in the
future. Consequently, it has recorded provision for
losses related to contracts of ¥42,617 million
($384,942 thousand) in the consolidated balance sheet
for cxpenses related to cancellation penalties for the
contracts and other expenses that are expected to arise
as a result of this decision.

The Company has recorded a provision for expenses
related to cancellation penalties for time charter
contracts and other expenses that are expected to arise
in the future, as it has determined that they have
satisfied the following requirements as defined in
Note 18 of the Corporate Accounting Principles: “1)
the expense is a specific future expense or loss, 2} it is
attributable to an event that occurred prior to the
current fiscal year, 3) the occurrence of the expense is
highly likely, and 4) its amount can be reasonably
estimated.”

Cancellation penalties are incurred based on the
agreement with the owners of the vessels that the
Company has decided to end its contracts. However,
as final agreements have not yet been reached
between the Company and the owners of the vessels
for certain contracts as of March 31, 2021, the
evaluation of the likelihood of the cancellation of the
contracts is dependent on management’s judgment.
Furthermore, since there is no provision for
cancellation penalties related to in time charter
contracts, in light of the level of cancellation penalties
in past cancellations, the Company estimated contract
cancellation fzes based on (1) the terms and
conditions of time charter contracts, (2) current and
future shipping market rates, and (3) vessel prices in
the second hand vessel sales market, among others. In
this regard, the uncertainty of the estimate is
relatively high since cancellation terms are
determined through individual negotiations.

Based on the above, we determined that the
evaluation of the reasonableness of the estimated
provision for losses related to contracts associated

with dry bulk restructuring is particularly important in |

the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the Company as of March 31, 2021 as it involves
significant judgements made by management and
identified it as a key audit matter.

Qur audit procedures related to testing the
reasonableness of the estimmate of provision for losses
refated to contracts associated with dry bulk
restructuring included the following, among others:

¢  Regarding the recognition of provision for
losses related to contracts, we evaluated the
design and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal controls over the
completeness of identification of contracts
subject 1o the provision for losses related to
contracts, the likefihood of cancellation of the
contracts, and the reasonableness of the
estimate of the amounts.

»  Tor the likelihood of cancellation of the
contracts, based on the list of time charter
contracts used for the selection of applicable
contracis, we inquired of management about the
basis for determining that certain contracts had
a high likelihood of being cancelied. We also
inspected the supporting documents to
comoborate our inquiry.

+  For the completeness of the provision for losses
related to contracts, based on the list of time
charter contracts used for the selection of
centracts subject to the provision for losses
related to contracts, we inquired of management
about the basis for determining that ¢certain
contracts had a low likelihood of being
cancelied. We also inspected the supporting
documents to corroborate our inquiry.

»  For the reasonableness of the provision
calculation method, we inquired of
management, and checked its consistency
against the calculation methods for time charter
cancellation penalties in the past.

o For the contract terms and conditions, results
and forccasts of the shipping market rates, and
the estimate of second hand vessel sales prices
used in calculating the provision, we evaluated
their consistency with time charter contracts,
published current and future market data, and
available external data such as market research
reports.

|
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Responsihilities of Management and Audit & Supervisory Board Members and the Audit & Supervisory Board for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

i Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statemcnts in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern in accordance with
accounting principies generally accepted in Japan and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
. i management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
[ 50,

Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing the
| Directors' execution af duties relating to the design and operating effectiveness of the controls over the Group's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audlt of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to pbtain reasonable assusance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Fapan will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

! As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in Japan, we exercise professional
' judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment. In addition, we obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain, when performing risk assessment procedures, an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenis or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that 2 material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated

! financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

i the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease o contirue as a going concemn.

- Evaluate whether the overall presentation and disclosures of the conselidated financial statements are in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepled in Japan, as well as the overall presentation, structure
and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disciosures, and whether the consolidated

‘ financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
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the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for eur audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the andit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may teasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current petiod and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be commuricated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be cxpected to outweigh the public intcrest benefits of such communication.

Report on Internal Control
Opinion

We have audited management's report on internal controt over financial reporting of the consolidated financial
statements of Nippon Yusen Kabushiki Kaisha as of March 31, 2021.

In our opinion, management's report on internal control over financial reporiing referred to above, which represents
that the internal control over financial reporting of the consolidated financial statements of Nippon Yusen
Kabushiki Kaisha as of March 31, 2021, is effectively maintained, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
results of the assessment of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with assessment standards for
internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our internal control audit in accordance with auditing standards for internal control over financial
reporting generally accepted in Japan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Intemal Control Audit section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the provisions of the Code of Professional Ethics in Japan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities as auditors. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Audit & Supervisory Board Members and Audit & Supervisory
Board for Report on Internal Control

Management is responsible for designing and operating effective intemal control over financial reporting and for
the preparation and fair presentation of its report on internal control in accordance with assessment standards for
internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan. Audit & Supervisory Board members and the
Audit & Supervisory Board are responsible for overseeing and verifying the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. There is a possibility that misstatements may not be completely prevented
or detected by internal control over financial reporting.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Internal Control Audit

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether management's report on internal control over
financial reporting is free from material misstatement and to issue an auditor's report that includes our epinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with auditing standards for internal control over financial reporting generally accepted in Japan will always detect
a material misstaterment when it exists.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards for internal control over financial reporting generally
accepted in Japan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:
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* Perform audit procedures to obtain audit evidence regarding the results of the assessment of internal control
over financial reporting in management's report on internal control. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the significance of effects on reliability of financial reporting.

* Examine representations on the scope, procedures and results of the assessment of internal control over
financial reporting made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of management's report
on internal cotitrol.

* Qbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the results of the assessment of internal control over
financial reporting. We are responsible for the dircction, supervision and performance of the internal control
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the internal control audit, result of the internal control
audit, including any identified material weakness which should be disclosed and the result of remediation.

We also provide Audit & Supervisory Board members and the Audit & Supervisory Board with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Interest Required to Be Disclosed by the Certified Public Accountanis Act of Japan

Qur firm and its designated engagement pariners do not have any interest in the Group which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to the provisions of the Certified Public Accountants Act of Japan.

Lelsitte Joike Jophnaton LLC

June 18,2021
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B Major Group Companies

{As of March 31, 2021}

(Millions of yen)

Vating rights held (%)

Company Paid-in capital
Domestic  Liner T UNIX NCT CORPORATION 100.00 ¥ 934
ASAHI UNYU KAISHA, LTD. 100 00 100
YUSEN KOUN CO, LTD 100,00 100
SHIN-NIPPON KAIYOSHA CORP. 100,00 490
NIFPON CONTAINER YUSO CO,, LTD: 51.00 250
HONMA CORPORATION 100.00 50
NAIKAI TUG BOAT SERVICE GO., LTD. 100.00 97
?:;f:;g‘:ta“on NIPPON GARGO AIRLINES GO, LTD. 100,00 10,000
Logistics YUSEN LCGISTICS €O, LTD. 100.00 4,301
KINKAI YUSEN KAISHA LTD. 100.00 465
CAMELLEA LINE CO, LTD 51.00 400
Bulk Shipping NYK BULK & PROJECTS CARRIERS LI, 100,00 2,100
‘ ASAHI SHIPPING CO, LTD. 6967 495
HACHIUMA STEAMSHIP GO, LTD. 76.18 500
NS UNITED KAIUN KAISHA, LTO. 18.57 10,300
KYOEI TANKER 0L, LTD. 30.06 2,850
Real Estate YUSEN REAL ESTATE CORPORATION 100.00 450
Others NYK CRUISES 0, LTD. 50.00 2,000
NYK BUSINESS SYSTEMS CC., LTD. 100.00 99
SANYO TRADING CO, LTD. 50.78 100
NYK TRADING CORPORATION 79.25 1,246

(Millions of iIndicated units)

Company Vouing nghts hekl (%] Paid-in capital
Overs;as Liney YUSEN TERMINALS LLC 100 00 uUss2
CERES HALIFAX ING o 100.00 CASD.0
AMADEUS SHIPHOLDING S A 100 00 Us$ 0.0
OCEAN NETWORK EXPRESS PTE. LTD, .00 Us$ 3,000
Logistics YUSEN LOGISTICS (AMERICAS) INC 100.00 us$ 70
YUSEN LOGISTICS (CHINA) GO, LTD: 100 00 CHY 158
YUSEN LOGISTICS (UK} LTD 100.00 £a4
YUSEN LOGISTICS (THAILAND) £O, (TD. 100 00 B70
YUSEN LOGISTICS {HONG KONG} LTD 100,00 HKS 55
Bulk Shipping INTERNATIONAL CAR OPERATORS N V 10000 €104
NYK BULKSHIP (ASIA) PTE LTD. 109.00 us$ 7
SAGA SHIPHOLDING (NCRWAY) AS 10000 uUss s
NYK BULKSHIP (ATLANTIC) NV 100 00 Us$ 555
NYK AUTOMOTIVE LOGISTICS (CHINA) CO, LTD. 100.00 CHY 245
NYK ENERGY TRANSPORT (ATLANTIC) LTC. 100.00 uss$ 51
NYK BULKSHIP (KGRZA) GO, LTD. T 000 KRW 11,386
NYK SHIPMANAGEMENT PTE. LTD 100 00 Us$ 0.4
ADAGIO MARITIMA 5 A. N 100.00 ¥0.1

Currencies B Thai Baht  CAS: Canadian dollar - CHY Chinese yuan  HKS: Hong Kong dollar

KRW Korean won USS: US dollar £ Pound stering € EURD
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